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CBK			   - 		  Central Bank of Kenya

CCC			   - 		  COMESA Competition Commission

CCLEP			  - 		  Centre for Competition Law and Economic Policy

CCSA			   - 		  Competition Commission of South Africa

CIOC			   - 		  Constitutional Implementation Oversight Committee

COMESA		  - 		  Common Market for Eastern and Southern Africa

EAC			   - 		  East Africa Community

FSD(K)			  - 		  Financial Sector Deepening Kenya

ICN			   - 		  International Competition Network

ICPEN			  - 		  International Consumer Protection Enforcement Network

JFTC			   -		  Japan Fair Trade Commission

MoU			   - 		  Memorandum of Understanding

PPRA			   - 		  Public Procurement Regulatory Authority

RIIP			   - 		  Regional Integration Implementation Program

RTP			   - 		  Restricted Trade Practices

SCAC			   - 		  State Corporations Advisory Committee

UoN			   - 		  University of Nairobi

WTO			   -		  World Trade Organization

ACRONYMS
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The Authority’s Strategic Plan is aligned to the Government’s current Big 4 Economic Agenda which 
is focusing on providing decent Housing, jobs creation through growth of the Manufacturing sector, 
affordable and universal Health Care and Food Security. The authority has prioritized elimination of 
regulatory obstacles and anti-competitive practices in this sector.

Further, in line with its mission, “to enhance competition and consumer welfare in the Kenyan economy 
by regulating market structure and conduct in order to ensure efficient markets for sustainable growth 
and development”, the Authority initiated investigated competition and consumer protection cases 
aimed at promoting competition in markets and preventing unfair and misleading market conduct. 
The Authority also engaged key stakeholders through advocacy initiatives aimed at deepening and 
building awareness of competition law and policy.

During the year under review, the Authority increased deterrence on anti-competitive practices by 
investigating eighteen (18) Restrictive Trade Practices (RTPs) cases compared to fifteen (15) in the 
financial year 2017/18. These cases were from the energy, manufacturing, e-commerce, education, 
food processing, publishing, agrochemicals, professional services, pharmaceuticals, agriculture, 
forestry and fishing, motor vehicle and advertising sectors. Similarly, in ensuring that consumer 
protection is enhanced, the Authority investigated one hundred and thirty six (136) cases representing 
34% increase compared to the previous financial year. The increase is attributed to the Authority’s 
heightened consumer awareness and advocacy initiatives.

A total of one hundred and sixty two (162) merger notifications were received, an increase of 8% 
compared to the last financial year. These merger notifications were mainly from manufacturing, 
real estate, financial and insurance services, energy, distribution and ICT sectors. It is worth noting 
that through regulation of mergers, the Authority continued to play a key role of attracting foreign 
investments by ensuring reduction of transaction costs and increasing transparency and predictability 
for investors through mergers/acquisitions.

The Authority also continued to enforce the Abuse of Buyer Power (ABP) provisions of section 24 (2A), 
(2B), (2D) of the Act. Nine (9) complaints on Abuse of Buyer Power were investigated. Additionally, 
in its bid to increase transparency and predictability in ABP enforcement, Abuse of Buyer Power 
Guidelines were disseminated to stakeholders.

Two (2) market inquiries in the Leasing Sector and Shipping, Trucking and Haulage were conducted 
and concluded. The objective of the Leasing Sector study was to develop a leasing framework guided 
by the Medium Term Plan III, while also, identifying anti-competitive concerns in the sector. The 
Shipping, Trucking and Haulage study, conducted along the Northern Corridor, aimed at identifying 
potential competition concerns occasioned by the infringement of the competition law through 
either government regulation or industrial practices, and eliminating them in order to boost regional 
integration.

In compliance with Section 83 of the Competition Act No. 12 of 2010, the Authority has prepared a 
report on its operations for the financial year 2018/19, based on activities and initiatives implemented 
under the four themes of its current Strategic Plan (2017/2018 – 2020/2021). The themes are

i.	 Deliver Effective Enforcement;
ii.	 Consumer Protection;
iii.	 Planning, Research and Quality Assurance;
iv.	 Visibility and Corporate Image; and
v.	 Organizational Sustainability

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
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The Authority engaged stakeholders including policy makers, sector regulators, county governments, 
legal practitioners, investment bankers and business journalists to create awareness and deepen the 
culture of competition in the economy.

Last but not least, the Authority articulated competition and consumer protection issues and 
disseminated its decisions through traditional and new media platforms such as; print, television, 
radio and social media aimed at expanding its brand visibility, demographic and geographical reach 
and to create awareness on its mandate.

No. of
Mergers

No. of
RTPs

No. of
Consumer Cases

No. of
Advisory Opinions

15

18

10233

13641

FY 2017/18

FY 2018/19

FY 2017/18

FY 2018/19

FY 2017/18

FY 2018/19

FY 2017/18

FY 2018/19

POSITIVES

Young 
professionals 

and 
internship 
programs

Fully 
automated 
processes 

(complaint 
lodging 

and merger 
filling)

Access to 
Government 
procurement 
opportunities

Staff car and 
mortgage 
schemes

148

141
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The Director-General, Mr. Wang’ombe Kariuki (left), accompanied by Mr. Boniface Makongo,  
Director, Competition and Consumer Protection, participating in the annual Cerebral Palsy Walk in 
June 2019 as part of the Authority’s Corporate Social Responsiblity activity.
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The Competition Authority of Kenya (the Authority) is a State Corporation created under Section 7 
of the Competition Act No. 12 of 2010 (the Act). Its mandate is to enhance the welfare of the people 
of Kenya by promoting and protecting effective competition in markets and preventing unfair and 
misleading market conduct throughout Kenya, in order to:

The Authority has a statutory obligation under section 83 of the Act to prepare an Annual Report for 
submission to the National Assembly by the Cabinet Secretary/the National Treasury and Planning. 
The Annual Report captures the overall performance of the Authority, based on its key interventions 
and performance indicators.

This report provides the nature and scope of the Authority’s activities; its plans and priorities including 
the number and nature of complaints and applications determined and/or under consideration; 
number and nature of investigations completed and continuing; and significant studies and market 
inquiries completed during the financial year 2018/19. This report also includes the Authority’s 
Financial Statements for the same period.

PREAMBLE

i.	 Increase efficiency in the production, distribution and supply of goods and services;
ii.	 Promote innovation;
iii.	 Maximize the efficient allocation of resources;
iv.	 Protect consumers;
v.	 Create a conducive environment for investment, both foreign and local;
vi.	 Capture national obligations in competition matters with respect to regional integration 

initiatives;
vii.	 Bring national competition law, policy and practice in line with best international practices; 

and
viii.	Promote the competitiveness of national undertakings in World markets.

MISSION

To enhance competition and consumer welfare in the Kenyan economy by regulating 
market structure and conduct in order to ensure efficient markets for sustainable 
growth and development.

VISION

A Kenyan economy with globally efficient markets and enhanced consumer welfare 
for shared prosperity.

MOTTO

Creating efficient markets for consumers.
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QUALITY POLICY

The Competition Authority of Kenya is committed to enhance the welfare of the people of Kenya by 
promoting and protecting effective competition in markets and preventing unfair and misleading 
market conduct. Towards this, the Authority commits to comply with all statutory and other 
applicable requirements and to continual improvement of its Quality Management System based on 
ISO 9001:2015 International Standard.

This Policy and the established quality objectives shall be reviewed to ensure their continual suitability 
and adequacy, shall be communicated, understood and applied throughout the organization and 
shall be available to relevant interested parties as appropriate.

CORE VALUES
The guiding principles in the operations of the Authority are:

commits to acting in an honest, 
transparent and responsible 
manner while implementing its 
programmes;

Integrity

commits to attaining the 
highest standards in 

service delivery to all 
stakeholders;

Customer focus

shall adopt a participatory 
approach and work together at 

all levels in the conduct of its 
business; 

Teamwork

shall be a learning 
organization that 

embraces change and 
continuously enhances 

creativity and innovation 
in its business processes.

Innovation & 
Creativity

shall uphold the highest 
levels of equity by treating 
all stakeholders without any 
discrimination whatsoever;

Impartiality

shall be guided by 
professional ethics aimed 
at building an appropriate 
corporate culture and 
creating the right corporate 
image;

Professionalism
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QUALITY OBJECTIVES

Provision of quality and effective regulation of both 
market conduct and structure;

Protection of consumers from unfair and misleading 
market conduct;

Optimal utilization of the Authority’s resources in the 
attainment of its mandate;

The Authority’s opertaions comply with all applicable 
laws and regulations;

Enhancement of customer satisfaction that exceeds their 
expectations by providing quality services;

The Authority attracts, trains and retains highly qualified, 
skilled and motivated staff for the realization of its 

mandate.
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MANDATE
The Authority’s mandate is to promote and safeguard competition in the national economy and to 
protect consumers from unfair and misleading market conduct. This, as provided in the Act, has the 
objective of enhancing the welfare of the people of Kenya. The Act applies to all persons including 
the national and devolved Governments’ actions, and State Corporations in so far as they engage in 
trade. This is referred to as competition neutrality.

The Authority achieves its mandate through the following specific functions:-

a.	 Promotion and enforcement of compliance with the Act;
b.	 Receiving and investigating complaints from legal or natural persons and Consumer entities;
c.	 Promoting public knowledge, awareness and understanding of the obligations, rights and 

remedies under the Act and the duties, functions and activities of the Authority;
d.	 Promoting the creation of consumer bodies and the establishment of good and proper 

standards and rules to be followed by such bodies in protecting competition and consumer 
welfare;

e.	 Recognizing consumer bodies duly registered under the appropriate national laws as the 
proper bodies, in their areas of operation, to represent consumers before the Authority;

f.	 Making available to consumers’ information and guidelines relating to the obligations of 
persons under the Act and the rights and remedies available to consumers under the Act;

g.	 Carrying out inquiries, studies and research into matters relating to competition and the 
protection of the interests of consumers;

h.	 Studying government policies, procedures and programmes, legislation and proposals for 
legislation so as to assess their effects on competition and consumer welfare and publicizing 
the results of such studies;

i.	 Investigating impediments to competition, including entry into and exit from markets, in the 
economy as a whole or in particular sectors and disseminate the results of such investigations 
to appropriate publics;

j.	 Investigating policies, procedures and programmes of regulatory authorities so as to assess 
their effects on competition and consumer welfare; and disseminate the results of such 
studies to appropriate public;

k.	 Participating in deliberations and proceedings of Government, Government Commissions, 
regulatory authorities and other bodies in relation to competition and consumer welfare;

l.	 Making representations to Government, Government Commissions, regulatory authorities 
and other bodies on matters relating to competition and consumer welfare;

m.	 Liaising with regulatory bodies and other public bodies in all matters relating to competition 
and consumer welfare; and

n.	 Advising the government on matters relating to competition and consumer welfare.
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Mr. David Ong’olo (immediate former Board Chairman) hands over to his successor Amb. 
Nelson Ndirangu (right) in May 2019
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Ambassador Nelson Ndirangu’s appointment brings 
into the Authority a wealth of experience on Competition 
Policy including trade policy and economic policy.

Amb. Ndirangu has strong leadership and trade skills of 
more than 20 years in trade competition policies, strategic 
planning, programmatic design, implementation, team 
building and setting of impact assessment systems. He was 
involved with the competition Policy issues in the WTO 
where he articulated Kenya’s position regarding possible 
negotiations on multilateral disciplines in Competition 
Policy.

Amb. Ndirangu has a Master of Arts (M.A.), degree and a post Graduate Diploma in International 
Economic Relations from the University of East Anglia in the UK, a Post Graduate Diploma in 
International Trade Policy from the WTO, Switzerland and a Bachelor of Commerce Degree (B.COM 
Hons.) from the University of Nairobi, Kenya.

Amb. Nelson Ndirangu, OGW

Date of Birth: 31st December, 1952
Designation: Board Chairman
Term: 1st Term

Mr. Ong’olo was re-appointed on 12th February, 2016 
as the Chairman of the Authority for a period of three 
(3) years. He has a long standing interest in competition 
policy and private sector development. He has worked on 
topics spanning from institutional development, sectoral 
regulation to industrial policy analysis. He is particularly 
interested in bridging the worlds of rigorous industrial 
sector analysis and practical policy development and 
implementation.

He holds a Master of Science (MSc) Degree in Industrial 
Economics from Lancaster University, United Kingdom 
and a Bachelor Degree in Economics from the University 
of Nairobi.

Mr. David O. Ong’olo, MBS

Date of Birth: 18th August, 1955
Designation: Board Chairman

Term: 2nd term expired in February, 2019
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Mr. Kariuki has vast experience in competition Policy 
and law formulation enforcement. His main interests are 
in competition regulation and economics of institutions’ 
development. He is a distinguished authority in the 
competition enforcement world for his advocacy efforts 
and other initiatives geared towards modernizing various 
competition regimes. He is currently involved in various 
international forums aimed at informing the developing 
of optimal regulatory regime for Digital economy and 
online platforms.

Mr. Kariuki holds a Master of Science (MSc), Degree 
in Economic Regulation and Competition from City 

University, London; a Bachelor of Arts (BA), Degree in Economics and Business Studies from Kenyatta 
University; and various Certificates in Strategic Leadership and Corporate Governance.

Mr. Wang’ombe Kariuki, MBS

Date of Birth: 24th July, 1969
Designation: Director General
Term: 2nd Term

Mr. Khaoya is a Financial Analyst at the National 
Treasury. He has wide experience in budgeting and 
economic planning in the public sector. He has previously 
held positions of Deputy Chief Economist in various 
ministries and Director of Policy and Research with the 
National Sports Fund. 

Currently, Mr. Khaoya is a Deputy Director of Budget at 
the National Treasury where he convenes the Governance, 
Justice, Law and Order Sector. He holds a Masters 
of Science (MSc) from the University of Dortmund, 
Germany and a B.A (Hons) degree in Economics and 
Applied Mathematics from the University of Nairobi. He 
is a member of the International Society for SPRING Planners and an Associate Member of the Kenya 
Institute of Management (KIM).

Mr. Wekesa Khaoya

Date of Birth: 1st January, 1972
Designation: Alternate to the Principal Secretary, the National 

Treasury
Term: Appointed in October, 2018
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Ms. Ng’ang’a is a Parliamentary Counsel in the Office of the 
Attorney-General. She has undergone various trainings on 
drafting and has a wide experience in legislative drafting. 
Over the years, she has served on numerous committees 
and task forces as a drafting expert, more recently being 
drafting financial legislation under the National Treasury 
and Planning.

She is an advocate of the High Court of Kenya and holds 
a Bachelor of Laws (LLB) Degree from the University of 
Nairobi as well as a Postgraduate Advanced Diploma in 
Legislative and Financial Drafting from the University of 
West Indies Cave Hill Campus, Barbados.

Ms. Elizabeth Ng’ang’a

Date of Birth: 24th August, 1962
Designation: Alternate to the Attorney-General
Term: Appointed in 2012

Ms. Oyeyo has built her career largely within the public 
sector having over fifteen (15) years in the public service. 
She spearheaded the task force that developed the Draft 
Retail Trade Regulations, 2018 and Code of Practice for 
the Retail Sector.

She holds a Master of Business Administration (MBA) 
(Strategic Management) from the University of Nairobi 
and a Bachelor of Education (Hons) degree in Business 
Studies and Economics from Kenyatta University.

Ms. Redempta Oyeyo

Date of Birth: 10th July, 1960
Designation: Alternate to the Principal Secretary, State 

Department for Trade
Term: appointed in February 2019
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Protus Sigei has built his career largely within the public 
sector. He has served in the Boards of several entities 
and various Board committees. He is a member of the 
Society for Benefit-Cost Analysis, a professional society 
of academics and practitioners, headquartered at the 
University of Washington at Seattle, USA. He is also a 
Member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

He holds a Master of Science (MSc) Degree from the 
University of York, U.K and a B.A (Hons) degree in 
Economics (with Mathematics) from the University of 
Nairobi. He is also an alumnus of Queen’s University, 

Canada (Program on Investment Appraisal and Risk Analysis), and INSEAD (Competitive 
Strategy).

Mr. Protus Sigei

Designation: Alternate to the Principal Secretary, the National 
Treasury
Term: served from 2012 to October, 2018

Mr. Michael Onyancha is the Director of Weights and 
Measures, Ministry of Industry, Trade and Cooperatives. 
Mr. Onyancha is the Country Representative to the 
International Organization of Legal Metrology (OIML) 
and a member of the International Legal Metrology 
Committee (CIML). He is a Board member of East Africa 
Standard Committee, and a Member of the Institute of 
Trade Standard Administration, Kenya (ITSA).

He holds a Master of Business Administration (MBA) 
Degree and Bachelor of Education (Hons) Degree in 
(Mathematics) from the University of Nairobi.

Mr. Michael Onyancha

Date of Birth: 1st January, 1960
Designation: Alternate to the Principal Secretary, Ministry of 

Industry, Trade and Cooperatives
Term: served from 2012 to February, 2019
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Dr. Nunow is a Senior Lecturer in Moi University’s School 
of Arts and Social Sciences where he teaches Natural 
Resources Management in the Department of Geography. 
He was a member of the Constitution of Kenya Review 
Commission (CKRC) that undertook the writing of a 
new constitution for the country. In addition, he worked 
with the Inter-Parliamentary Union of IGAD (IPU-IGAD) 
Member States based in Addis Ababa, Ethiopia. He was 
a member of a Working Group appointed by the Budget 
and Appropriation Committee (BAC) of the National 
Assembly, to carry out Socio-Economic Audit of the 
Constitution of Kenya, 2010.

Dr. Nunow has wide experience in consultancies in social development, strategic planning, impact 
assessment and environmental audit, among other areas.

He holds a PhD in Environmental and Behavioural Sciences from the University of Amsterdam, a 
Masters of Philosophy in Environmental Planning from Moi University and a Bachelor of Arts in 
Economics and Business studies from Kenyatta University.

Dr. Abdirizak Nunow

Date of Birth: 5th April, 1965
Designation: Independent member
Term: 1st term expired in June 2019

Ms. Musyoka has several years of financial leadership 
experience. She has extensive deal origination, negotiation, 
and structuring and execution experience. Her executive 
management and Board experience includes her role as 
the Corporate Director, Barclays Bank of Kenya as well 
as the Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer of 
K-Rep Bank.

Ms. Musyoka is a holder of a Master of Law (LLM) 
Degree from Cornell University, USA and a Bachelor of 
Law (LLB) Degree from the University of Nairobi, and 
is also a recipient of the 2010 Eisenhower Fellowship for 
International Leadership.

Ms. Carol Musyoka

Date of Birth: 29th August, 1972
Designation: Independent member
Term: 1st term expired in June 2019
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Ms. Ali has over ten (10) years managerial experience in the 
financial industry. She has been actively involved in setting 
up small and medium sized companies from inception to 
launching into profitable and successful companies. She 
has wealth of experience having served in various boards 
including Wangari Mathai foundation, Elimu Plus Limited 
and Acorn Properties UK. Her background provides the 
Board with expertise in financial and operational issues.

Ms. Leila is a holder of a Bachelors degree in Accounting 
& Finance (Hons) from London South Bank University. 
She is also an ACCA Affiliate.

Ms. Leila Ali

Date of Birth: 11th January, 1979
Designation: Independent Member
Term: 1st term expired in June 2019

Ms. Maranya is a Business, Management and institutional 
development specialist with over fifteen (15) years 
banking experience and seven (7) years of consulting.

She is a member of the Institute of Directors, holds an 
Auditor SA 8000 Standard: Amana Ltd, Switzerland and 
is a Lead Auditor ISO 9001:2000: SQML Center, South 
Africa.

Ms. Maranya holds a Master of Business Administration 
(MBA) Degree from the United States International 
University (San Diego) and a Bachelor of Science (BSc) 
Degree from the University of Nairobi.

Ms. Eunice M. Maranya

Date of Birth: 3rd June, 1959
Designation: Independent Member

Term: 2nd term expired in June 2019
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Mr. Kiptinness is the Lead Partner of Kiptinness & 
Odhiambo Associates Telecommunication, Media and 
Technology (TMT) Practice. He has served in locally and 
internationally various corporate firms and parastatals 
such as Orange Telkom Kenya, Communications 
Authority of Kenya, Commonwealth Telecommunications 
Organization, and Kenya Network Information Centre 
among others.

He has acted for global technology companies, mobile 
telecommunication companies, tower companies, 
numerous content and application service provider 
companies, among others.

Mr. Kiptinness holds a Masters of Law, Information Technology and Telecommunications Law from 
London School of Economics and is a Bachelor of Laws (Hons.) graduate of the ILS Law College, 
Pune. He has been an Advocate of the High Court of Kenya for fifteen (15) years, a Certified Public 
Secretary and a Patent Agent.

Mr. Stephen Kiptinness

Date of Birth: 12th November, 1974
Designation: Independent Member
Term: 2nd term expired on 29th June 2019
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Kariuki has vast experience in competition Policy and law 
formulation enforcement. His main interests are in competition 
regulation and economics of institutions’ development. He is a 
distinguished authority in the competition enforcement world 
for his advocacy efforts and other initiatives geared towards 
modernizing various competition regimes. He is currently 
involved in various international forums aimed at informing 
the developing of optimal regulatory regime for Digital 
economy and online platforms.

Mr. Kariuki holds a Master of Science (MSc), Degree in Economic Regulation and Competition from 
City University, London; a Bachelor of Arts (BA), Degree in Economics and Business Studies from 
Kenyatta University; and various Certificates in Strategic Leadership and Corporate Governance.

Wang’ombe Kariuki, MBS
Director-General

Mr. Makongo has over 15 years of experience in litigation, 
corporate and commercial law. He joined the Competition 
Authority of Kenya in December, 2013 as the Manager, 
Legal Services. He was appointed Director, Competition and 
Consumer Protection on 5th May, 2019, placing him in charge 
of the Authority’s three technical departments. Mr. Makongo 
has previously worked for both Constituencies Development 
Fund Board and Water Services Trust Fund as a Legal Officer, 
heading both institutions Legal Departments which he also 
helped establish.

Mr. Makongo holds a Masters Degree in International Economic Law from the University of South 
Africa, a Bachelors of Law Degree from Moi University and a Diploma in Management of Information 
systems from the Institute for Management of Information Systems (U.K) as well as a postgraduate 
Diploma in Corporate Governance and is a Certified Public Secretary. He is an active member of the 
Law Society of Kenya and ICPS (K).

Wang’ombe Kariuki, MBS
Director-General
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Dr. Roba joined the Authority in July 2018 and is responsible 
for developing effective strategies for economic analysis and 
policy, research, strategy and quality management system 
and performance management. He has conducted extensive 
applied research covering broad areas of interest and therefore 
brings nearly 15 years of research and policy experience to the 
Authority.

Prior to joining the Authority, Dr. Roba was a Senior Policy 
Analyst at the National Treasury’s Fiscal & Economic Affairs 

Department. During his tenure, he was also involved in several taskforces that developed legislation 
on climate change, petroleum, minerals, energy and their related policies and regulations.

Dr. Roba has also served as a Senior Lecturer in environmental economics at University of Eldoret 
and Moi University. Dr Roba earned his PhD (cum laude) from the University of Amsterdam (the 
Netherlands) and an MSc from the University of York (UK). He has a number of monographs, peer 
reviewed articles and book chapters to his name, and also in collaboration with colleagues.

Dr. Adano Wario Roba
Director, Planning, Research and Quality Assurance

Mr. Mwangi joined the Authority in December 2014 as 
the Manager Internal Audit. He was appointed Director 
Corporate Services in February 2018. He has over eleven (11) 
years’ experience in the audit of the Government Parastatals. 
Previously, he had worked with Kenya National Bureau of 
Statistics (KNBS), Kenya Film Commission (KFC) as the 
Manager, Internal Audit and Kenya National Audit Office 
(KENAO) which is currently the Office of the Auditor General 
(OAG) as an Auditor.

He is a holder of Bachelor of Science Degree (Hons.) and Masters of Business Administration (Finance 
Option) from the University of Nairobi. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Kenya), Certified Fraud 
Examiner (CFE) and Certified Information Systems Auditor (CISA).

Mr. Mwangi is an active member of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants (ICPAK), Association 
of Certified Fraud Examiners (ACFE) and Information System and Control Association (ISACA). He 
is also a qualified Quality Management System ISO 9001: 2008 Auditor.

Eric Mwangi
Director, Corporate Services
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Mr. Gideon Mokaya is a holder of a Master of Business 
Administration from University of Nairobi (2006). Additionally 
he is a Certified fraud examiner (CFE) and a Certified Public 
Accountant (CPAK). Mr. Mokaya has over seventeen years 
work experience in forensic investigations and audit, having 
worked at the Kenya National Audit Office and the Kenya 
Anticorruption Commission.

He has broad experience as a team leader in forensic 
investigations. Mr. Mokaya has also undergone extensive 

training locally and abroad on investigations skills, developing reliable evidence among others.

Gideon Mokaya
Manager, Enforcement and Compliance

Mr. Boniface Kamiti holds a Master of Global Competition and 
Consumer Law Degree from the University of Melbourne, a 
Master of Arts Degree in Economic Policy and Management 
from the University of Nairobi and a Bachelor of Arts Degree 
in Social Science (Economics) from The Catholic University of 
Eastern Africa.

He has expertise on consumer related investigations, 
Corporate Governance and Results Based Management 
(RBM). Boniface is a member of Institute of Directors of Kenya 
(IOD-K). He has headed the Consumer Protection Department since its inception (December, 2015).

Boniface Kamiti
Manager, Consumer Protection

Ms. Mwarania joined the Authority in 2018 and heads the 
Planning, Policy and Research (PPR) Department which is the 
Central Planning Unit for the Authority. Additionally, PPR 
monitors performance to ensure that the authority’s vision 
is realized, advances the Authority’s internal and external 
knowledge management and enhances institutional risk 
management practices.

Ninette has over thirteen (13) years’ work experience in 
marketing and social research in both the private and public 

sector, having previously worked with Consumer Insight Africa, Millward Brown East Africa and the 
Kenya Tourism Board.

Ninette K. Mwarania
Manager, Planning, Policy & Research
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Mr. Mburu possesses advanced skills in Competition Law 
dealing with regulation of market structure. This has been 
through establishing and developing broad knowledge in 
analysis of complex mergers and acquisitions, carrying out 
market inquiries and sector studies, investigation of policies, 
procedures and programmes of regulatory authorities to 
assess their effect on competition and consumer welfare and 
advising Government on competition matters.

His knowledge and expertise in Competition Law has further 
been enhanced by training in Economics for Competition Law, EU Competition Law, quantitative 
methods for competition analysis, regulatory law for economic regulators, development of various 
competition tool kits such as Subsidiary rules and merger threshold guidelines and participation 
in International Workshops, conferences and Symposia that revolved around emerging issues and 
trends in mergers, private equity & venture capital, remedies in merger review and international 
merger enforcement and cooperation.

Raphael Mburu
Manager, Mergers & Acquisitions

Ninette holds a Master of Business Administration (Marketing Management) degree from the 
University of Nairobi and a Bachelor of Commerce (Banking and Finance) Degree from Kenyatta 
University. She is an active member of the Marketing and Social Research Association (MSRA).

Ms. Njako joined the Authority in March 2019. Prior to that 
she worked both in legal practice and at various institutions 
of higher learning. In her career experience, now spanning 
twenty years, she served at managerial positions including as 
Head of Faculty and Head of Examinations and Research.

Priscilla’s key responsibilities include investigating complaints 
of Abuse of Buyer Power and delayed payments and carrying 
out market assessment. Her duties also include engaging in 
research to identify the most effective practices for effective 

enforcement. Priscilla has a keen interest in enforcement of competition law in ways that are apt for 
the needs of developing countries.

Priscilla holds a Master of Laws Degree (LLM) from the University of South Africa, Bachelor of Laws 
Degree (LL.B) from University of Nairobi and a Diploma in Law from the Kenya School of Law. She 
also holds a Certified Public Secretaries qualification (CPSK) from Kenya Accountants and Secretaries 
Board (KASNEB) and various certificates in Competition Law. She is an active member of the Law 
Society of Kenya.

Priscilla M. Njako
Manager, Buyer Power Department
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Raphael holds a Bachelors Degree in Science (Statistics and Chemistry) from JKUAT, has completed 
graduate studies in Economics for Competition Law and EU Competition Law for King’s College 
London, has certification in Leadership from London Business School and in Quantitative Methods 
for Competition Analysis from Barcelona Graduate School of Economics

Mr. Njagi joined the Authority in May 2013. Previously, he 
worked at Kenya Electricity Generating Company Ltd where 
he was involved in implementation of various staff welfare 
programs. His main interests are in staff development and 
welfare issues.

He holds a Master of Business Administration from Moi 
University, Bachelor of Arts degree in Sociology from 
Kenyatta University and Higher National Diploma in Human 
Resource Management. He has certificates on leadership and 

management. He is also a member of institute of Human Resources Management.

Anthony N. Muriithi
Manager, HR & Administration

Prior to joining the Authority, Mr. Mugambi worked at the 
Nation Media Group (NMG). He served as a writer and 
editor attached to the Business Daily publication, taking a 
keen interest in competition law and policy.

His main role at the Communications & External Relations 
Department is ensuring that the Authority’s stakeholders 
are well appraised about the Authority’s mandate. The 
department develops and executes strategies through which 
the Authority can increase its visibility as well as enhance its 
corporate image among its key stakeholders.

Mugambi’s background working at a leading media company has benefitted the Authority as it seeks 
to strength its relations with members of the 4th estate, a key stakeholder in creating awareness about 
the Authority’s mandate. Mugambi holds a Bachelor’s degree in Biotechnology from the Kenyatta 
University.

Mugambi Mutegi
Manager, Communications and External Relations
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Mr. Ochiel has vast experience in the fields of auditing, finance 
and taxation both in public and private sectors spanning over 
sixteen years. He holds a Masters of Business Administration 
(MBA) degree from the University of Nairobi, a Bachelors of 
Commerce degree (Accounting) from Daystar University, 
Certified Public Accountant (CPAK) and Certified Information 
Systems Auditor (CISA) from Strathmore University.

Prior to his appointment as the Manager, Internal Audit at 
the Authority, he served as the Senior Internal Audit and Risk 
Management officer at the Kenya Civil Aviation Authority. His prior work experience were at the 
Kenya Rural Roads Authority (internal auditor), Compassion International (partnership auditor) and 
Kenya Utalii College (senior internal auditor).

Mr. Ochiel’s key responsibilities include offering independent and objective assurance on the 
effectiveness of the internal controls, risk management and governance processes. He is a member 
of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya (ICPAK) and the Information System and 
Control Association (ISACA).

Ochieng’ Ochiel
Manager, Internal Audit

CPA Ambrose Ageng’a is a holder of a Master of Business 
Administration (Finance option) degree from the University 
of Nairobi and a Bachelor of Commerce Degree from the 
Catholic University of Eastern Africa. He is also a Certified 
Public Accountant of Kenya (CPAK) and an active member of 
the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya (ICPAK).

CPA Ageng’a has over nineteen (19) years’ work experience in 
both the private and public sector, having previously worked 
with Mastermind Tobacco, Kenya Revenue Authority and the 

Salaries and Remuneration Commission. He has also been involved in audit committee activities at 
both the County and National Government levels.

Ambrose Ageng’a
Manager, Finance



COMPETITION AUTHORITY OF KENYA  | ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018/19 COMPETITION AUTHORITY OF KENYA  | ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018/19 29

Ms. Anduro was appointed Manager ICT in February 
2019. She has over fourteen years experience in network 
management, database administration, web design, corporate 
communication, hardware and software maintenance and 
user support from the Public Sector. She has been involved 
in various ICT projects, ICT Strategy formulation, execution 
and alignment with business, ICT security, Business 
Continuity Management, Project Management and Forensic 
investigations.

Ms. Anduro has vast experience in information communication and technology field drawn from 
over 12 years’ experience working with the Public sector. She holds a degree in Business Information 
Technology from Kenya Methodist University, Diploma in Computer Studies from Pwani University. 
She is also a qualified Microsoft Certified Solutions Associate and Microsoft Certified Professional. 
She has attended various management courses including Corporate Governance, Risk Management, 
Information Security management and Business Continuity management. She is an active member of 
the Computer Society of Kenya.

Mercelline Anduro
Manager, ICT

Mr. Masinde holds a Master of Business Administration 
(MBA) degree (Procurement & Supply Chain Management) 
from the University of Nairobi, Bachelor of Business 
Administration (BBA) and possesses a postgraduate Diploma 
in Purchasing and Supply Chain Management (CIPS-UK), 
Diploma in Supplies Management (KNEC) and a Procurement 
Practitioners License from the Kenya Institute of Supplies 
Management.

He holds professional memberships to the Kenya Institute for 
Supplies Management (KISM) and the Chartered Institute of Purchasing and Supply (UK).

Mr. Masinde is an accomplished professional in Supply Chain Management with over ten (10) years’ 
experience.

Walter Masinde
Manager, Supply Chain Management
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Mr. Boniface Kamiti (left), Manager, Consumer 
Protection, during a courtesy call to Nyeri Governor, 
H.E Mutahi Kahiga, on 15th March 2019 as part 
of commemorating the annual World Consumer 
Rights Day.



COMPETITION AUTHORITY OF KENYA  | ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018/19 COMPETITION AUTHORITY OF KENYA  | ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018/1932

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Authority’s Board is established under section 
7 of the Act and comprises the Chairman and 
five (5) independent, non-executive members, 
appointed from among persons experienced in 
competition and consumer welfare matters.

The Board is responsible and accountable to 
the Government and adheres to the highest 
standards of corporate governance and ethics as 
well as ensuring compliance with all applicable 
laws. It is committed to ensuring that the 
Authority’s obligations, roles and responsibilities 
to its various stakeholders are fulfilled through 
its corporate governance practices. The Board 
Members and Management perform their duties 
with impartiality, honesty, transparency and 
accountability, professionalism, integrity, care 
and due diligence and act in good faith to the 
best interests of the public.

Further, the Board is committed to ensuring 
that ethics and integrity remain at the core of 
the Authority’s operations. It recognizes that 
ethical management is key to the Authority’s 
sustainability and is therefore, continuously 
putting in place practices, systems and processes 
to integrate ethics in all the Authority’s operations. 
All new Members and staff undergo mandatory 
induction training that includes ethical conduct 
and are required to sign the Code of Ethics and to 
adhere to its principles and provisions.

The Board also includes the Principal Secretaries 
to The National Treasury and Planning; the 
Ministry of Industry, Trade and Co-operatives 
and the Hon. Attorney – General. The Director – 
General is an ex-officio member and secretary to 
the Board. The Board brings together Members 
from different professional backgrounds (see 
figure 1) with diverse skills, competencies.

The Board as constituted complies with the 
constitutional gender balance requirements as 
shown in figure 2 on the next page, with the 

female members constituting 56% while the male 
directors are 44%.

Figure 1: Board professional background
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THE BOARD CHAIR
The Chairman provides leadership and governance to the Board and ensures that the Board plays 
a full and constructive part in the development and determination of the Authority’s strategies and 
policies. He also ensures that the Board is supplied with timely and sufficient information to enable it 
discharge its duties effectively. In furtherance of the above, the Chairman ensures adherence to good 
corporate governance practices and procedures, and continuously promotes the highest standards 
of integrity, probity and corporate governance throughout the Authority and particularly at Board 
level.

ROLE OF THE BOARD
The Board is responsible for overall strategic direction and policy guidance of the Authority. In this 
regard, the responsibilities of the Board include:

The Board’s key achievements during the 2018/19 FY were:

Figure 2: Board’s gender representation

i.	 Proposed amendments to the Competition Act;
ii.	 Approved and continually monitored the implementation of the Authority’s Annual Strategic 

Plans and Budget;
iii.	 Implemented the Authority’s Performance Contract with The National Treasury and 

Planning;
iv.	 Reviewed the Authority’s financial controls, financial statements and reporting systems 

based on both strategic and long-term plans;
v.	 Oversaw an increase in the absorption amounts from Ksh. 399.1 million in 2017/18 to Ksh. 

525.4 million in 2018/19;
vi.	 Oversaw the Authority’s management of enterprise risk and approved all significant 

corporate actions, among others;
vii.	 Rolled out of the Staff Mortgage Scheme;

i.	 Establishing short and long-term goals of the Authority and develop strategies to achieve 
these goals;

ii.	 Monitoring the Authority’s performance against these set goals;
iii.	 Overseeing the preparation of annual financial statements and reports;
iv.	 Approving annual budgets; and
v.	 Ensuring that the Authority has adequate systems of internal controls together with 

appropriate monitoring of compliance activities to ensure business continuity.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
There are four (4) standing committees of the Board which assist it to discharge its functions and 
responsibilities electively. Operations of each committee are defined in the terms of reference 
approved by the Board. In order to adequately interrogate issues presented by the management, the 
Board constituted the following Committees within the Financial year: -

Technical and Strategy Committee
The committee consisted of five (5) members, namely; Mr. Stephen Kiptinness (Chair), Ms. Leila Ali, 
Ms. Redempta Oyeyo and Ms. Elizabeth Ng’ang’a. The Director-General, Mr. Wang’ombe Kariuki is 
an ex-officio member of the committee.

The Committee is mandated to guide on Strategic Planning, Performance Targets: implementation 
of the Act, work with management on the technical aspects of the operational performance and 
functions of the Authority.

Human Resources Committee
The Committee consists of five (5) members, namely; Ms. Carol Musyoka (Chair), Ms. Eunice 
Maranya, Dr Abdirizak A. Nunow and Mr. Wekesa Khaoya. The Director General is an ex-officio 
member of the committee.

This Committee is mandated to review Human Resource policies and succession planning of the 
Authority in order to ensure compliance with national policies and legislation. It is also mandated to 
organize the structure and performance evaluation of Senior Staff, oversee and advise the Board on 
recruitment and promotion of the senior staff.

Audit Committee
The Committee consisted of four (4) members, namely; Dr. Abdirazak Nunow (Chair), Mr. Stephen 
Kiptinness, Ms. Elizabeth Ng’ang’a and Mr. Martin Khaoya. 

This Committee is mandated to periodically review the Authority’s financial reports in liaison 
with the External Auditors, review the Authority’s financial statutory and non-statutory reporting 
obligations and provide oversight on risk assurance and mitigation measures implemented; and 
checks on effectiveness and robustness of internal control measures.

Finance Committee
The Committee consisted of five (5) members, namely; Ms. Eunice Maranya (Chair), Ms. Leila Ali, 
Ms. Redempta Oyeyo, Ms. Carol Musyoka and Mr. Wang’ombe Kariuki (Director–General). The 
Director General is an ex-officio member of the committee.

This Committee is mandated to review the budgeting processes, propose measures to broaden 
sources of finance, review the interface between the Authority’s resource inputs and outputs and 
advise on internal financial control systems and oversight on financial reporting.

viii.	Adopted an E-Board system to enhance efficiency in coordination of Board and management 
meetings;

ix.	 Adopted a policy on circular resolutions to increase efficiency in determination of Board 
matters; and

x.	 Provided finances for the operationalization of the Case Management System (CMS) and the 
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system.
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Board Membership and Attendance
The Board meets at least once every quarter depending on the exigencies of the business. The Board 
has established four standing committees to assist in the execution of its responsibilities: Technical 
& Strategy, Finance, Human Resources and Audit. The Board held eleven (11) meetings and three 
(3) retreats to deliberate on items that could not be discharged during a normal Board meeting. The 
number of meetings for the Board and Committees were held as shown tables 1&2 below: -

Board 
Member

Classification Designation Technical 
& Strategy 
Committee 
(Total 
number of 
meetings 
held: 9)

Finance 
Committee 
(Total 
number of 
meetings 
held: 4)

Human 
Resource 
Committee 
(Total 
number of 
meetings 
held: 8)

Audit 
Committee 
(Total 
number of 
meetings 
held: 5)

Full Board 
Meetings 
(Total 
number of 
meetings 
held: 11)

Amb. 
Nelson 
Ndirangu

Independent 
member

Board 
Chairman 
(appointed in 
May, 2019)

n/a n/a n/a n/a 2

Mr. Wekesa 
Khaoya

Representing 
PS National 
Treasury

Member 
(appointed in 
October, 2018)

n/a n/a n/a 3 4

Ms. 
Redempta 
Oyeyo

Representing 
PS Ministry 
of Industry, 
Trade & 
Cooperatives

Member
(appointed in 
February, 2019)

4 1 n/a n/a 5

Ms. 
Elizabeth 
M. 
Ng’ang’a

Representing 
Hon. Attorney 
General

Member 4 n/a n/a 4 8

Table 1: Board Membership and Attendance for the Current Directors for the FY 2018-2019
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Board 
Member

Classification Designation Technical 
& Strategy 
Committee 
(Total 
number of 
meetings 
held: 9)

Finance 
Committee 
(Total 
number of 
meetings 
held: 4)

Human 
Resource 
Committee 
(Total 
number of 
meetings 
held: 8)

Audit 
Committee 
(Total 
number of 
meetings 
held: 5)

Full Board 
Meetings 
(Total 
number of 
meetings 
held: 11)

Mr. David 
Ong’olo

Independent 
member

Board 
Chairman 
(term expired 
in February 
2019)

n/a n/a n/a n/a 6

Ms. Carol 
Musyoka

Independent 
member

Chairman 
Human 
Resource 
Committee 
(2nd term 
expired in June, 
2019)

n/a n/a 8 n/a 8

Ms. Eunice 
Maranya

Independent 
member

Member (1st 
term expired in 
June, 2019)

n/a 4 7 n/a 11

Mr. 
Michael 
Onyancha

Representing 
PS Ministry 
of Industry, 
Trade & 
Cooperatives

Member 
(served 
from 2012 to 
February, 2019 
)

5 3 n/a n/a 5

Mr.
Stephen 
Kiptinness

Independent 
member

Chairman 
Technical 
& Strategy 
Committee
(2nd term 
expired in June, 
2019)

9 n/a n/a 5 8

Dr. 
Abdirazak 
A. Nunow

Independent 
member

Chairman
Audit 
Committee
(1st term 
expired in June, 
2019)

n/a n/a 7 5 11

Ms. Leila 
Ali

Independent 
member

Member
(1st term 
expired in June, 
2019)

6 2 n/a n/a 7

Mr. Protus 
Sigei

Representing 
PS National 
Treasury 

Member
(served 
from 2012 to 
October, 2018)

n/a n/a n/a 2 3

Table 2: Board Membership and Attendance for Directors whose Terms Expired During the FY 2018-2019
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i.	 Empowering the Authority to carry out market inquiries on Abuse Buyer of Power matters.
ii.	 De-linking the abuse of buyer power provisions from the abuse of dominance provisions to 

do away with the misinterpretation under section 24 of the Act that abuse of buyer power 
can only exist once dominance has been established.

iii.	 Expanding the criteria for assessment of abuse of buyer power.
iv.	 Introducing a provision listing the acts which qualify as abuse of buyer power.
v.	 Introducing a provision on minimum requirements for the contractual relationship between 

buyers and suppliers.
vi.	 Providing for development of Codes of Practice by players in the various economic sectors 

and for the Codes to be anchored under the Act.
vii.	 Providing for abuse of buyer power under section 31 of the Act to clarify that investigations 

under the Act also cover such case.

BOARD TRAINING/INDUCTION
The Board was inducted on the mandate of the Authority as provided for in the Competition Act 
No. 12 of 2010. In addition to this, the Chairman was trained on Mwongozo in the June 2019. The 
induction and training took place in Kenya.

BOARD EVALUATION
Board evaluation is key in assessing the performance, efficiency and effectiveness of an organization. 
The Authority undertakes regular annual performance evaluation of its Board to enable it to review 
its strategies to ensure continuous growth and sustainability. The evaluation exercise is conducted 
by the State Corporations Advisory Committee (SCAC). In 2018, the Board scored 4.6067 out of 5 
marks, representing 92.13%, an excellent score.

BOARD REMUNERATION
Members are remunerated in accordance with the State Corporation Advisory Committee guidelines. 
Directors are entitled to a sitting allowance for every meeting attended, lunch allowance (in lieu of 
lunch being provided), accommodation allowance and mileage reimbursement where applicable. In 
addition, the Chairman is paid a monthly honorarium and issued with airtime.

COMPETITION (AMENDMENT) BILL, 2019
Competition agencies world over, have amended their laws with the intention of addressing chal-
lenges faced when enforcing their competition laws. These challenges have been in form of gaps 
in the law which have the effect of limiting the ability required to address a competition issue; a 
contradiction in the provisions of the law or a need to buttress the provisions of the law to empow-
er the agency. In Kenya, for instance, the competition law has previously been amended in 2014 and 
2016 to address challenges faced by the Authority in enforcing the Act. Amendments have been in-
troduced to empower the Authority to sufficiently address competition issues that have arisen from 
time to time. Towards addressing the above challenges, during the year under review, the Board 
proposed the following amendments which have the objective of:-

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS
In addition, the Authority proposed introduction of a penalty for failure to comply with section 29 (1) 
which requires that professional associations submit their professional rules to the Authority, where 
such rules contain a restriction, for approval.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

payment dates and interest accrued upon failure 
to honor this agreement. This Bill also recognizes 
the development of Codes of Practice, a form of 
soft enforcement, governing various sectors. The 
Bill, which we anticipate will be passed into law 
this financial year, also introduces a penalty for 
professional associations that fail to submit their 
Rules containing anti-competitive clauses for 
review by the Authority.

Further, the Authority drafted policy documents 
meant to boost transparency, accountability and 
predictability in our decisions and interactions 
with stakeholders. These policies are expected to 
lower the cost of doing business in the country, 
enhance efficiency in business transactions, thus 
improving our investment climate.

The Authority draws approximately 70% of its 
budget from the National Treasury and Planning. 
We are grateful for the support accorded to us as 
is evidenced by the budget growth from Ksh. 525 
Million in FY 2015/16 to the Ksh. 553.2 Million 
FY 2018/19. Improved enforcement efforts have 
greatly supplemented this allocation through 
fines and penalties.

On behalf of the Board, it is my pleasure to 
present the Annual Report and the Financial 
Statements for FY 2018/19 in which we describe 
our efforts to promote competition and consumer 
welfare and highlight the Authority’s financial 
performance. The Authority continued to focus 
its interventions in sectors that have significant 
impact on the majority of the Kenyan population, 
while fostering innovation and growth.

The year under review stood out for many 
reasons. Top among them is the fact that the 
country’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) 
expanded by 6.3% in 2018, compared to 4.9% in 
2017. According to the Economic Survey 2019, 
this growth resulted from vibrant agriculture, 
manufacturing, transport and service sectors 
and a stable macroeconomic policy. This was 
evidenced by an increase in the number of 
merger notifications submitted to the Authority 
during FY 2018/19.

The Authority continues to play a role in 
facilitating economic growth. The Government’s 
Big 4 Agenda sets out ambitious, but achievable, 
goals touching on the manufacturing sector, 
universal healthcare, food production and 
affordable housing. The Authority has a key role 
to play in each of these sectors. The Authority 
reviewed its Strategic Plan 2017/18 – 2020/21 in 
order to align its activities and its interventions 
to support the realization of Big 4 Agenda.

Towards developing an effective regulatory 
regime to support the Authority’s enforcement 
agenda, the Authority proposed amendments to 
the Act, through the Competition (Amendment) 
Bill, 2019. Specifically, the Bill proposes 
deepening the Buyer Power provisions within 
the Act by providing that buyers must provide 
suppliers with contracts explicitly indicating 

1.4%
Gross Domestic Product (GDP) 

expansion from 2017 - 2018

The Authority has 
been feted 2 years in 
a row for being the 
best Government 
agency applying the 
International Public 
Sector Accounting 
Standards (IPSAS) 
Accrual basis of 
reporting
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The Authority’s greatest asset is its talented 
and professional employees who have, over the 
years, been recruited through a rigorous and 
competitive process. The Board, in recognition 
of the staff’s centrality to the success of the 
organization, has approved twenty nine (29) 
policies meant to improve their welfare and 
make the Authority the employer of choice. 

For instance, the Authority has implemented Staff 
Mortgage and Car Loan schemes at attractive 
rates.

Good corporate governance is central to the 
Authority’s existence. The Authority is guided by 
policies and procedures which are monitored on 
various levels, beginning with the Board through 
the four (4) technical committees. It is important 
to highlight that due to this, the Authority was 
feted at the 2018 Financial Report (FiRe) Awards 
for being the best Government agency applying 
the International Public Sector Accounting 
Standards (IPSAS) Accrual basis of reporting. This 

was the second year in a row that the Authority 
emerged top in this category. The Board has 
continued to record stellar performance in the 
evaluation by the State Corporations Advisory 
Committee. During the FY 2017/18 evaluation, 
the Board’s overall score was 4.6065 out of 5 
which is equivalent to 92.13%.

I remain grateful to my fellow Board members, 
and the Management for the support accorded 
to me so far. It is with this kind of cooperation, 
Teamwork and hard work we shall be able to fulfil 
our statutory mandate of increasing consumers’ 
welfare.

Amb. Nelson Ndirangu, OGW
Chairman
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DIRECTOR GENERAL’S STATEMENT

its enforcement efforts to ensure that pending 
investigations are finalized, attendant remedial 
interventions implemented, as well as initiate 
new inquires that have the potential of positively 
impacting a large number of Kenyans.

Already, the Authority has proposed amendments 
to the Competition Act No.12 of 2010 seeking 
to strengthen its enforcement mandate. The 
Competition (Amendment) Bill, 2019, among 
other things, proposes that buyers must provide 
suppliers with contracts explicitly indicating 
payment dates and interest accrued upon failure 
to honor this agreement.

The proposed law advocated for the development 
of Codes of Practice, a form of soft enforcement 
governing various sectors and which serve as 
alternative dispute mechanisms. Further, the 
Bill, which we anticipate will become law in FY 
2019/20, introduces a penalty for professional 
associations that fail to submit their Rules 
containing anti-competitive clauses for review 
by the Authority.

Another key achievement of the FY 2018/19, 
also borne of an amendment to the Act, was 
the formation of the Buyer Power Department 
within the Authority. This Department 
investigates businesses abusing their influence 
over suppliers. The Department prioritized its 
initial investigations on the retail industry, the 
worst affected, but will, in the FY 2019/20, extend 
its interventions to sectors with a bearing on 
the realization of the Big Four Agenda, while 
ensuring maximum societal impact.

An oft-mentioned fact is that SMEs are a 
catalyst of inclusive growth and development. 
In recent years, several small businesses have 
closed shop due locally for various reasons. The 
Authority is confident that the interventions it 
has implemented or proposed to address anti-
competitive practices, accompanied by those 
taken by other Government agencies, will help 
address the mortality rate among SMEs and 
boost their already significant contribution to the 
country’s GDP.

It gives me utmost pleasure to present the 
Annual Report and Financial Statements for 
the FY 2018/19, highlighting the Authority’s 
major achievements and activities planned 
for the medium term. The Authority is in the 
second year of implementing its Strategic Plan 
2017/18 – 2020/21 which pays special attention to 
enforcement of competition law and policy and 
amplified advocacy initiatives.

During FY 2018/19, the Authority reviewed 
and aligned its Strategic Plan to the Big Four 
Agenda, focusing our interventions on areas 
the Government has earmarked as enablers 
of socioeconomic development. The Plan also 
considered the Vision 2030 Blueprint, the Medium 
Term Expenditure Framework III (MTEF) and 
the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).

Through these sector-specific investigations, 
the Authority extinguished anti-competitive 
practices and consumer welfare infractions 
found to be impairing economic growth and 
disenfranchising consumers from choice, 
competitive products and innovation.
In the FY 2019/20, the Authority shall step up 

34%
Increase in consumer complaints

141
Number of finalized mergers in FY 2018/19

7th
Kenya improved 19 positions to position 
61 globally and was ranked as the 7th most 
improved country globally.
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One the goals of the Authority’s 
Strategic Plan is enhancing 
transparency, accountability 
and predictability of its 
decision-making process. 
Towards this, the Authority 
reviewed its Market Definition 
Guidelines, taking into account 
the challenges faced when 
regulating the digital sector 
in light of advancements in 
competition law enforcement. 
The Guidelines introduce 
globally mainstreamed 
concepts like Big Data, 
multisided markets and digital 
markets. They also provide 
transparency and clarity to our 
stakeholders about why market 
definition is a critical process 
during merger analysis and 
how the Authority conducts it.

While on the subject of digital 
markets, it is important to 
mention that Kenya Digital 
Economy Blueprint envisions 
that all arms of Government 
adopt technology to improve 
service delivery, promote 
transparency and reduce 
corruption, save costs, among 
other benefits. Increasingly, 
digital media is becoming the 
preferred channel through 
which Kenyans interact with 
Government to provide 
feedback, register complaints 
and seek services.
During the financial year 
under review, the Authority 
launched a public portal 
enabling stakeholders submit 
applications and register 
consumer complaints online, 
eliminating the need for 
physical applications. The 
Authority has also automated its 
support processes like Human 
Resource and Procurement 
as part of a progressive and 

deliberate effort to fully digitize 
its operations.

Automation has greatly 
reduced the time in which the 
Authority analyzes applications 
and process saving investors 
valuable time and money. 
Regulatory roadblocks can have 
a negative impact on economic 
progress and development and, 
therefore, the Authority, in its 
quest to facilitate businesses, 
ensures that it dispenses with 
applications submitted to it 
in the shortest time possible, 
while remaining true to 
professionalism, transparency 
and predictability.

It is therefore, noteworthy that 
the Authority finalized one 
hundred and forty one (141) 
mergers during the period 
under review. The average time 
taken to dispense these cases 
was 37 days, representing an 
improvement from the previous 
year’s average of 44 days.

Automation of our processes 
is anticipated to improve these 
lead-times going forward. 
This commitment speaks to 
the Government’s concerted 
efforts to improve the country’s 
business environment to 
support existing businesses and 
attract new investors. The fruits 
of the initiatives manifested 
in the country’s improved 
performance in the World 
Bank’s Ease of Doing Business 
Index 2019. Kenya improved 19 
positions to position 61 globally 
and was ranked as the 7th most 
improved country globally. The 
ultimate beneficiary of effective 
competition is the consumer. 
Towards this, the Authority 
stepped up our sensitization 

activities to educate consumers 
about their rights under 
the Act and how to register 
complaints with the Authority. 
This was done through 
various channels, including 
during the observation of 
the World Competition Day, 
World Consumer Rights Day, 
County Sensitization Forums 
and Nairobi Innovation 
Week. Further, the Authority 
revamped its website giving 
stakeholders (local, regional and 
international) access to timely 
and relevant information in a 
modern and easy-to-consume 
format. One significant feature 
of the Authority’s new website 
is that it is now friendly for 
use by stakeholders who have 
visual and audio challenges. 
These sensitization activities, 
which are being conducted 
through new and traditional 
media, are bearing fruits. 
During the financial year 
under review, the number of 
consumer complaints increased 
by 34%, from one hundred and 
two (102) to one hundred and 
thirty six (136). This indicates 
that consumers are more aware 
about the remedies available to 
them and the various channels 
through which they can lodge 
complaints.

Globalization has blurred 
geographical borders. From 
a competition law and policy 
enforcement standpoint, this 
is evidenced by an increased 
number of cross-border merger 
applications. While this is 
commendable, it has also 
resulted in the proliferation of 
transnational anti-competitive 
practices presenting a unique 
challenge to competition 
enforcers. 
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To better understand this evolving environment, 
Kenya, in conjunction with the COMESA 
Competition Commission, hosted a Restrictive 
Business Practices Workshop to build capacity 
among member agencies on investigative 
tools and techniques aimed at extinguishing 
competition infractions. In addition, the Authority 
participated in a Merger Workshop organized 
by the Africa Competition Forum (ACF) aimed 
at empowering competition agencies with 
requisite skills and knowledge in an increasingly 
changing merger analysis environment. While 
the Authority commits to facilitate business 
- through continually improving its officers’ 
capacity, increasing its sensitization initiatives, 
automating its processes, and updating its 
processes and procedures, among others --, it is 
imperative that the regulated commit to operate 
within the law. During the year under review, the 
Authority investigated eighteen (18) Restrictive 
Trade Practices (RTPs) cases, up from fifteen (15) 
cases in FY 2017/18. One of these cases, which 
is elaborated further in this Report, sought to 
determine and extinguish cartel-like behavior 
in the paints manufacturing industry. This 
investigation has been partly resolved so I will 
refrain from articulating finer details of the matter. 
However, these RTP cases point to the fact that, 
while a competition culture is entrenched in the 
country, there are some enterprises that are still 

keen on conducting business through unlawful 
means. They stand cautioned that conduct such 
as price-fixing, abuse of dominance, market 
allocation, among other practices, are illegal and 
punishable under the Act.

The achievements highlighted above are a result 
of collaboration and support from different 
stakeholders. I would like to appreciate our parent 
ministry, the National Treasury and Planning, for 
the continued financial and technical support. 
The Board has equally been instrumental in 
enabling the Authority achieve what is set out 
to do in the financial year under review. I would 
like to thank Mr. David Ong’olo, the outgoing 
Chairman, for the sober and skilled leadership 
with which he stewarded the Board for 6 years. 
Equally, and on behalf of the Management, I 
would like to welcome the incoming Chairman, 
Ambassador Nelson Ndirangu. Last but not 
least, the Authority is powered by a very skillful 
and professional workforce. Our staff are our 
greatest asset and the achievements highlighted 
in this report are as a result of their hard work. 

Wang’ombe Kariuki, 
MBS Director General
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Mr. Adan Feisal (right), a Senior Investigations Officer, Enforcement & Compliance Department, 
waters a tree with a pupil from Gituamba Primary School, Naivasha. The Authority planted 500 
indigenous trees in the school in June 2019 as part of ongoing efforts to increase the country’s 
tree cover.
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Ms. Catherine Katam, an Administration Assistant at the Authority, sensitizes Nyeri County 
residents about their consumer rights, obligations and the complaints handling process during the 
commemoration of the World Consumer Rights Day on March 15, 2019. The Authority, which had 
set up camp at the Dedan Kimathi Stadium after touring several towns, also registered complaints 
from consumers for investigation.
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Mr. Linus Melly (right), Senior Analyst, Mergers & Acquisitions 
Department, sensitizes stakeholders about the Authority’s 
mandate during the Nairobi Innovation Week in June 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

INTERNAL AUDIT AND ASSURANCE
The Internal Audit Department has continued to 
proactively work with management throughout 
the Financial Year 2018/19 to provide assurance 
that the existing internal controls and processes 
are in place and optimized for effective and 
efficient risk mitigation.

As a Third Line of defense, the aim of Internal 
Audit is to deepen good governance practices 
and support the achievement of effective internal 
controls through continuous monitoring and 
follow up. The objectivity and independence of 
the Internal Audit function is enhanced through 
governance support from the Board Audit 
Committee.

The Internal Audit Department was able to attain 
100% coverage of its Annual Work Plan through 
its proactive team and cover the entire Authority 
through internal audit assignments.

Through quarterly audit reviews, the 
compliance levels to approved policies and 
relevant legislations were assessed as well as the 
adequacy, design and operational effectiveness 
of internal controls. The Office of the Auditor-
General provided the external assurance through 
a systems and financial audit on the various 
expenditure cycles and business processes of the 
Authority.

CORRUPTION PREVENTION
The Authority has a zero-tolerance policy 
towards corruption. The Authority undertook 
various sensitization and training initiatives 
to educate and sensitize staff members on the 
phenomenon of corruption, obligations of State 
and Public Officers under the Leadership and 
Integrity Act, 2012 and the Bribery Act, 2016 
as well as enlightening members on ways of 
fostering good governance in Public Sector 
institutions. This was aimed at raising the culture 
of integrity, ethical conduct and professionalism 
in the Authority. Further, in order to bolster 
the Corruption prevention activities in the 
departments, the Authority through the help of 
Ethics and Anti-Corruption Commission trained 
four Integrity Assurance Officers.

Corruption Risk Assessments were carried out 
on a quarterly basis in all functional areas to 
ensure robust mitigations plans were in place, 
obtain an update on the implementation status 
of mitigation plans and ensure corruption risks 
were adequately updated. There were zero cases 
of corruption reported during the financial year.

A Corruption Perception Index (CPI) survey 
was carried out in the year under review which 
indicated an index of 0.8237 which is low as per 
a scale of 0-3 with 0 being low and 3 as high 
corruption rating. Converted to a percentage, the 
rating is 72.55%, which is low rating indication 
compared to the National Corruption Perception 
Index is 27% while the global average perception 
index is 43%. In the coming financial year 
the Authority shall introduce the following 
additional measures to ensure the perception 
tends towards zero;

WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY
The Authority has a whistle blowing policy 
that provides for an ethics hotline, email and 
corruption reporting box. Through these 
channels, anonymous reports on unethical/
fraudulent behaviour can be made without fear 
of retaliation from the suspected individuals.

RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk Management is a strategic function of the 
Authority’s business and is applied in the day 
to day operations across all departments. This 
ensures that all risks are managed optimally and 
comply with the approved policies and tenets of 
good corporate governance.

The Authority’s Risk Management Framework 
was operationalized in the financial year 
2017/18. It encompasses practices relating to the 
identification, analysis, evaluation, treatment, 
mitigation and monitoring of both Strategic and 
Departmental risks to achieve the Authority’s 
key objectives as envisaged in its Strategic 
Plan 2017/18-2020/21. Risk management 
seeks to minimize the adverse impact of risks 
thus enabling the Authority to leverage on 
opportunities effectively.
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In the year under review, the Authority continued 
to implement the various mitigation strategies 
to ensure that the risk levels are minimized 
by continuously monitoring the mitigation 
measures, reviewing timelines, engaging the 

Risk Management Committee through quarterly 
meetings to evaluate risks, continuous training 
of risk champions and sensitization of staff 
members on risk.
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THEME 1:	 DELIVERING EFFECTIVE 	
		  ENFORCEMENT

1.	 REGULATION OF RESTRICTIVE 
TRADE PRACTICES

The Authority under Section 9 of the Act is 
mandated to enforce compliance with the Act 
through investigation of alleged prohibited 
conduct under the Act. Pursuant to Section 31, the 
Authority is empowered to initiate investigation 
upon receipt of complaint or after taking 
cognizance of possible violation through its own 
intelligence and other means. Parties to conduct 
prohibited (cartels) under Section 21 and 22 of 
the Act may, however, be granted exemption 
upon application if benefits of such arrangements 
outweigh negative effect on competition.

Section 30 of the Act provides for Block/Category 
Exemption to certain prohibited practices 
under Section 21 and 22 of the Act. This is 
aimed at reducing transaction costs and allow 
the Authority to concentrate its resources on 

material contraventions of the law. During the 
financial year, the Authority started developing 
the guidelines to facilitate the operationalization 
of this provision.

During the period under review, the Authority 
investigated eighteen (18) Restrictive Trade 
Practices (RTPs) cases. Eight (8) of these were 
finalized and appropriate remedies imposed. 
Three (3) applications for exemption were 
received, evaluated and finalized. Two of which 
were granted approval without conditions and 
one with conditions.

Additionally, the Authority carried out initiatives 
to ensure compliance with its decisions, 
orders and commitments by parties. Further, 
the Authority provided advisory services to 
undertakings, an initiative which enhanced 
voluntary compliance with the Competition Act. 
The RTPs and exemption applications handled 
during the period under review is illustrated in 
Fig 3.

AUTHORITY’S PERFORMANCE
BASED ON THE STRATEGIC PLAN THEMES

Figure 3: RTPs cases per sector handled in 2018-2019
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As illustrated in figure 3 above, majority of the cases handled (22%) during the financial year are 
from Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing sector which was followed by the manufacturing sector with 
seventeen (17) percent. An emerging scenario was witnessed during the period where investigations 
were conducted in non-traditional sectors like e-commerce, education and publishing.

Some of the RTP cases investigated during the period

INVESTIGATION INTO THE PAINTS INDUSTRY 

Pursuant to section 31 of the Act and through its market intelligence, the Authority initiated 
investigations on its own motion into the paints manufacturing sector, to determine whether key 
players in the sector were engaging in collusive determination of prices and other terms of trade. 

Having obtained a court warrant, the Authority undertook a search (Dawn Raid) at the premises 
of the top four (4) paint manufacturers namely Crown Paints PLC, Basco Products (K) Ltd, Plascon 
Paints Kenya Ltd and Galaxy Paints and Coatings Ltd. Basco Products (K) Ltd initiated settlement 
proceedings in the matter pursuant to the provisions of Section 38 of the Act and a Settlement 
Agreement was entered into. The evaluation of the evidence obtained with regard to the remaining 
three parties was ongoing at the time of reporting.

COMPLAINT AGAINST SHREE CUTCHI LEVA PATEL SAMAJ SCHOOL

The Authority received a complaint in July 2018 alleging that the management of Shree Cutchi Leva 
Patel Samaj School and College (SCLPS School) was making it mandatory for parents to acquire 
laptops from the school for E-learning and not delineating the costs of the laptops from the school 
levy. The school is comprised of nursery, primary, secondary and college and offers subjects for 
the International General Certificate of Secondary Education (IGCSE) “O” Level certificate. The 
complaint was investigated pursuant to the provisions of Section 21(3) and 56(4) of the Act. 

Upon receipt of the complaint the Authority issued a cease and desist order under Section 37 of the 
Act, premised on the fact that the likely harm of the arrangement on the parents/guardians could 
be irreparable. The said section empowers the Authority to issue an interim relief, upon belief on 
reasonable grounds, that an undertaking is engaging or is proposing to engage in conduct that 
constitutes an infringement of Part 3 of the Act.

Following completion of the investigations, the Authority established that tying parents/guardians 
to purchase the laptops from the school was not based on any commercial or technical justifications. 
The school was therefore ordered to: 

Allow all parents to purchase laptops from alternative vendors and suppliers provided that they meet the 
required specifications; 

Formally communicate to the parents who still opt to obtain the laptops from the school, the breakdown of all 
the costs involved in the acquisition of the same; and Delineate the cost of the laptop from other school levies in 
order to facilitate parents willing to acquire the laptops from other sources to nevertheless pay the other relevant 
levies.
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EXEMPTION APPLICATIONS

A.	 EXEMPTION APPLICATION BY COOPER K-BRANDS LIMITED AND 
ITS STRATEGIC BUSINESS PARTNERS

Cooper K-Brands Limited (CKL) and its Strategic Business Partners (SBPs) applied for an exemption 
from the application of Part III of the Competition Act for a period of five (5) years. Cooper K- Brands 
Limited specializes in manufacture and distribution of livestock nutrition, veterinary products, crop 
protection and nutrition products.
Specifically, the parties sought exemption of various clauses as follows:

The Authority granted exemption on exclusive distributorship agreements between Cooper-K 
Brands and its Strategic Business Partners for a period of five (5) years from the date of the decision 
on condition that the termination clauses are amended to provide for reasonable termination notice 
period. This is based on the fact that CKL does not hold a dominant position in the submarkets for 
herbicides, pasture & seeds and fungicides & insecticides.

However, the Authority rejected exemption in respect to clauses on territorial allocation, non-compete 
obligations and resale price maintenance because:

B.	 KOKO NETWORKS LIMITED (KENYA) AND VIVO ENERGY KENYA 
LIMITED

KOKO Networks Limited (KNL) and Vivo Energy Kenya Limited (VEK) submitted application 
for exemption for some of the provisions contained in their Wholesale Concession and Operating 
Agreement for a period of ten (10) years.

KNL is a subsidiary of KOKO Networks Limited (Mauritius), a technology company that has 
developed and owns a proprietary suite of hardware and software technologies for cooking and 
distribution of liquid denatured ethanol cooking fuel (the Technology Platform).

VEK is a downstream energy company which deals in importation, supply, distribution and sale of 
petroleum products like Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG), automotive fuels, lubricants, aviation fuels 
and fuel oil.

i.	 Clauses on product exclusivity: prohibiting its SBPs from engaging in competing brands 
without prior approval;

ii.	 Clauses on territory allocation: prohibiting its SBPs from making active and passive sales 
outside allocated territories:

iii.	 Clauses on restricting sales; prohibiting its SBPs from engaging in retail sales in direct 
competition with retailers;

iv.	 Clauses on resale price maintenance: requiring its SBPs to sell the products at a minimum 
price as directed by Cooper K-Brands Ltd.

i.	 The applicant(s) failed to demonstrate factually and convincingly the indispensability of the 
restrictions in creating stability to the industry;

ii.	 Competition among the SBPs, and that between the SBPs and stockists, is likely to spur intra-
brand competition and will benefit the farmers.

The parties sought the following exemptions on exclusivity and price fixing:

i.	 Exclusivity with respect of an arrangement with Vivo who will distribute the KOKO Ethanol 
to the KOKO Agents appointed by KOKO Networks Limited;

ii.	 Exclusivity for Vivo to distribute the KOKO Ethanol to KOKO Networks Kenya’s Agent 
Network for sale at KOKO points;
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The Authority’s assessment of the proposed arrangement concluded that:

The Authority granted in relation to product exclusivity for a period of five years since the exclusivity 
arrangement by the two firms has a minimal effect on the market; and rejected the application for 
exemption with regard to joint price setting by the parties because agreements to fix prices amount 
to a hard-core restriction under the Act and the applicants did not provide overriding public interest 
in its support.

The parties’ intent to sell liquid denatured ethanol in small quantities will make it more affordable to 
the low income consumers and will likely lead to:

COMPLIANCE INITIATIVES
The Authority is mandated under section 9(1)(a) to ensure compliance with the Act. Consequently, 
the Authority conducted various initiatives during the reporting period to ensure compliance with 
decisions it made under various provisions of the Act as highlighted below.

A.	 COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS ON THE ACQUISITION BY 
TOTAL OUTRE-MER S.A OF THE ENTIRE ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL 
OF GULF AFRICA PETROLEUM CORPORATION (GAPCO)

The Authority approved the acquisition of 100% of the issued share capital in Gulf African Petroleum 
Corporation by Total Outremer S.A in October 2016 pursuant to the powers conferred upon it by 
Section 46(6)(a)(ii) of the Act.

i.	 Ethanol as a cooking fuel/solution together with other cooking fuels accounts for 3.4% of the 
cooking fuel market nationally, 5.4% and 2% in the urban and rural markets respectively. 
Therefore, the detriment to competition from the exclusivity arrangement will be very 
minimal;

ii.	 The exclusivity will promote the technical and economic progress and stability in the cooking 
fuel industry through increased production of ethanol and modernization of the domestic 
manufacturing process;

iii.	 Agreements to fix prices is a hard core restriction under the Act, the applicants did not 
provide overriding public interest in its support. Therefore, the application and justifications 
by the applicants with regard to price setting did not satisfy the threshold set by section 
26(3); and

iv.	 The application for exemption and justifications by the applicants with regard to exclusivity 
satisfied the threshold set by section 26.

iii.	 Exclusivity for KOKO Networks Kenya in respect of the distribution in Kenya from its sister 
company in India, of the KOKO Consumer Hardware; and

iv.	 The ability for KOKO Networks Kenya and Vivo to jointly set the prices at which the ethanol 
cooking fuel will be sold to end users of the KOKO Hardware based on a cost-plus model.

i.	 Significant health and environmental benefits resulting from the use of ethanol, a clean fuel, 
as an alternative cooking solution to traditional firewood, charcoal and kerosene; and

ii.	 Creation of competition in the cooking solutions market in Kenya and benefiting low income 
consumers by providing affordable cooking solutions.

Some of the issues raised by the Authority were that the transaction was likely to raise;

i.	 Competition concerns in the market for the storage of petroleum products at Mombasa 
Terminal II owing to the fact that the target undertaking was the single largest private player 
in the provision of petroleum storage facilities; and

ii.	 Negative public interest concerns on employment.
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To remedy these concerns, the merger was approved with the following conditions:

To ensure compliance with the conditions imposed on the parties, the Authority conducted the 
1st anniversary post-merger compliance exercise relating to short term employment contracts and 
hospitality conditions. Based on the information availed to the Authority, it was observed that Total 
had complied. The Authority will continue with the post-merger compliance checks to ensure 
protection of public interest and viability of the third parties that heavily relies on the storage facilities.

B.	 COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS ON THE ACQUISITION OF 
GENERAL MOTORS LIMITED (GMEA) BY ISUZU MOTORS LIMITED 
(ISUZU)

The Authority, in May 2017, approved the acquisition of 57.73% of the shares in General Motors by 

To ensure compliance with the conditions imposed on the parties, the Authority conducted a post- 
merger compliance exercise relating to the conditions. The findings of the compliance exercise 
indicated that Isuzu Motors complied with the conditions attached to the approved merger.

i.	 The post-merger entity was prohibited from terminating short term employment contracts 
for 2 years from the date of the implementation of the merger and renew those contracts that 
were due to expire before the period;

ii.	 Not to terminate any permanent and pensionable long term employment contracts of 
GAPCO employees before the end of the 2 year period from the date of the implementation 
of the merger;

iii.	 Respect all hospitality agreements that GAPCO had entered into with the third parties on or 
before 21st July 2016 in relation the Mombasa Terminal II; and

iv.	 The Merging parties shall maintain the existing policy of hospitality at Mombasa Terminal II 
available to third parties and entering into relevant agreements with third parties for 3 years 
from the date of the implementation of the merger.

Isuzu Motors with the following conditions:
i.	 All the three hundred and eighty-three (383) General Motors employees are absorbed;
ii.	 Aftersales services of all the Isuzu and Chevrolet vehicle brands sold and leased by GMEA 

for the duration of the contracts are adhered to;
iii.	 All existing dealerships agreements between GMEA and its dealers are honored; and
iv.	 All GMEA customers are informed about the continuation of aftersales services as in (b) 

above.
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2.	 REGULATION OF MERGERS
Mergers are regulated under Part IV of the Act. All mergers (horizontal, vertical or conglomerate) 
in the economy require approval by the Authority before implementation. The object of merger 
control is to ensure that undertakings do not acquire, preserve or strengthen their market power or 
dominance through merger or acquisition, which they can use to negatively affect competition and 
consumers.

During the Financial Year under review, the Authority handled/processed a total of one hundred 
and sixty two (162) notifications, out of which one hundred and forty one (141) were finalized while 
twenty one (21) were ongoing at the close of the year. The merger notifications were mainly from 
manufacturing, real estate, financial & insurance services, energy, distribution and ICT sectors which 
accounted for 52.5%.

Of the transactions that were handled, forty five (45) met the thresholds for full merger analysis as 
provided in the Merger Threshold Guidelines. Ninety six (96) satisfied the criteria for exclusions and 
hence were excluded from the provisions of Part IV of the Act. In addition, forty one (41) notifications 
did not qualify as mergers in terms of section 2 and 41. Table 1 compares transactions handled during 
the FY 2017/18 and 2018/19.

Merger transactions

Transactions excluded 
from provisions of Part IV 
of the Act

Mergers with international 
dimension excluding non-
mergers

Mergers with local 
dimension excluding non-
mergers

Non-merger transactions 
(restructuring & advisory 
opinions)

Transactions carried 
forward

2017/18

2018/19

2017/18

2018/19

2017/18

2018/19

2017/18

2018/19

2017/18

2018/19

2017/18

2018/19

106

141

2

33

82

66

21

41

87

54

148

96

Table 1: Comparison of transactions handled during the FY 2017/18 and 2018/19.
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Transactions labelled ‘Other sector’ include sectors that recorded less than two (2) notifications 
during the year. Some of the sectors are mining, printing, retail, pharmaceuticals among others.

Figure 4: Number of mergers handled per sector in 2018/2019

Figure 5: Trends in Merger Notifications during the last three (3) financial years

REGULATION OF MERGERS, FOCUS ON THE MANUFACTURING, ENERGY 
AND AVIATION SECTORS

The Authority, in its endeavor to support realization of the Big Four Agenda has paid special attention 
to the mergers and acquisitions in the manufacturing and energy sectors.. It has also noticed an 
increase in merger notifications in the aviation sector in Kenya.
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A.	 MANUFACTURING SECTOR

The year under review has seen 52.94% of all the filed mergers and acquisitions touching directly on 
the Big Four Agenda sectors.
Some of the major transactions that were considered by the Authority in the year under review 
include;

ARYSTA LIFESCIENCE AND UPL CORPORATION

The transaction involved the acquisition of Arysta Lifescience, a Kenyan entity that is engaged in the 
supply of insecticides, by UPL Corporation, an Indian Controlled entity that deals in crop protection 
chemicals. The transaction was crucial to the Agrochemicals industry which is a key player in ensuring 
food security. Additionally, it enabled farmers to get access to a wider variety of agrochemicals from 
India which provided a diversity from the American type of agrochemicals. 

The merger was approved on condition that the merged entity continues packaging the target’s 
agrochemical products in small packages ranging from 50ml/50g to 1litre/1Kilogram and maintain 
the distribution model of the target, which entails; a national agent; distributors and stockists, and 
the organization of farmers’ trainings on agrochemical products.

This would ensure that the farmers who depend on products from the target are able to gain access 
to the products after the merger and thus food production is not affected.

GOLDEN BISCUITS AND TRUFOODS

The Authority considered and determined the acquisition of Golden Biscuits by TruFoods. The 
transaction was unique in that it would salvage a failing firm that was experiencing financial 
difficulties. The merger led to the retention of the brand in the market and thus ensured that the 
market structure did not change.

Further, through the Authority’s intervention, the acquirer was required to retain not less than half of 
the employees of the target thus salvaging employment.

ABYSSINIA IRON AND STEEL AND TOP STEEL 

Abyssinia Iron and Steel acquired Top Steel in a transaction that saw over Ksh. 1 billion invested in 
the iron and steel sector. The Iron and Steel products are a major contributor of construction sector 
and as such, the merger will ensure continued supply of steel.

The iron and steel sector study that was concluded in 2017 by the Authority informed the decision in 
approving the merger unconditionally based on the fact that such conditions were likely to generate 
efficiencies to both entities that have been operating at below 50% capacity and thus increase their 
competitiveness.

Generally, the sector has experienced investments geared towards increasing capacity to handle the 
expected influx in demand for inputs into the various drivers of the Big Four Agenda.
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B.	 THE ENERGY SECTOR

Unlike other sectors, new solutions of clean power generation have elicited investments interest in 
Kenya which has seen continuous increase in merger notifications from 9 in 2017/2018 to 13 (an 
increase of 44%) during the 2018/2019 FY. Generation and use of this type of power compared to 
traditional ones is likely to increase efficiency and benefits in economic empowerment of rural 
population, health and environment.

This has resulted in an increase in merger notifications targeting investments in the non-traditional 
energy sectors such as solar energy, wind energy, geo-thermal among others. During the FY 2018/2019, 
the Authority handled thirteen (13) transactions in the energy sector as compared to nine (9) in the 
previous year. Majority of these transactions involved foreign investors who invested in rural areas 
in-terms of micro grids solar system targeting small group of people.

According to parties to the merger transactions and a UNDP study1, adoption of cheaper clean 
sources of energy especially in the rural areas has resulted in economic, health and environmental 
benefits. Such benefits include; cheaper and cleaner power than grid power, creation of jobs and 
social benefits, increased access to information technology, has reduced deforestation, reduction 
in smoke exposure hence decrease in acute respiratory infections and eye ailment and improved 
hygiene through effective management of excreta and waste management (biogas power).

In the Financial Year 2018/2019, the following transactions in the energy sector were reviewed; 

These transactions were fast racked with determination being done in less than 30 days after receipt 
of all information. This is due to the fact that they were found to be pro-competition and also support 
social economic development of the rural population.

i.	 Fairfax Africa Holdings Incorporation and Consolidated Group Limited,
ii.	 Novastar Ventures East Africa Fund 1 LP & FPCI Energy Access Venture Fund and Paygo 

Energy Limited,
iii.	 AEP Africa Limited and Iber Africa Power (E.A Limited),
iv.	 Olea Holding SA & Siachi Home SAS and the Grup Limited,
v.	 FPCI Energy Access Ventures Fund and Holdco Solarise Africa Limited,
vi.	 Mau LLP and Aldwych Holdings Limited, and
vii.	 IFM and VTTI BV, and
viii.	Azura Power Limited and Thika Holdings Limited.

C.	 THE AVIATION SECTOR

Mergers and acquisitions in the transportation sector are typically explained as attempts to capture 
economies of scale and scope through shared infrastructure and related cost-saving measures. In the 
past 15 years, the global airline industry has seen an increasing number of international mergers and 
acquisitions.

During the financial year under review, the Authority received and determined three (3) merger 
notifications in the aviation sector. The transactions are as described below:



COMPETITION AUTHORITY OF KENYA  | ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018/19 COMPETITION AUTHORITY OF KENYA  | ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018/19 57

In conclusion, the Authority anticipates increase in mergers in non-traditional sectors such as 
renewable energy and aviation and towards this we are continuously building capacity to facilitate 
analysis of merger applications in these sectors.

D.	 MARKET DEFINITION IN THE BANKING SECTOR

When Analyzing mergers in the banking sector, the Authority takes into consideration the 
classification of banks by the Central Bank of Kenya (CBK), a regulating body mandated to watch 
banking activities in the economy. The classification has three peer groups based on a Weighted 
Composite Index (WCI) that comprises net assets, customer deposits, capital and reserves, number 
of deposit accounts and number of loan accounts.

Guided by the CBK classification, the Authority assesses the market shares in the different categories 
that include; total net assets, total deposits, total shareholders’ funds, total number of deposit accounts 
and number of loan accounts using a composite weighted index (CWI).

It is worth noting that while banks may focus more on one or be stronger in certain aspects of banking 
broadly their products offerings are in three main business lines, namely 
(i) Retail banking
(ii) Corporate banking and
(iii) Non-banking products such as the sale of short-term insurance as agent for various underwriters.

DYNASTY ACQUISITION CO INC. (DYNASTY CO) AND STANDARDAERO 
HOLDING CORP. 

The proposed transaction involved the acquisition of 100% of the share capital of StandardAero 
Holding Corp by Dynasty Acquisition Company Inc. Dynasty Co is a special acquisition vehicle while 
StandardAero is involved in the provision of maintenance, repair and overhaul (MRO) services to 
engines original equipment manufacturers (OEMs), business aviation, military and industrial power 
owner/operators and has a single service center at Wilson Airport in Nairobi. StandardAero uses 
small mechanical equipment to carry out its MRO activities.

LONGVIEW AIRCRAFT COMPANY AND BOMBARDIER INC.

The proposed transaction involved the acquisition of all of the assets related to the Q Series Program 
and the de Havilland trademark from Bombardier by LAACL. The Asset Purchase Agreement covers 
all the assets and intellectual property associated with the Dash 8 series 100, 200, 300, as well as the 
Q400 program operations at the Downsview manufacturing facility in Ontario, Canada. In Kenya, 
Bombardier will cede its entire Q400 series program to the acquirer.

STITCHING DEPOSITARY PGGM INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDS AND 
MACQUARIE AIRFINANCE LIMITED

The proposed transaction involved acquisition of 25% interest in Macquarie Airfinance Limited 
by Stiching Depositary PGGM Infrastructure Funds with joint control.Stiching Depositary PGGM 
Infrastructure Fund is a fund established under Dutch law. Macquarie AirFinance Group Limited 
(MAGL) is incorporated in the United Kingdom and is active in the worldwide market for aircraft 
leasing. A subsidiary of MAGL leases aircraft to a Kenyan airline.
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NIC BANK AND CBA BANK

The transaction involved a share swap between the two banks leaving NIC as the surviving entity. 
The two entities are involved in the provision of retail and corporate banking services of deposit 
taking, lending, forex trading, financing of trade and other auxiliary banking activities.

While each party may focus more on or be stronger in certain aspects of banking, their products 
offerings can be classified into three main business lines, namely (i) Retail banking (ii) Corporate 
banking and (iii) Non-banking products, specifically, the sale of short-term insurance as agent for 
various underwriters.

Retail banking entails current accounts, savings accounts, lending, Micro-lending and credit cards. 
On the other hand, corporate banking entails providing current accounts and fixed deposits for 
corporate bodies, lending and investment banking of brokerage and corporate advisory services. 

Based on the above, the Authority identified two relevant product markets that were likely to be 
affected by the transaction; market for retail and corporate banking services; and market for Insurance 
intermediaries.

In the market for retail and corporate banking services, there are 42 licensed banks in Kenya 
according to the CBK. Based on asset base, the current market shares and concentration for the top 
players in the market for retail and corporate banking services are as follows: Kenya Commercial 
Bank (KCB) (14.14%), Cooperative Bank of Kenya (9.93%), Equity Bank (9.85%), Standard Chartered 
Bank (7.11%), Diamond Trust Bank (6.72%), Barclays Bank of Kenya (6.57%), Commercial Bank of 
Africa (CBA) (6.05%), CFC Stanbic (5.65%), I & M Bank (4.78%), NIC Bank (4.62%), Others tier 2 and 
3 banks (24.58%).

The post-merger, the market share of merged entity was found to be 10.67% making the merged entity 
the second largest bank by market size index. However, the merged entity will face competition from 
the other tier 1 banks controlling over 55.32% of the market.

In the market for insurance intermediaries, there are eight thousand one hundred and twenty-three 
(8,123) licensed insurance Intermediaries According to Insurance Regulatory Authority, the regulating 
body. Most banks also operate agency services and compete with other agencies. Additionally, the 
insurance agencies also provide insurance services directly to their customers.

Generally, insurance provided directly by the insurance companies account for about 18% of the 
market share. Agents on the other hand accounts for 50.5% of the market, with the brokers controlling 
the remaining 31.5% of the market. The transaction was found unlikely to raise competition concerns 
due to the minimal accretion likely to result in this market.

Mergers Implemented Without the Authority’s 
Approval

Parties to a proposed merger are obligated by 
Section 42(3) of the Act to notify the Authority 
of any proposed merger and/or acquisition 
before it is implemented. Within the year under 
review, the Authority investigated five (5) 
mergers that had been implemented without the 
Authority’s approval. The parties were penalized 
an aggregate amount of approximately Ksh. 

2,760,810.00.

The Authority offers free advisory opinions and 
therefore, parties have no excuse regarding their 
failure to notify. Parties in doubt should consider 
consulting the Authority, either in writing, via 
a telephone call or by visiting the Authority’s 
offices. The Authority received twenty (20) 
requests to provide advisory opinions on various 
distinct types of mergers and acquisitions to 
which the parties were advised accordingly.
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Revised Market Definition Guidelines

The Authority has reviewed the Market Definition 
Guidelines in order to encompass new trends 
such as digital economy. This is geared towards 
supporting growth in this sector as encapsulated 
in the Kenya Government’s MTP III of Vision 
2030 and the Digital Economy Blueprint. The 
reviewed Guidelines, while cognizant of the 
need to facilitate innovation and growth in the 
digital economy, take into account the challenges 
faced when regulating this sector in light of 
advancements in competition law enforcement.

The Guidelines introduce globally mainstreamed 
concepts like Big Data, multisided markets and 
digital markets. They also provide transparency 
and clarity to our stakeholders about why 
market definition is a critical process during 
merger analysis and how the Authority conducts 
it. This process was undertaken through a 
consultative process Nationally, Regionally and 
Internationally.

3.	 ABUSE OF BUYER POWER

The term ‘buyer power’ refers to the circumstance 
in which the demand side of a market is 
sufficiently concentrated that buyers can exercise 
market power over sellers. A buyer with market 
power is able to influence the bargaining process 
and force suppliers to reduce price below the level 
that would emerge in an otherwise competitive 
market. The buyer is also able to force other 
terms of supply more favorable than a supplier’s 
ordinary contractual terms.

Price cuts through exertion of buyer power 
reduce sellers’ legit incomes. Section 24(2A) of 
the Act makes it an offence for a party to engage 
in conduct that amounts to abuse of buyer power. 
Contravention of section 24(2A) attracts criminal 
liability. Alternative administrative penalties 
are provided for at section 36 of the Act. They 
include imposition of a financial penalty of up to 
ten percent of the immediately preceding year’s 
gross annual turnover of the offending party.

The Authority’s Abuse of Buyer Power 
Guidelines provide the process of determining 
accountability under the Act.

An undertaking has buyer power if in relation 
to at least one supplier, it can credibly threaten 
to impose a long term opportunity cost. This 
will be determined based on an analysis of the 
following: the terms of the supply contract; 
actual position and concentration of buyer 
undertakings in the market relative to supplier 
undertakings; commercial significance of the 
products in relation to the buyer undertaking; 
the buyer’s significance to the seller; the ability 
of the buyer undertaking to easily switch to 
competing suppliers and the supplier to easily 
switch buyers and the credibility of a threat to 
use an alternative source of supply.

Acts constituting abuse of buyer power include 
late payment without justifiable reasons in 
breach of agreed terms of payment; demand for 
preferential terms which are unfavourable to the 
suppliers; demanding limitations on supplies 
to other buyers; depressing prices below 
competitive levels; unilateral termination of a 
commercial relationship without notice or subject 
to an unreasonably short notice period without 
an objectively justified reason; use of de-listing 
threats to obtain undue advantage and restrain 
suppliers from raising genuine complaints; 
unjust refusal to accept delivery; transfer or 
risk such as by return of goods which the buyer 
purchased from a supplier and transfer of costs 
which should otherwise be on the buyer to the 
supplier such as by imposing a requirement for a 
supplier to fund the cost of a promotion.

Abuse of Buyer Power Cases

Operationalisation of Abuse of Buyer Power (ABP) 
provisions of the Act continued to be a priority 
agenda of the Authority. During the reporting 
period, the Buyer Power Department created 
after review of the Authority’s organizational 
structure was populated. The Authority was able 
to address concerns of businesses abusing their 
influence over weaker suppliers. The Authority 
investigated nine (9) ABP complaints, four (4) of 
which were finalised and five (5) were at various 
stages of investigation at the close of the reporting 
period. The cases were mainly drawn from the 
retail sector six (6) cases, and the remaining ones 
from the insurance and automotive repair two (2) 
cases and installation, maintenance and repair of 
solar systems one (1) case.
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In order to increase transparency and 
predictability in enforcement, Abuse of Buyer 
Power Guidelines developed the previous 
year continued to be given effect and applied 
in investigation of complaints. They were also 
disseminated to stakeholders through various 
forums and published on the Authority’s website. 

The Authority received and incorporated 
input from relevant government agencies and 
stakeholders into the Draft Competition (Abuse 
of Buyer Power) Rules, 2019 as part of a process 
leading to ultimate presentation to the National 
Treasury and Planning.

The highest percentage of investigations were in the retail sector as illustrated in figure 6. These can 
be attributed to high incidences delayed payments which are sometimes an outcome of ABP.

Figure 6: Buyer Power cases handled in 2018/19 per sector
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THEME 2:	 CONSUMER PROTECTION

The Authority’s mandate of protecting consumers 
is derived from Part VI of the Act. It provides for 
investigations of consumer cases relating to false 
or misleading representations; unconscionable 
conduct; and unsafe, defective or unsuitable 
goods. This mandate is in line with Article 46 of 
the Constitution.

During the period under review, the Authority 
received and investigated one hundred and 
thirty six (136) consumer complaints and also 
initiated investigations on its own motion into 
the manufacturing sector, specifically on edible 
oils, fruit juices, flour and bread, which are still 
ongoing. Also, the Authority provided advisory 
opinions to consumers.

Consumer Related Violations

As earlier indicated, the Authority handled one 
hundred and thirty-six (136) cases in the FY 
2018/19. An increase from one hundred and two 
(102) cases handled in the previous period. The 
increase of thirty-four percent (34%) of reported 
cases is attributable to the increased consumer 
awareness initiatives by the Authority. A total 

of ninety eight (98) were resolved and closed, 
thereby saving the specific consumers over 
Kshs. 1.7 million. Through its intervention, the 
Authority ensures that it deters companies from 
reneging on their obligation to consumers. Thus, 
the service offered to subsequent consumers is 
improved. Thirty nine (39) cases are still ongoing 
as illustrated in figure 7.

The wholesale and retail trade, repair of motor 
vehicles and motorcycles’ sector reported 
the highest number of cases, accounting for 
thirty-seven percent (37%) of the total cases 
handled. Nonetheless, to prove the Authority’s 
interventions are bearing fruit, the cases in this 
sector reduced by 1% compared to last year’s. 
There was a notable increase (15%) in cases 
handled in the manufacturing sector during 
the period, up from 0.06% handled in the 
previous financial year. This was as a result of 
the Authority’s proactive investigations in the 
manufacturing sector, as illustrated in figure 8.

Further, new complaints were received in the 
accommodation and food service sector, as well 
as in agriculture, forestry and fishing sector. 
Additionally, the Authority provided nineteen 
(19) advisory opinions to consumers.

Figure 7: Consumer cases FY 2018-2019
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Figure 8: Comparison of cases between FY 2017/18 and FY 2018/19

Complaint against Harambee Sacco - Section 55 (False or Misleading Representations) and section 
56 (Unconscionable Conduct in the Financial Services Sector)

A complaint was lodged with the Authority in January 2018, by a consumer alleging that she applied 
for a development loan of Ksh. 336,000 in May 2012, at an interest rate of 12% per annum, which 
she was to repay in 48 months. She was required to pay Ksh. 7,000 monthly on reducing balance to 
offset the loan, but the terms and conditions were changed from 12% to 18% per annum, without any 
notification from the SACCO. In December 2017, she was informed that she had been underpaying 
her loan and she owed the SACCO an amount of Ksh. 212,283.60. As a result, the SACCO had 
recovered the amount from her shares without her knowledge.

The Authority in its investigations found that the SACCO had made a false or misleading representation 
to the complainant regarding interest on her loan by giving her a loan contract indicating an interest 
rate of 12% per annum. However, the SACCO claimed that interest rates had been reviewed to 18% 
per annum, with no notice to the complainant. The Authority also found the SACCO had engaged in 
conduct that was unconscionable by using its higher bargaining power to offset the alleged defaulted 
loan from her shares without informing her.

The SACCO exercised its right to remedy the conduct through a settlement agreement to the Authority 
pursuant to section 38 of the Act. The SACCO made an undertaking to restitute the complainant’s 
shares together with foregone dividends; recalculation of the complainant’s loan using the original 
and agreed interest rate of 12% per annum, and cancellation of the alleged loan arrears, amongst 
other remedies. The Authority also imposed a financial penalty representing 7% of Kshs 548, 283.60 
being the combined loan amount and shares of the complainant.

This case demonstrates the importance of disclosing to consumers information necessary for them to 
gain full benefit from goods and services as required in Article 46 of the Constitution of Kenya.

Highlights of some of the Consumer Protection Complaints Handled
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Complaint against B Tredy Online Store - Sections 55 (False or Misleading Representations and 
56 Unconscionable conduct)

The complainant alleged that she purchased a dress from an online Instagram store, B Trendy, where 
dresses are advertised using pictures. When she went to pick it up, she was given a very different 
dress from the one on the picture. She asked the seller to give her an exchange or refund but the seller 
refused citing the shop’s policy which does not allow for a refund or exchange once goods have been 
sold.

Upon the Authority’s intervention, B Trendy exchanged the complainant’s dress for a new one. The 
shop also changed its policy to allow consumers to either exchange or obtain a refund for items 
purchased from the store, thereby complying with the Act.

The case shows the vulnerability of consumers who purchase items over the internet. It is therefore 
crucial that online businesses ensure that their terms and conditions do not violate the rights of 
consumers to quality products and the right to compensation.

Complaint against Faulu Microfinance Bank - Section 56 (Unconscionable Conduct in the 
Financial Services Sector)

A complaint was lodged with the Authority by a consumer alleging that he took a loan of Kshs. 
1,500,000 from the Bank in June 2013, repayable in 60 months, at an interest rate of 12% per annum, 
which was later revised to 16% per annum in 2016, without any notification. Upon their calculation, 
they discovered that the loan was attracting an interest rate of about 30% per annum, and not 16% or 
12% per annum, as purported by the Bank. The complainant was of the opinion that the bank did not 
fully disclose all the information relating to the loan.

The Authority in its investigations, found that the consumer was not able to understand the loan 
documents and was not informed of the difference between the flat rate and reducing balance rate. 
According to the consumer, the 12% per annum was cheaper. Additionally, at the point of getting the 
loan, the complainant was not informed of the conversion of the 12% per annum flat rate, to a 20.3% 
per annum reducing balance.

Pursuant to section 38 of the Act, the Bank entered into a settlement agreement and made an 
undertaking to waive all penalty interest amounting to Kshs. 117,991.55 that had accrued on the loan 
due to non-payment; revise the interest rate from 16% per annum to 12% per annum to be applied 
to the remaining loan balance of Kshs. 385, 569.92; and extend the loan repayment period to allow 
settlement of the remaining loan amount. Additionally, the Bank undertook to sensitize its staff on 
the provisions of the Act and consumer protection guidelines.

The case shows that financial institutions need to take initiative to educate consumers regarding 
key terms of service such as charges and fees in financial transactions. The awareness of consumers 
regarding these terms and conditions enhances financial inclusion.
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THEME 3:	 PLANNING, RESEARCH AND QUALITY ASSURANCE

The overall objective of the policy and research activities of the Authority as prescribed in Section 
9 of the Act, is to ensure that the Authority’s decisions are informed by Research. In this regard, the 
Authority undertakes market inquiries, research studies, provides policy advice to government and 
liaises with relevant sector regulators on competition policy and consumer protection matters.

The Act also empowers the Authority to carry out competition advocacy which is one of the main 
pillars of modern competition law that aims at creating, expanding and strengthening awareness of 
competition law and policy in the economy. Section 9 of the Act mandates the Authority to undertake 
advocacy in order to deepen the culture of competition in the economy. The policy, research and 
competition advocacy initiatives undertaken during the financial year are:

A.	 Market Inquiries

i.	 Regional Shipping, Trucking and Haulage Sector study
The Authority conducted a regional study on competition in the Shipping, Trucking and Haulage 
sector along the Northern Corridor. The overall objective was to identify potential competition 
concerns occasioned by the infringement of the competition law through either government 
regulation or industrial practices, in order to reduce the cost of doing business, promote the ease of 
doing business and enhance regional integration.

The key findings of the study included:

i.	 Competitiveness of shipping lines depends on tariff rates, frequency of services, destination 
charges, documentation requirements and other supporting services;

ii.	 Some shipping lines offer other logistical services like Clearing and Forwarding, Container 
Freight Services, Inland Hauling apart from the Traditional Maritime Transport Services;

iii.	 Trucking companies varied widely in fleet sizes, number of employees and the types of cargo 
transported across the Northern Corridor and;

iv.	 There were several Non-Tariff Barriers (NTBs) such as the number of road blocks in each of 
the countries, along the Northern Corridor contributing to the increase of transport costs.

The findings from this study will guide the development of an advocacy framework, and shared with 
the relevant Government agencies in the coming fiscal period.

ii.	 Leasing Sector study

The Authority in collaboration with Financial Sector Deepening Kenya (FSD Kenya) undertook a 
study in the leasing sector with the objective of advising of the development of a leasing framework, 
guided by the Medium Term Plan (MTP) III. Further, the study sought to identify anti-competitive 
concerns in this sector. The study focused mainly on the leasing of medical and agricultural equipment 
and motor vehicles to Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) and other players in the sector.

The study found out that while an effective leasing regulatory framework to support the sector is 
lacking, the market is relatively developed for ‘blue chip’ and multinational clients, unlike for SMEs. 
This is because SMEs leasing is perceived as a risky investment due to lack of credit history information 
and uncertainty over lessor rights in case of default. The major legal and regulatory framework 
problems, as well as fiscal and accounting treatment remain unaddressed, however, market segments 
are concentrated with no signs of collusion, especially with regard to leasing finance to SMEs. Market 
data gaps and lack of understanding of leasing by SMEs remains a significant barrier to SMEs leasing 
and the application of VAT to leases for equipment that, if purchased, would be VAT-exempt, raises 
a cost barrier to leasing by 16%.
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The study recommends the development of a 
leasing framework that clarifies various terms and 
their legal effects, harmonizing these with other 
Act (s) that apply to the sector. It is imperative 
that obligations in law are established, requiring 
leasing companies (including commercial banks) 
to report their leasing activities in a standardized 
format to the relevant government body. Further, 
the Consumer Protection Act No. 46 of 2012, 
Auctioneer Act No. 5 of 1996, Moveable Property 
Rights Act No. 13 of 2017, Hire Purchase Act No. 
42 of 1968 and the VAT Act No. 35 of 2013 should 
be amended and their application revised, 
in order to exempt lease payments for assets 
which are VAT exempt if purchased. The fiscal 
benefits under the Income Tax Act of 1974 such 
as accelerated depreciation on heavy machinery 
should be extended, while at the same time, 
reviewing specific aspects of the Income Tax 
(Leasing) Rules, and permitting accelerated 
depreciation on assets, particularly where this is 
applied to purchases.

The Authority will in the coming financial year, 
develop a policy document to advising the 
National Treasury on the leasing framework that 
will see the uptake of leasing among the SMEs 
increasing.

iii.	 Banking Phase II Inquiry

During the financial year under review, the 
Authority initiated implementation of the 
recommendation of Banking Phase II market 
inquiry by proposing a policy on transparency, 
suitability, choice and credit information system 
in the banking sector. The policy proposed 
the development of a framework on data and 
account portability in the financial sector and 
regulation of non-bank financial institutions 
including digital financial providers. This was 
aimed at achieving financial inclusion, financial 
service innovation, increased interconnectivity, 
increased competition and improved pricing and 
product quality for consumers.

Subsequently the Authority has engaged 
the National Treasury and other relevant 
stakeholders in developing the Consumer 
Protection Framework for the digital financial 
services sector, in the coming fiscal year.

B.	 Partnerships And Networks

In an effort to strengthen partnerships, create 
networks and deepen integration regionally and 
internationally, the Authority interacted with 
regional and international competition agencies 
and other institutions on information exchange 
and sharing of experiences on competition and 
consumer protection. The key highlights are:

i.	 The Centre for Competition Law and 
Economic Policy

The Centre for Competition Law and Economic 
Policy (CCLEP), which is a joint initiative of the 
Authority and the University of Nairobi (UoN), 
held its annual Capacity Building Workshop on 
Competition Law and Economic Regulation. The 
objective of the training was to equip stakeholders 
with requisite knowledge in competition law and 
policy.

Under the auspices of CCLEP, a total of sixty-six 
(66) stakeholders were trained during the year 
under review, adding to a total of three hundred 
(300) stakeholders who have been trained over 
the years, on various aspects of competition law 
and economic regulation. In a departure from 
the previous years, this year’s annual training 
programme was integrated to include both 
theoretical and practical aspects incorporating 
moot cases to help the stakeholders understand 
how the Authority arrives at its decisions. The 
training also introduced Consumer Protection 
session, where participants were trained on the 
Consumer Protection Law.

ii.	 Memorandum of Understanding between 
CAK and other Agencies

•	 Public Procurement Regulatory Authority

The Authority engaged the Public Procurement 
and Regulatory Authority (PPRA) with the 
aim of promoting procedural cooperation 
and coordination when dealing with cases of 
collusive tendering and consumer protection in 
the public sector. Subsequently, a Joint Working 
Group to actualize the implementation of the 
Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) was 
formed.
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Implementation of this MoU is being supported by the World Bank through the National Treasury 
and Planning, as Competition in Public procurement is an enabler of the realization of the Big 4 
Agenda. It also plays a great role in the growth of SMEs, who contribute to creation of employment 
in Kenya. This support was granted under the Development Policy Objective (DPO). Implementation 
will continue for the next three years.

CAK Director-General, Mr. Wang’ombe Kariuki (left), and his counterpart at the Kenya Civil Aviation Authority, Capt. Gilbert Kibe, 
exchange the executed MoU that will guide cooperation between the two agencies.

•	 Kenya Civil Aviation Authority

This co-operation framework is aimed at 
promoting competition and enhancing consumer 
protection in the aviation sector. The framework 
aims at addressing regulatory issues of common 
interest, cooperation in areas of concurrent 
jurisdiction and information sharing. A Joint 
Working Committee between the two State 
Agencies was formed to actualize implementation 
of the MoU. So far, the Authority and KCAA have 
jointly investigated two (2) consumer complains 
relating to the aviation sector, as envisaged in the 
MoU.

•	 Competition Commission of South Africa

As part of implementing the Memorandum of 
Understanding (MoU) between the Authority 
and the Competition Commission of South 
Africa (CCSA), the Commission advanced 
technical assistant to train the Authority’s staff on 
economic analysis in competition enforcement, 
merger analysis and market inquiries.

•	 COMESA Competition Commission

In implementing the cooperation framework 
with COMESA Competition Commission 
(CCC), the Authority engaged CCC on issues 
of bilateral cooperation. The engagement was 
geared towards creating a harmonious cross-
border merger analysis framework, information 
exchange and joint investigation of RTPs. 
Through these interactions, the Authority fast-
tracked RTP investigations and merger analysis. 
Additionally, the Authority in collaboration 
with CCC held a regional workshop on 
Restrictive Business Practices for case handlers. 
The workshop’s main objective was to build 
capacity for case handlers in investigating anti-
competitive business practices in the Common 
Market with a bias in planning, conducting and 
reporting of cases.
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•	 Japan Fair Trade Commission

In executing the MoU signed with Japan Fair Trade Commission (JFTC) in partnership with Japan 
International Cooperation Agency (JICA), twenty six (26) staff from the Authority were trained in 
Japan on Restrictive Trade Practices (RTP), evaluation of exemption applications, merger analysis 
and development of various guidelines. The staff were able to deepen their understanding and gain 
skills on merger analysis and RTP investigations.

C.	 Adoption of International Best Practices

The Authority participated in international 
conferences aimed at sharing information and 
experiences, learning and adopting international 
best practices on competition and consumer 
protection law and policy enforcement. Some of 
the conferences were:

i.	 2019 International Consumer Protection 
and Enforcement Network Conference

The Authority participated in the high-
level International Consumer Protection and 
Enforcement Network (ICPEN) conference. The 
workshop focused on cross-border consumer 
protection cooperation and enforcement. The 
topics discussed were marketing practices 
directed at children in the digital world, sharing 
information for cross-border enforcement, 
international cooperation agreements on 
consumer protection, financial services, 

consumer education, unsolicited sales of goods 
and services and alternative dispute resolution 
systems strategy on ICPEN growth.

The Authority chaired the ICPEN Working Group 
on Unfair and Misleading Market Practices in the 
Financial Services Sector sharing its experience 
on regulation of digital markets. Towards this 
end, guidelines are being developed, to guide 
the improvement of financial literacy among the 
member states.

The Authority also participated in the African 
Consumer Protection agencies training 
workshop on investigations focusing on online 
payments, violation of consumer rights and 
mobile payments. The key recommendation 
from the conference was that there is need for 
increased cooperation and information sharing 
between agencies to effectively address consumer 
protection issues.

CAK staff during a training session on competition law enforcement conducted by the Japan Fair Trade Commission in Tokyo, Japan in 
April 2019.
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The Authority also participated in the African 
Consumer Protection agencies training 
workshop on investigations focusing on online 
payments, violation of consumer rights and 
mobile payments. The key recommendation 
from the conference was that there is need for 
increased cooperation and information sharing 
between agencies to effectively address consumer 
protection issues.

ii.	 The 10th Annual African Consumer 
Protection Dialogue Conference, 2019

The Authority participated in the 10th Annual 
African Consumer Protection Dialogue 
Conference. The theme of the conference 
was, “Celebrating a Decade of Growth for 
African Cross-Border Consumer Protection 
Collaboration”. The objective of the conference 
was to underscore the importance of consumer 
protection cooperation for the region and provide 
best practices for coordination among public 
authorities responsible for the enforcement 
of consumer protection laws. During the 
conference, the Authority’s capacity in handling 
consumer related investigations was enhanced. 
These experiences are useful in informing the 
Authority’s consumer protection enforcement 
efforts.

iii.	 International Competition Network 
Annual Conference

During the period under review, the Authority 
participated in the 18th Annual International 
Competition Network (ICN) Conference hosted 
by the Colombian Superintendence of Industry 
and Commerce. ICN brings together all global 
competition agencies and focuses on inculcating 
best international practices in enforcement of 
competition law and policy.

The objectives of the conference were to share 
experiences on procedural fairness, vertical 
mergers, enforcement cooperation, agency 
organizational design, leniency, private 
enforcement, vertical restraints and to strengthen 
cooperation between ICN members and Non-
Governmental Advisors (NGAs) and promote 
good practice to protect competition.

The Authority was represented in the plenary 
session that focussed on best practices in 

regulating dominance and market power in the 
digital era. The Authority shared its experience 
on interventions in the digital markets like taxi-
hailing, Unstructured Supplementary Service 
Data and digital financial services.

Through sharing experiences between agencies, 
the Authority is able to harness international 
best practices that inform decision making 
and competition enforcement, particularly on 
emerging competition issues. This will go far in 
supporting the Governments Digital economy 
Blueprint.

iv.	 African Competition Forum Merger 
Workshop

The African Competition Forum (ACF) merger 
workshop discussions were anchored on shaping 
participants practical and substantive skills in 
analyzing mergers. The participants from across 
the ACF membership included competition and 
consumer protection agencies from Nigeria, 
Zimbabwe, Mauritius and Eswatini. Regional 
agencies represented were COMESA Competition 
Commission and the East African Community 
Competition Authority. The Authority shared 
its experience on market definition, theories of 
harm and assessment of cross-border mergers. 
This knowledge is useful in analyzing and fast 
tracking both national and cross-border mergers.

D.	 Stakeholder Engagement

i.	 Competition and Consumer Protection 
Forums with County Governments

The Authority conducted advocacy forums in 
eighteen (18) counties and sensitized County 
officials on its mandate as well as Regulatory 
Impact Assessment framework, Competition 
(General) Rules 2019, Buyer Power Guidelines, 
Consumer Protection Guidelines, Guidelines 
on Engagement with Consumer Bodies, Block 
Exemption Guidelines, Merger Threshold 
Guidelines, and Fining and Settlement 
Guidelines.

Sensitization was carried out in the following 
counties; Kericho, Nyamira, Migori, Vihiga, 
Kakamega, Bungoma, Trans-Nzoia, Kajiado, 
Machakos, Kitui, Garissa, Mombasa, Kiambu, 
Muranga, Embu, Isiolo, Laikipia and Nyandarua. 
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Through the forums, the Authority was able to 
increase awareness of its mandate and visibility. 
The emerging issues recorded from these forums 
include support to counties that are developing 
policies to ensure that they are not anti-
competitive, investigations into various mergers 
implemented without approval in different 
counties and capacity building for the County 
officials on competition law and policy.

ii.	 Annual Symposium on Competition Law 
and Economic Regulation

This event brings together stakeholders with 
an objective of deepening their understanding 
of competition enforcement mechanisms and 
fostering competition in the economy.

The Authority held its 5th Annual Competition 
and Economic Regulation Symposium in 
September 2018. The theme was “The Role of 
Competition Law and Policy in Inclusive Growth 
& Development”. The Symposium was attended 
by one hundred and sixty (160) stakeholders 
representing Government agencies, private 
sector players, consumer organizations, law 
firms, development agencies, among others.

The keynote address was delivered by Ms. 
Lynn Robertson (Competition Expert and 
Manager for Africa) Competition Division of 
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and 
Development (OECD). The key topics discussed 
at the Symposium were Competition Regulation 
and Consumer Protection in the big data era, 

non-regulated digital financial services, parallel/
grey imports and how it affects competition and 
consumers in the economy and competition in 
Electricity Supply Industry (ESI).

iii.	 World Competition Day 2018

This is an Annual event observed across the world 
on the 5th December by Competition Agencies 
marking the adoption of the United Nations 
set of multilaterally agreed equitable principles 
and rules for the control of restrictive business 
practices by the General Assembly. The global 
theme was “Digital Economy, Innovation and 
Competition” which was premised on the latest 
innovations that played a great role in disrupting 
traditional markets.

The Authority engaged the general public 
through traditional and new media, shared 
information on competition law and consumer 
protection enforcement.

iv.	 The World Consumer Rights Day

This is an annual event marked on 15th March 
that aims at promoting, protecting and creating 
awareness on the rights of consumers globally. 
The Authority commemorated the World 
Consumer Rights Day (WCRD) in Nyeri County 
under the theme, “Better and Secure Digital 
Products”. Consumers were sensitized on their 
rights with regard to technology and digital 
evolution brought about by the emergence of 
E-commerce.

The Authority’s staff sensitizing the public on Competition and Consumer Protection issues during the WCRD held in Dedan Kimathi 
Stadium, Nyeri County.
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Marking the event in Nyeri County was in line 
with the Authority’s Consumer Sensitization 
Programme dubbed “CAK Mashinani” which 
targets to reach out to the local “mwananchi” 
to create awareness on consumer matters. The 
Authority also sensitized the County of Nyeri 
officials on competition and consumer protection 
issues.

v.	 Sensitization of Consumer Bodies

The Authority, pursuant to Section 9 of the Act, is 
mandated to collaborate with consumer bodies 
on the following areas:

i.	 Promote the creation of consumer bodies 
and the establishment of good and proper 
standards and rules to be followed by 
such bodies in protecting competition and 
consumer welfare; and

ii.	 Recognize consumer bodies duly registered 
under the appropriate national laws as the 
proper bodies, in their areas of operation, to 
represent consumers before the Authority.

The Authority trained consumer bodies from 
different sectors. A total of eight (8) consumer 
bodies namely Consumer Information 
Network (CIN), Consumers of Financial 
Services Association (COFSA), Association 
of Insurance Consumers of Kenya, Kenya 
Consumer Protection and Advisory Committee 
(KECOPAC), Consumer Unity and Trust Society 
(CUTS International), Consumer Downtown 
Association (CDA), Kenya Consumers 
Organization (KCO) and Consumer Grassroots 
Association (CGA) attended the training. The 
main objective of the training was to enable 
consumer bodies to understand and appreciate 
competition and consumer protection law, the 
mandate of the Authority, resource mobilization 
and strategic planning.

vi.	 Sensitization / Training of Stakeholders

•	 Association of Kenya Suppliers: The 
Authority in its bid to increase transparency 
and predictability in enforcement of the 
Abuse of Buyer Power (ABP), disseminated 
the Abuse of Buyer Power Guidelines 
to members of the Association of Kenya 
Suppliers (ASK). The key objective was to 
sensitize them on the guidelines as well as 

enforcement of the buyer power provisions 
in the Act. During the dissemination, the 
Authority also sensitized the ASK members 
on the Act, regulation of ABP, assessment of 
conduct using the guidelines and the role of 
suppliers in the enforcement of the law.

•	 Stakeholder Consultative Forum on 
Competition (Abuse of Buyer Power) 
Rules, 2019: Stakeholders were sensitized 
on the Competition (Abuse of Buyer Power) 
Rules 2019. These included Retail Trade 
Association of Kenya (RETRAK), Kenya 
Association of Manufacturers (KAM), 
Kenya National Chamber of Commerce and 
Industry (KNCCI), Fresh Produce Exporters 
Association of Kenya (FPEAK), Ministry of 
Agriculture, Livestock and Fisheries and 
Council of Governors.

•	 Law Society of Kenya: The Authority 
participated in the Law Society of 
Kenya (LSK) Continuous Development 
Workshops aimed at sensitizing the 
members on the Competition Act. The 
Authority’s presentations covered mergers 
and acquisitions, consumer protection 
and COMESA Competition Commission’s 
rules and regulations. The LSK Members 
were sensitized on their role in ensuring 
compliance and enforcement of the 
provisions of the Act, while representing 
their clients.

•	 Kenya Bankers Association: The Authority 
participated in a workshop organized 
by Kenya Bankers Association (KBA) to 
sensitize its members on the Authority’s 
mandate. The Authority’s presentation 
focused on emerging consumer protection 
issues identified in the banking sector, 
findings of the Banking Sector Phase II 
Study and consumer surveys undertaken 
regarding disclosures and transparency 
in the Digital Financial Services. Members 
were encouraged to develop complaint 
handling mechanisms in order to increase 
the customer satisfaction levels.

•	 Kenya Commercial Bank: The Kenya 
Commercial Bank (KCB) management team 
were sensitized on the Authority’s mandate. 
The sensitization centered on emerging 
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consumer protection issues in the credit 
market. The bank committed to review 
its policies and procedures to ensure that 
emerging issues in the credit market are 
mitigated in order to increase disclosure 
and transparency in information sharing to 
consumers.

•	 Platinum Credit Limited: The Authority 
carried out an awareness creation workshop 
for Platinum Credit Limited management on 
its mandate and discussed emerging issues 
in the credit market. The team committed to 
review its policies and procedures to ensure 
that emerging issues in the credit market 
are mitigated in order to increase disclosure 
and transparency in information sharing to 
consumers.

•	 The Judiciary: The Authority facilitated 
in a training organized by the Judiciary 
Training Institute in collaboration with 
South Sudanese Judges on the East African 
Community Law and its relationship 
with domestic law. The key focus was on 
EAC competition law and policy and its 

relationship with the National Competition 
laws.

•	 Agricultural Society of Kenya (ASK): The 
Authority participated in Kitale and Meru 
ASK Shows. The theme of the ASK Shows 
was “promoting innovation and technology 
in agriculture and trade”. The Authority’s 
key objective was to reach out to the general 
public to inform them of its mandate. The 
Authority sensitized at least two thousand 
(2,000) members of the public.

•	 Nairobi Innovation Week: The Authority 
participated in the Nairobi Innovation 
Week which is an annual event organized 
by the University of Nairobi that brings 
together stakeholders in the innovation 
ecosystem to celebrate achievements and 
discuss issues and challenges affecting 
the innovation space. The event attracted 
various participants including government 
agencies, private sector players, research 
centres, universities, media agencies 
and Embassies. The Authority sensitized 
members of the public on its mandate.

The Chairman of the Association of Kenya Suppliers, Mr. Kimani Rugendo (centre), and the CEO, Mr. Ishmael Bett (seated extreme 
right), during the sensitization workshop on Abuse of Buyer Power.
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Members of the public who visited the Authority’s booth at the Nairobi Innovation Week held at the University of Nairobi in June 2019 
being sensitized on various aspects of competition law, consumer protection and abuse of buyer power.

vii.	 Advisory Opinions

In line with section 9(h) of the Act, which 
empowers the Authority to advise the 
Government on competition law, the following 
advisory opinions were provided:

•	 Data Protection Bill 2018: The Bill was 
introduced to establish a comprehensive 
data protection regime in Kenya and 
aims to protect personal data collected, 
used or stored by both private and public 
entities as well as provide for the right 
to privacy of individuals. The Authority 
assessed the possible effects the proposed 
Data Protection Bill 2018 would have on 
Competition and Consumer Protection. 
In its brief to the Ministry of ICT and 
Innovation, the Authority reiterated the 
need to ensure the Bill enhances consumer 
protection and facilitates competition across 
various markets, where data is essential for 
competition among players focusing on time 
bound access of personal data, fees charged 
by a data controller to access personal data, 
transfer period by a data controller upon data 
porting request, storage of data collected in 

Kenya and liability of data privacy breach 
by third parties.

•	 Petition by the Transport Operators 
Workers’ Union of Kenya on Creation of 
Regulation of Digital Taxi/Cab Operators 
(E-Hailing Apps) in Kenya: The Authority 
presented its advisory opinion to the 
Departmental Committee on Transport, 
Public Works and Housing. Based on its 
mandate, which include regulation of 
market conduct including on price fixing; 
territorial allocation and also Abuse of 
Dominance (foreclosure through exclusive 
agreements, predatory pricing, among 
others) and; advising the government 
and other government agencies in regard 
to competition and consumer protection 
matters. The Authority advised that pricing 
is the most important and fundamental 
benefit resulting from market competition, 
and proposed harmonization of rates will 
extinguish it, to the detriment of consumers’ 
welfare. In addition, there exists free entry 
and minimal switching costs by drivers, 
among the apps based taxis, and also 
between the traditional and apps based 
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industry in Kenya. Tea is generally an 
export commodity (crop) and therefore, 
single marketing and advertisement ensures 
economies of scale relevant to penetrate and 
sustain the competitive global market. The 
current arrangement between KTDA and 
the tea factories does not meet this criteria. 
Indeed, this is a contractual arrangement 
which is time bound. To spur competition, 
innovation and growth in the tea sector is 
desirable to amend, and eliminate some of 
the regulatory barriers that hinder entry in 
the sector. These include a licensing regime 
that requires the benefits the incumbents to 
sanction the entry of a competitor. The Sector 
regulator should also endeavor to facilitate 
entry and manufacture of unorthodox 
tea, which not only increases farmers’ 
earnings but offers credible competition to 
the traditional tea. This could be through 
research and supportive regulatory regime 
including marketing mechanisms.

D.	 Awards / Honours / Recognitions

i.	 Financial Reporting (FiRe) Award

The Authority, for the second time in a row, 
won the Financial Reporting (FiRe) Award 
under the Public Sector Accounting Category. 
This was under the International Public Sector 
Accounting Standards (IPSAS) accrual category. 
This is a prestigious award in East Africa for 
financial reporting sponsored by the Capital 
Markets Authority (CMA), Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants of Kenya (ICPAK), Nairobi 
Securities Exchange (NSE) and the Public-Sector 
Accounting Standards Board-Kenya (PSASB).

ii.	 Agricultural Show Society Award

The Authority was feted at the Kitale and Meru 
Agricultural Shows for having the best non-
agriculture based statutory body stand and the 
best regulatory authority and corporation stand. 
The Authority participates in these events in 
order to interact with its stakeholders across the 
country on its mandate through such advocacy 
initiatives aimed at creating awareness on 
competition and consumer protection issues.

taxis. This ensures that platform providers 
do not possess market power. Threat of 
entry (by new competitors) and exit (by 
partners), ensures constant innovation and 
introduction of new products. Due to the 
importance of the new economy disruptive 
technology including apps based taxis in 
the growth of our economy, the Authority 
in its current Strategic Plan has prioritized 
enforcement in this area (including research) 
to inform the best regulatory regime to 
support the disruptive technology.

•	 Competition in the Telecommunication 
Sector in Kenya: The Authority 
presented its advisory opinion to the 
Parliamentary Departmental Committee 
on Communication, Information and 
Innovation. The Authority posits that 
innovations in the telecommunication sector 
have resulted to the sector becoming a key 
driver in all the major sectors in the economy 
including Banking, transport (Digital taxi 
hailing) and also in Government services. In 
addition, the current Capitalization of Nairobi 
Securities Exchange is 40% Safaricom shares 
and on daily trading it constitutes 30-50%. 
This scenario demands that any regulation 
focusing on the sector should have a Multi-
Agency approach because its ramifications/
effects would cut across all the drivers of 
the economy. Further, the Authority opines 
that the sector regulator should introduce 
credible initiatives to reduce switching 
costs and also ease of entry especially 
through promulgating and publicizing a 
spectrum allocation policy and initiatives to 
progressively minimize the club effect. Any 
regulatory intervention should be aimed 
at supporting and increasing consumer 
welfare and at no time should regulatory 
intervention have an object of deepening 
private shareholder’s gains/profits in lieu of 
consumers’ benefits.

•	 Tea Sector in Kenya: The Authority in 
response to the invitation by the Senate 
AD Hoc Committee on the Tea Sector, 
presented its advisory opinion on the 
perceived monopoly of KTDA in the tea 
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CPA Eric Mwangi (left), Director, Corporate Services, CPA Joshua Ogallo (second right) Senior Investigation Officer, CPA Anthony 
Mutula (right), Principal Accountant receiving CAK’s 2018 Financial Report (FiRe) Award

THEME 4:	 VISIBILITY AND CORPORATE IMAGE

The Authority rolled out initiatives aimed at creating awareness about its role and functions and 
improving the organization’s corporate image. The Authority’s staff appeared on various traditional 
media platforms (print, television and radio) where they articulated various matters concerning 
enforcement of competition law and policy as well as consumer protection. These appearances, which 
targeted an expansive demographic scope, provided the Authority with an opportunity to sensitize 
the public about the various channels through which to contact and interact with the Authority.

In addition to this, social media presence was also enhanced. The Authority’s major announcements 
and activities are regularly disseminated to our stakeholders through new media channels such as 
Twitter, Facebook and YouTube.

The website was revamped, providing stakeholders with a user-friendly source of up-to-date 
information about the Authority, including its latest determinations as well as the instruments that 
guide decision-making. The website is also friendly to Persons with Disabilities.
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Staff by age category below is an indication that 
the Authority‘s establishment is comprised of 
youth as the majority but at the same time well 
represented in the other age bands contributing 

RESOLUTION OF PUBLIC COMPLAINTS

The Authority submits quarterly reports to the Commission on Administrative Justice (CAJ) detailing 
resolution of service delivery complaints, adherence to the commitments of the Authority’s Citizens’ 
Service Charter, and processing of Access to Information requests, among others.
Every Financial Year, the Commission issues a certificate to all public entities and scores them based 
on the aforementioned criteria which, cumulatively, promote efficient service delivery to Kenyans.
Below are the Authority’s scores over the past six years;

THEME 5:	 ORGANIZATIONAL SUSTAINABILITY

1.	 Human Capital

The Human Resource and Administration function supports the achievement of the Authority’s 
mandate as enshrined in Section 13 of the Act by attracting, training and retaining highly qualified, 
skilled and motivated staff.

The Authority has continued to enhance capacity through acquisition of talent to effectively deliver 
its mandate. During the year, a total of nine (9) positions were competitively filled. The current staff 
number is comprised of forty-four (44) male and twenty five (25) female, thus complying with the 
constitutional gender balancing requirement as per the figure 9 below;

to an effective succession management.
The Staff composition complied with the 
Constitutional requirement on regional diversity 
as per the figure 11 below;

Figure 9: Gender Representation Figure 10: Staff age group

CAK’s Annual Scores for Resolution of Public Complaints

92%

FY 2013/14

95%

FY 2014/15

96%

FY 2015/16

101%

FY 2016/17

100%

FY 2017/18

101%

FY 2018/19
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Figure 8: Comparison of cases between FY 2017/18 and FY 2018/19

•	 Disability Mainstreaming - The percentage 
of persons with disability (PWDs) in the 
workforce increased from 1.6% in the prior year 
to 2.8% during the period under review. As part 
of our commitment to supporting PWDs, we 
continue to redesign our office premises to make 
them accessible.

•	 Training and Development - In order to 
enhance staff skills, knowledge and abilities 
in the areas of competition law and policy, 
consumer protection, management and 
leadership amongst other technical areas, the 
Authority facilitated staff members to attend 
various trainings and workshops, locally and 
internationally, individually or in groups with 
the aim of enhancing technical and behavioral 
competencies, learning best practices in various 
jurisdictions.

The Authority also facilitated staff to undertake 
Continuous Professional Development 
programmes geared towards succession 
planning, management and career progression. 
The number of staff trained in specific areas 
include five (5) officers on Leadership Programs, 

fifteen (15) in the Senior Management Course, 
forty eight (48) in Technical Development and 
twenty six (26) in the Continuous Professional 
Development programmes.

The Authority continued to run the one year 
apprenticeship programme with the aim of 
building capacity on Competition Law and 
Policy in the labor market. Towards this, the 
Authority recruited five (5) Young Professionals 
who are Master Degree holders with a bias in 
Law and Economics and below the age of thirty 
(30) years. Towards supporting the government’s 
agenda of equipping the youth with requisite 
skills, the Authority engaged the first group of 
five (5) interns and twenty-four (24) university 
students were also offered Industrial attachment.

•	 Satisfaction and Work Environment Survey 
- During the reporting period, the Authority 
carried out an Employee Satisfaction and Work 
Environment Survey in collaboration with an 
independent consultant. The main objective of 
the survey was to assess the effectiveness of the 
actions taken to address the recommendations 
made by the last survey conducted in the 
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financial year 2015/2016 and establish the current 
employee satisfaction levels and way forward. 
The survey assessed various factors contributing 
to employee satisfaction which include HR 
policies & practices, employee engagement, 
management/leadership, the organizational 
culture, physical environment (work stations, 
health & safety, restrooms, space- ergonomics 
and the social environment).

Perception towards work environment and 
how it impacts on staff morale and productivity 
as well as the levels of employee commitment 
and engagement were measured while the 
following social aspects were gauged: work 
life balance, conduciveness of environment to 
lactating mothers, HIV & AIDS mainstreaming, 
alcohol and drug abuse prevention, disability 
mainstreaming, gender mainstreaming, 
environmental conservation & sustenance, and 
national principles & values mainstreaming.

The Authority’s overall employee satisfaction 
index stands at 79.5% which is a 5.5% 
improvement from its biennial survey. The overall 
satisfaction is majorly driven by feedback and 
work/life balance, benefits and compensation, 
performance management and organization 
relations, information and teamwork.

•	 Skills Gap Audit Survey - The Authority 
conducted its second Skills Gap Audit Survey 
aimed at continually improving the efficiency 
and effectiveness of its employees in June 2019. 
The output of the skills gap analysis guide 
the development of individual training plans, 
identify staff members who have knowledge in 
particular areas, as well as those who lack certain 
skills facilitating the mentoring process within 
teams.

The key recommendations, which relate to 
Technical, Managerial, Leadership, Team Work 
development and Etiquette will be incorporated 
in the financial year 2019/20 training calendar.

Staff Welfare - In its effort to enhance employees’ 
welfare, the Authority promotes employee well-
being at the workplace by providing services 
and benefits that not only motivate them but 
also enhance their productivity. These include 
the provision of a medical scheme for staff- both 
out and in-patient, Group Personal Accident 
-24 hours and Group life –sum assured, an 

Annual employee wellness program and a car 
loan scheme. In addition, the Authority also 
operationalized the Staff Mortgage Scheme with 
the aim of supporting its employees to acquire 
residential houses. The Authority also operates a 
defined contribution Retirement Benefits Scheme 
for its employees on Permanent and Pensionable 
terms of employment, the assets of which are 
held, managed and administered in a separate 
trustee scheme. It also pays service gratuity for 
employees on contract terms of employment.

To enhance a sound and cordial industrial 
relationship across the organization and at the 
same time achieve the work-life balance, the 
Authority held its first Sports day in the period 
under review and also organized a teambuilding 
where all members of staff participated.

2.	 Information And Communication 
Technology

The Authority has embraced technology 
for operational efficiency and effectiveness 
in the achievement of its mandate. During 
the year under review, the Authority fully 
operationalized its core automation projects 
that is, the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) 
and the Case Management system (CMS). The 
stakeholders were trained on how to access the 
Authority’s services through the CMS public 
portal. The portal is an e-platform for filing of 
merger notifications and registering complaints.

The Authority also automated the operations of 
both the Board and Management by the adoption 
of an E-Board system to enhance its efficiency. 
The system enables the Board and Management 
to manage meetings effectively, with advantages 
of reduced paper work and remote attendance 
capability thus reducing traveling and printing 
cost. The system perfectly blends security, 
functionality and optimal user experience. 
The main aim being greater efficiency in Board 
engagements.

The automation of the Authority’s major 
processes has yielded significant reduction in 
printing costs of up to 39.4% in cost of toners 
and 22.5% in terms of printing paper cost for the 
period under review.
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In line with the Buy Kenya Build Kenya initiative 
of promoting local content 60.2% of the total 
tenders were awarded to local suppliers of goods 
and services.

The Authority has automated its procurement 
processes as per the Presidential directive which 
requires all agencies to adopt e-procurement, 
to increase efficiency and cost saving on 
consumables.

4.	 Sensitization on AGPO

The Authority carried out sensitizations to the 
Youth,Women & PWDs in four counties namely 
Meru, Nyeri, Nakuru and Uasin Gishu with 
an aim of sensitizing the target group on the 
provisions of the Public Procurement and Asset 
Disposal Act (PPAD), 2015 and training on the 
procurement portal. The Authority endeavours 
to continue sensitizing Youth,Women & PWDs in 

The Authority improved its ICT infrastructure by procuring additional servers to compliment both 
its production and data recovery sites with the aim of enhancing business continuity. Efficiency 
being a crucial aspect of any organization, the Authority embarked on virtualization by migrating 
from Microsoft Hyper-V to the more flexible VMware environment. This will provide more efficient, 
cost effective ways to reduce downtime, gain IT productivity and increase hardware savings.

Emerging trends indicate that Kenyans have adopted smart devices as one of the ways to access 
information. The Authority therefore embarked on developing a Mobile App as one of the ways 
to reach and provide services to Kenyans. The development is at an advanced stage and will be 
launched in the next financial year.

3.	 Public Procurement

During the period under review, the Authority awarded 36.73% of the total tenders to the 
disadvantaged groups (Youth, Women & PWDs) in compliance with the Access to Government 
Procurement Opportunities (AGPO) policy as per the table 3 shown below:

Ratio of AGPO Contracts in FY 2018-2019

Total Contracts (Ksh)AGPO Percentage

TOTAL

AGPO Contracts (Ksh)

35,996,473.56

182,140,636.10

14,048,682.00

66,911,755.63

46,171,289.38 17,002,880.00

84,985,124.74 27,047,482.63

14,987,748.42Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

58.80%

31.80%

36.82%

39%

36.73%

8,812,711.00
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all counties. This has led to fifteen (15) new AGPO 
registrations from these regions. Additionally 
the sensitization program enabled creation of 
awareness of the Authority.

5.	 Financial Management

The Authority continues to prudently utilize its 
resources towards the achievement of its strategic 
objectives. To this end and within the confines of 
the Public Finance Management Act No. 18 of 2012 
and Public Finance Management Regulations of 
2015, the Authority mobilizes resources mainly 
from the Exchequer, Development Partners and 
approved internal sources. During this period, 
the Authority received Kshs 387.2 million from 
the Exchequer funding while internally generated 
revenue (Appropriation in Aid) amounted 
Ksh. 158.8 million. The Authority also received 
Ksh. 7 million under the COMESA Regional 
Integration Implementation Programme (RIIP). 
The Authority spent a total of Ksh. 525.4 million 
achieving an absorption rate of 95% of the total 
funds allocated.

The Authority will continue to ensure proper 
use of its financial resources by prioritizing its 
activities and strengthening its internal controls 
while at the same time ensuring transparency 
and accountability in its processes. It is important 
to note that internally approved Finance Policies, 
Government Circulars and other relevant laws, 
duly guide expenditure in the Authority. Details 
of the Authority’s financial transactions are 
provided in the Financial Statements as presented 
in the subsequent pages of this report.

6.	 Statutory Committee Activities

In compliance with statutory requirements and 
enhancing employee welfare, the Authority 
maintained operations of the various Statutory 
Committees. The committees include:-

i.	 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Authority sponsored and participated 
in the 2019 Cerebral Palsy Charity Walk as 
part of its Corporate Social Responsibility, to 
raise awareness about Cerebral Palsy as well 
as support the activities of the Cerebral Palsy 
Society of Kenya.

Cerebral Palsy Society of Kenya is a charitable 

Organization working towards the improvement 
of the welfare of children and persons afflicted 
by the disorder in Kenya. The Society supports 
over 500 persons living with Cerebral Palsy 
access rehabilitation, special needs education, 
and economic empowerment. The Society 
provides highly subsidized therapy session for 
the children/persons afflicted with the disorder, 
enabling them attain their realized potential.

The Authority commits to continue positively 
impacting the society within which it operates 
through various CSR projects.

ii.	 Environmental Conservation And 
Sustenance Committee

The Authority continues to be a responsible 
corporate citizen with focus on participation in 
various initiatives as part of its corporate social 
investment strategy and taking responsibility to 
both its external and internal stakeholders.

In line with this commitment, the Authority 
undertook tree planting activities in partnership 
with Kenya Forest Services (KFS) and planted 
one thousand (1000) indigenous trees at Njuri 
High School, Tharaka Nithi County and five 
hundred (500) indigenous trees at Gituamba 
Primary School, Nakuru County.

iii.	 HIV & AIDS

In line with the Maisha II requirement by the 
National Aids Control Council (NACC), the 
Authority sensitized officials from eighteen (18) 
counties on HIV & AIDS during the county 
advocacy forums, with a focus on prevention 
and living positively with HIV & AIDS. Further, 
the stakeholders were sensitized on HIV 
transmission, retroviral therapy and how to deal 
with priority populations at risk of being infected 
with HIV & AIDS. The counties were; Kericho, 
Nyamira, Migori, Vihiga, Kakamega, Bungoma, 
Trans Nzoia, Kajiado, Machakos, Kitui, Garissa, 
Mombasa, Kiambu, Muranga, Embu, Isiolo, 
Laikipia and Nyandarua.

Additionally, during the week-long World 
Consumer Rights Day commemoration that 
took place in Dedan Kimathi Stadium in Nyeri 
County, the Authority sensitized county officials 
and members of the public on HIV & AIDS 
prevention and transmission.



COMPETITION AUTHORITY OF KENYA  | ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018/19 COMPETITION AUTHORITY OF KENYA  | ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018/1980

The awareness creation also focused on ways in 
which the County officials and residents can play 
a role in preventing stigmatization, re-infections 
and also curbing the spread of HIV & AIDS for 
both the infected and affected.

iv.	 Alcohol and Drug Abuse

The Authority being aware that Alcohol and 
Drug Abuse (ADA) is one of the most critical 
challenges facing the world today established 
a committee of twelve (12) members. The 
Committee is mandated to ensure prevention, 
early detection and intervention on substance 
abuse in the workplace, while fulfilling the 
requirements in terms of compliance with the 
National Authority for the Campaign Against 
Drug Abuse (NACADA).

Upon the realization that drug and substance 
abuse problems have detrimental effects on 
the productivity, safety and welfare of public 
institutions as well as the community, the 
Authority put in place ADA workplace policy 

and employee assistance programmes which 
were implemented in the year under review. 
In addition, three (3) sensitizations on ADA 
were conducted to young professionals, new 
employees, interns and attachees.

v.	 National Cohesion and Values

The National Cohesion and Values Committee 
held a training for its members on national values 
and principles of governance, as enshrined in 
Article 10(2) of the Constitution of Kenya 2010. 
The training was facilitated by officials from the 
Directorate of National Cohesion and Values.

Additionally, the Authority was recognized 
under the Presidential 6th Annual Report, 2018 
which informs the State of the Nation Address, 
on the measures it has taken and progress 
achieved in the realization of national values 
and principles of governance. The committee 
also used various platforms like WhatsApp to 
sensitize staff members on the National Values 
and Principles of Governance.

Pupils from Gituamba Primary School in Naivasha, pose for a photo with the Authority staff, including the Environmental Committee 
members after a tree planting exercise at the institution
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STATEMENT OF 
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act No.18 of 2012 and section 14 of the State Corporations 
Act Cap 446, require the Directors to prepare financial statements in respect of the Authority, which 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Authority at the end of the financial year and 
the operating results of the Authority for that year. The Directors are also required to ensure that the 
Authority keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial 
position of the Authority. The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the 
Authority.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Authority’s financial 
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Authority for and as at 
the end of the financial year ended 30th June, 2019. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining 
adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective 
throughout the reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Authority; (iii) designing, implementing 
and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements, and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements, whether due to error or 
fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the Authority; (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting 
policies; and (vi) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
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The Directors accept responsibility for the Authority’s financial statements, which have been 
prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements 
and estimates, in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in 
the manner required by the PFM Act, 2012 and the State Corporations Act. The Directors are of the 
opinion that the Authority’s financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of Authority’s 
transactions during the financial year ended 30th June, 2019, and of the Authority’s financial position 
as at that date. The Directors further confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained 
for the Authority, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the Authority’s financial 
statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Authority will not remain a 
going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The Authority’s financial statements were approved by the Board on 31st July, 2019 and signed on 
its behalf by

Amb. Nelson Ndirangu 						      Wang’ombe Kariuki
Board Chairman 							       Director General
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
ON COMPETITION AUTHORITY
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
ON COMPETITION AUTHORITY
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE, 2019

The notes set out on pages 105 to 121 form an integral part of these Financial Statements
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 30TH JUNE, 2019

The financial statements set out on pages 90 to 102 were approved by the Board of Directors on 31st 
July, 2019 and were signed on its behalf by:

Amb. Nelson Ndirangu, OGW
Board Chairman 

Ambrose Ageng’a
Head of Finance

ICPAK No.3461

Wang’ombe Kariuki, MBS
Director General
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE, 2019
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE, 2019

2018/2019 2017/2018
Note

Kshs Kshs

Surplus from Operating Activities 27,001,120          164,257,377  
Depreciation & Amortisation Expense 9 35,629,363          13,173,125     

62,630,483          177,430,502  
Adjustments for Changes in Working Capital

Increase/(Decrease) in Receivables & Prepayments 18 (1,864,884)           (5,012,645)     
Increase/(Decrease) in Inventories 32 (6,071,208)           -                  
Increase/(Decrease) in Securities and Deposits 17 (299,805,127)      -                  
Increase/(Decrease) in Payables & Accruals 21 40,136,947          (25,207,969)   
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 22 757,077               (54,167)           

(266,847,195)      (30,274,781)   
(204,216,713)      147,155,721  

Purchase of Intangible Assets 19 (17,830,213)        (1,142,679)     
Purchase of Non-Current Assets 20 (24,643,052)        (5,068,310)     

(42,473,265)        (6,210,989)     

Surplus Paid to National Treasury -                       (42,963,330)   
-                       (42,963,330)   

Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (246,689,977)      97,981,402     

Cash and cash equivalents at 1st July 2018 613,874,685        515,893,282  

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 30th June 2019 367,184,708        613,874,685  
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR 
THE YEAR THE ENDED 30TH JUNE, 2019

Notes:

i.	 Other than the depreciation and amortization recognized in the statement of financial 
performance and actual payments for the purchase of Assets included on the face of the statement 
of comparison of budget and actual amounts, there are no reconciling items to warrant a 
reconciliation between surplus as per statements of financial performance and comparison of 
budget and actual amounts.

ii.	 An explanation of differences between actual and budgeted amounts (10% over/ under) have 
been provided in detail under note 34 as required by IPSAS 24.14

Original

Budget

2018/2019

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

Final

Budget

2018/2019

Actual on Com-

parable Basis

2018/2019

Performance 

Difference

2018/2019

Retained Earnings
Revenue
Exchequer Allocation
Fines,Penalties and Levies
Development Partners
Merger Filling Fees-Local
Merger Filling Fees-COMESA
Donor Funding-RIIP
Interest from Fixed Deposits
Other Income
Total Income

Expenses
Employee Costs
Remuneration Directors
Policy,Research and Marketing Enquiries
Contracted Services
Repairs & Maintenance
Finance Costs
General Expenses
Purchase of Assets
Staff Mortgage Housing Scheme

Surplus/(Deficit)

200,000,000

394,000,000
70,000,000
17,700,000
50,000,000
50,000,000
20,000,000
15,000,000

5,000,000
821,700,000

200,000,000

394,000,000
44,000,000

-
50,000,000
50,000,000

7,000,000
17,000,000

3,000,000
765,000,000

200,000,000

387,220,000
4,214,073

-
55,000,600
75,451,772

7,000,000
21,096,186

3,165,985
753,148,615

-

6,780,000
39,785,928

-
(5,000,600)

(25,451,772)
-

(4,096,186)
(165,985)

11,851,385

16,739,933
470,507

1,176,137
90,515

2,266,719
125,206

11,087,851
51,735

-
32,008,603

245,700,000
24,900,000

102,500,000
25,300,000
15,000,000

1,000,000
148,300,00
59,000,000

200,000,000
821,700,000

238,400,000
24,900,000
77,190,000
15,000,000
16,000,000

625,000
150,360,000

42,525,000
200,000,000
765,000,000

221,660,067
24,429,493
76,013,863
14,909,485
13,733,281

499,794
139,272,149

42,473,265
200,000,000
732,991,397

20,157,218
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
AND BASIS OF PREPARATION
1.	 Basis of preparation

The Authority’s annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply with 
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) issued by the Public Sector Accounting 
Standards Board in Accordance with section 194(1)b of the Public Finance Management Act 
No.18 of 2012.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in 
accordance with the historical cost basis of measurement. Assets, liabilities, revenues and 
expenses were not offset. The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya 
Shillings, which is the functional and reporting currency of the Authority. All figures have been 
rounded off to the nearest shilling.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act No.18 of 2012, the 
State Corporations Act Cap 446, and International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS).

1.1	 Adoption of new and revised standards
The Authority did not early – adopt any new or amended standards in the year ended 30th June, 
2019.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the 
preparation of these annual financial statements, are disclosed below.

2.	 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.1	 Going Concern assumption
These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the Authority 
will continue to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months.

2.2	 Materiality
Material omissions or misstatements of items are material if they could, individually or 
collectively, influence the decisions or assessments of users made on the basis of the financial 
statements. Materiality depend on the nature or size of the omission or misstatement judged in 
the surrounding circumstances. The nature or size of the information item, or a combination of 
both, could be the determining factor.

Assessing whether an omission or misstatements could influence decision of users and so be 
material requires consideration of the characteristics of those users. The framework for the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements state that users are assumed to have a 
reasonable knowledge of government, its activities, accounting and a willingness to study the 
information with reasonable diligence. Therefore, the assessment takes into account how users 
with such attributes could reasonably be expected to be influenced in making and evaluating 
decisions.

2.3	 Revenue recognition
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting 
period when those inflows result in an increase in net assets other than increases relating to 
contributions from Government as owner.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
AND BASIS OF PREPARATION CONTINUED
i.	 Revenue from Non-exchange transactions

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-
exchange transaction, the Authority receives value from another entity without directly giving 
approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another entity without directly 
receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Recognition and measurement
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognized as an asset is recognised 
as a revenue except to the extent that a liability is also recognized in respect of the same inflow.
As the Authority satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of 
resources from an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises 
an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

Revenue from non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets 
recognised by the Authority.

a)	 Fines and penalties,
The Authority recognizes revenues from fines and penalties when received and the asset 
recognition criteria are met. To the extent that there is a related condition attached that would 
give rise to a liability to repay the amount, deferred income is recognized instead of revenue.

b)	 Exchequer transfers
The Authority recognizes Revenue from exchequer allocation when the monies are received 
and asset recognition criteria are met. To the extent that there is a related condition attached 
that would give rise to a liability to repay the amount, deferred income is recognized instead of 
revenue.

c)	 Transfers from other government entities
Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at fair 
value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and property) if the 
transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential 
related to the asset will flow to the Authority and can be measured reliably.

Other non-exchange revenues are recognized when it is probable that the future economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the Authority and fair value of 
the asset can be measured reliably.

ii.	 Revenue from exchange transactions
An exchange transaction is one where the Authority receives a fee and in exchange investigates 
and assesses whether a merger is likely to substantially prevent or lessen competition and 
whether a merger can or cannot be justified on substantial public grounds and or for exemptions.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability extinguished, 
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade 
discounts and volume rebates.
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(a)	 Merger filling fees
The Authority recognizes revenue from local merger filling fees by reference to the stage of 
completion when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of 
completion is measured by reference to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of total 
estimated labour hours. Where the outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized 
only to the extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable .The Authority’s share of the Merger 
filling fees from COMESA Competition Commission is recognized when received.

2.4	 Budget information
The Authority is typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget 
authorisations, which is given effect through authorising legislation. Public Finance Management 
Act No.18 of 2012 requires public entities to include in their reports information on whether 
resources were obtained and used in accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The original budget for FY 2018-2019 was approved by the National Treasury on 26th September, 
2018. Subsequent revisions or additional/reduced appropriations were made to the approved 
budget in accordance with specific approvals from the Authority’s board. The additional/reduced 
appropriations are added/subtracted to the original budget by the Authority upon receiving the 
respective approvals in order to conclude the final budget. Accordingly, the Authority recorded 
reduced appropriations of Kshs.56.7M on the financial year 2018-2019 budget following the 
board’s approval.

The approved budget is prepared on an accrual basis and presented by functional classifications 
linked to performance outcome objectives and covers the period 1st July, 2018 to 30th June, 2019. 
As a result of the adoption of the accrual basis for budgeting purposes, there are no major timing 
differences to include in the reconciliation between the actual comparable amounts and the 
amounts presented as a separate additional financial statement in the statement of comparison 
of budget and actual amounts.

A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved 
budget, is presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

2.5	 Property, Plant and Equipment
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset when;
•	 It is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will 

flow to the Authority; and
•	 The cost can be measured reliably.

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of 
the items. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced 
at intervals, the Authority recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives 
and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is 
recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition 
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit 
as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal 
consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value. The useful lives of items of property, 
plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
AND BASIS OF PREPARATION CONTINUED

The depreciable amount of an asset is 
allocated on a systematic basis over its 
useful life.

The Authority assesses at each reporting 
date whether there is any indication that the 
Authority’s expectation about the residual 
value and the useful life of an asset have 
changed since the preceding reporting date. 
If any such indication exists, the Authority 
revises the expected useful life and/or 
residual value accordingly. The change is 
accounted for as a change in an accounting 
estimate. The depreciation charge for each 
period is recognized in surplus or deficit.

Items of property, plant and equipment are 
derecognized when disposed of or when 
there are no further economic benefits or 
service potential expected from the use of 
the asset.

It is the policy of the Authority to charge full 
depreciation on all its non-current assets 
including intangible assets in the year of 
purchase and no depreciation in the year of 
disposal.

2.6	 Leases
The Authority has a running operating lease 
agreement with the Kenya Railways Staff 
Retirement Benefit Scheme that also includes 
an annual escalation clause of 5% for the 
provision of the office block that houses its 

Headquarters. Obligations arising out of the 
operating lease are recognised as an expense 
on a straight line basis over the lease term. 
The difference between the amounts 
recognized as an expense in the Statement of 
Financial Performance and the contractual 
payments are recognised as an operating 
lease liability or asset as appropriate.

2.7	 Intangible Assets
An intangible asset is recognized as an 
asset when;

•	 It is probable that future economic 
benefits or service potential associated 
with the item will flow to the Authority; 
and

•	 The cost or fair value can be measured 
reliably.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less 
any accumulated amortisation and any 
impairment losses. The cost of intangible 
assets acquired in a non-exchange 
transaction is their fair value at the date of 
the exchange.

The amortisation period and the amortisation 
method for intangible assets are reviewed at 
each reporting date.

Furniture and fixtures 8 years

Motor Vehicles 4 Years

Office equipment 8 years

1. Computer equipment 3 years

IT equipment

2. Servers 3 years

Reducing balance

Reducing balance

Reducing balance

Reducing balance

Reducing balance

Item Average Useful LifeDepreciation Method
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The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite. Reassessing the 
useful life of an intangible asset with finite useful life after it was classified as infinite is an 
indicator that the asset may have been impaired. As a result, the asset is tested for impairment 
and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its useful life.
Intangible assets are acquired.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a reducing balance basis, to 
their residual values as follows:

2.8	 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when:
the Authority has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will 
be required to settle the obligation; and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount of the provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to 
settle the obligation at the reporting date.

Where the Authority expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under 
an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the 
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the 
statement of financial performance net of any reimbursement. Provisions are reviewed at each 
reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate and are reversed if it is no 
longer probable that an outflow of economic resources embodying economic benefits or service 
potential will be required, to settle the obligation. The details of the provisions made in preparing 
these Financial Statements are disclosed in note 21.

Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets
The Authority is involved in a number of legal case proceedings that form part of the nature 
of its operations. Due to the inherent uncertainties precipitated by the nature of the cases, no 
accurate quantification of any cost, or timing of such costs, which may arise from any of the legal 
proceedings can be made.

The Authority does not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of any contingencies 
in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits or service potential is remote. Contingencies are disclosed in note 28.

The Authority does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details of a possible asset whose 
existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the Authority in the notes to the financial statements. 

Computer software 4 yearsReducing balance

Item Average Useful LifeDepreciation Method
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
AND BASIS OF PREPARATION CONTINUED

Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately 
reflected in the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic 
benefits or service potential will arise and the asset’s value can be measured reliably, the asset 
and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statements of the period in which the 
change occurs.

2.9	 Changes in Accounting policies and estimates
The Authority recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The 
effects of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is 
impractical.

2.10	Employee benefits
The Authority operates a retirement benefit scheme for all its permanent and pensionable 
employees. Further an amount equivalent to 31% of basic salary has been set aside as gratuity 
for all employees on contract. The provisions for employee entitlements to salaries and annual 
leave represent the amount which the organisation has a present obligation to pay as a result 
of employees’ services provided for at the reporting date. The contribution towards employee 
pension scheme and staff gratuity for employees on contract are recognized in the statement 
of financial performance in the year in which the employees rendered their services to the 
Authority.

2.11	Foreign Currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on 
the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are 
reported at the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on 
that date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from the reporting of 
creditors at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, 
are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

2.12	Related parties
The Authority regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control 
individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Authority, or vice versa. 
Members of key management and their close family members are regarded as related parties and 
comprise the Director General, members of the Authority’s board and Managers. Other related 
parties include; The Competition tribunal and the parent Ministry; The National Treasury. 
Details of transactions with related parties are as disclosed in note 27.

2.13	Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on 
call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in 
value. Bank account balances include amounts held at various commercial banks at the end of 
the financial .The details of the Authority’s cash balances are shown in note 16.

2.14	Commitments
Commitments represent goods/services that have been contracted/ordered, but no delivery has 
taken place at the reporting date. These amounts are not recognised in the statement of financial 
position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of financial performance as the annual 
financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis of accounting but are however disclosed 
as part of the disclosures in note 29.
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2.15	Comparative figures
Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or 
reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

2.16	Subsequent events
Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur 
between the reporting date and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 
Subsequent events can be classified into two types:

•	 those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date(adjusting events 
after the reporting date); and

•	 those that are indicative of conditions that that arose after the reporting date(non-adjusting 
events)

The Authority will adjust the amounts recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting 
events after the reporting date once the event occurred.

The Authority will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effects or a 
statement that such estimate cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, 
where non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the 
financial statements.

3.	 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
In preparing annual financial statements in conformity with IPSAS management is required 
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of revenues, expenses, 
assets and liabilities represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures at the 
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could 
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or 
liability affected in future periods. Significant judgements, estimates and assumptions include;

3.1	 Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at 
the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Authority 
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were 
prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may 
change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Authority. 
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur as required by IPSAS 1.140

Useful lives and residual values
The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to 
inform potential future use and value from disposal:

i.	 The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the Authority
ii.	 The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and 

processes
iii.	 The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed
iv.	 Availability of funding to replace the asset
v.	 Changes in the market in relation to the asset
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3.2	 Depreciation and amortisation
The Authority’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation 
charges. This estimate is based on the Industry norm. Management will increase the depreciation 
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated useful lives.

3.3	 Inventories
Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-
exchange transaction, then their cost are the fair value as at the date of acquisition. Subsequently 
inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange, or 
distribution.

Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in the 
ordinary course of operations of the Entity.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
AND BASIS OF PREPARATION CONTINUED
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James Thogo, an ICT Officer with the Authority, sensitizes consumers about their rights during 
commemoration of the World Consumer Rights Day in Nyeri County. The theme of the WCRD 
was “Better and Secure Digital Products”. Consumers were sensitized on their rights with re-
gard to technology and digital evolution brought about by the emergence of E-commerce.
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NOTES TO 
THE ANNUAL 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH 
JUNE, 2019
4.	 Fees and Fines & Penalties

The filling fees relates to revenue generated from merger cases filed by merging/acquiring 
Companies both locally and with the COMESA regional Competition body-COMESA 
Competition Commission. The Authority’s share of the COMESA filling fees is arrived at using 
a predetermined formula agreed upon by and applicable to all the member Countries and is 
recognized when received.

Fines and penalties are levied against companies found to infringe the Competition law by 
engaging in unfair trade practices including consummating mergers without approval by the 
Authority.

5.	 Transfers from Ministries, Departments and Agencies

All transfers recorded and recognized in the Statement of Financial performance have been 
confirmed and reconciled with those recorded by the transferring Ministry-The National 
Treasury.

Merger filling fees-Local 55,000,600 42,000,000

Merger filling fees-COMESA 75,451,772 58,438,461

Total 134,666,445 135,908,228

Fines & Penalties 4,214,073 35,469,767

Description 2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.

Amount 
recognized 

in Statement 
of financial 

performance

Kshs.

Amount 
deferred 

under 
deferred 
Income

Kshs.

The National 
Treasury-
Exchequer

- - 387,220,000387,220,000 -

The National 
Treasury-
RIIP

- - 7,000,0007,000,000 -

Total - - 394,220,000394,220,000 -

Amount 
recognized 

in capital 
fund

Kshs.

Total grant 
income 

during the 
year

Kshs.

2018/2019

Kshs.
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The Authority recognizes that the revenue it receives both from exchequer and Appropriation 
in Aid (AIA) are not necessarily evenly matched with its spending pattern .Accordingly, any 
surplus cash is invested in short-term fixed deposits to generate AIA by way of interest on 
deposits.

7.	 Other Income
Other income amounting to Ksh. 3,165,985.00 relates to training fees levied against Law and 
Economic regulation course which the Authority conducts annually in collaboration with the 
University of Nairobi.

8.	 Employee related Costs

9.	 Depreciation and Amortization

6.	 Finance Income-External Investments

Total 21,096,186 20,876,738

Cash investments and Fixed deposits 21,096,186 20,876,738

Description 2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.

Salaries and Allowances 173,156,288 148,236,684

Contribution to pensions 14,814,640 14,417,224

Staff Medical Insurance 17,995,991 18,262,354

Staff Gratuity 14,936,072 10,509,467

Provision for Staff leave 757,077 (54,167)

Total 221,660,068 191,371,562

2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.

Property, Plant & Equipment 15,278,375 12,540,516

Intangible Assets 20,350,988 632,609

Total 35,629,363 13,173,125

2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH 
JUNE, 2019 CONTINUED
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10.	 Remuneration of Directors

11.	 Repairs and Maintenance

Sitting & Lunch allowances 5,190,000 4,500,000

Insurance 665,486 728,535

International Travel Costs - 1,570,765

Board Induction & Travel 13,609,936 2,949,900

Conference facilities 2,051,210 211,437

Sundry expenses - 9,238

Honoraria 724,240 960,000

Local Travel costs 2,082,188 1,288,529

Foreign Travel daily Subsistence allowances - 2,576,943

Telephone 106,434 80,730

Domestic Travel Daily Subsistence allowances - 819,000

Lunch allowance - 50,000

Total 24,429,493 15,745,077

2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.

504,780 762,108Motor Vehicles

13,228,501 2,959,979Property, Plant & Equipment

Total 13,733,281 3,719,087

2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH 
JUNE, 2019 CONTINUED
12.	 Contracted Services

13.	 Finance Costs
Finance costs of Kshs.499,794 relates to bank charges levied by banks in running the five bank 
Accounts held by the Authority in various commercial banks.

14.	 Policy, Research and Market Enquiries

Awareness & Publicity Campaigns 16,051,107 9,840,551

Enforcement of Restrictive Trade Practices 9,045,911 4,771,912

Regulation of mergers & acquisitions 2,846,485 1,303,000

Buyer Power 190,000 -

Policy, research & Market Enquiries 39,535,948 6,975,508

COMESA-RIIP 6,944,644 14,438,680

Consumer Campaigns 1,399,769 2,776,330

Total 76,013,864 40,105,981

2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.

Consultancy 9,965,878 14,037,548

Audit fees 696,000 696,000

Cleaning expenses 1,710,440 1,513,667

Hire of security 1,057,920 1,179,620

Total 14,909,485 18,605,538

Legal services 1,479,247 1,178,703

2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.
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15.	 General Expenses

16.	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Domestic Travel subsistence allowances 12,655,087 9,064,345

Printing & Advertising 7,420,475 10,292,740

Other Motor vehicles running expenses 1,772,008 724,758

Communication costs 7,031,208 5,796,105

General office supplies 2,150,730 3,784,572

Subscriptions to professional bodies 1,015,353 848,462

Foreign Travel subsistence allowance 15,362,210 8,253,465

Rent & rates 36,537,494 29,539,317

Official entertainment and conferencing facilities 10,367,718 7,580,884

Staff Welfare 6,994,503 5,459,688

Training Expenses 34,632,094 30,963,282

Insurance of Assets 3,333,269 3,788,139

Total 139,272,149 116,095,757

2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.

KCB-KICC Main operating account 96,263,374 335,729,865

KCB-KICC Staff Gratuity account 24,482,247 9,874,505

Total 367,184,708 519,070,315

KCB-Short-term Investment on Call 150,000,000 150,000,000

NBK-Dollar account 96,439,088 23,465,944

2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH 
JUNE, 2019 CONTINUED
17.	 Security Deposits

18.	 Receivables from Exchange transactions

NBK - Staff car loan Scheme account 99,805,127 94,804,370

Staff travel imprest - 1,484,391

Prepaid rent 2,790,499 2,580,329

Bank Interest receivable 418,404 -

Trade receivables 19,667 64,213

Prepaid internet services 173,587 150,945

BBK - Staff Mortgage Scheme account 200,000,000 -

Staff debtors 167,113 149,386

Prepaid insurance 7,481,715 4,011,261

Total 299,805,127 94,804,370

Total 20,031,295 18,166,409

Staff car loan scheme receivables 8,830,310 9,575,884

Advance deposit 150,000 150,000

2018/2019
Kshs.

2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.

The deposits with Kenya Commercial and Barclays Banks are placed as security against Staff Car 
and mortgage advances to support concessionary interest rate car and mortgage loans to staff.
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Computer software under development, Kshs 197,821 relates to amounts incurred and paid towards 
the implementation of mobile App software to provide an interactive SMS solution to the Authority’s 
automated processes. It is the policy of the Authority to amortize all Intangible Assets at the rate of 
25% on a reducing balance basis.

19.	 Intangible Assets-Computer Software

Cost

At the end of the year 23,584,582 3,233,594

Additions 80,138,544 -

At the beginning of the year 3,233,594 2,600,985

Net Book Value 61,052,962 1,265,406

At the beginning of the year 4,499,000 4,499,000

Amortization

At the end of the year 84,637,544 4,499,000

Amortization 20,350,988 632,609

Computer Software Under development 197,821 62,506,152

Total 61,250,783 63,771,558

2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH 
JUNE, 2019 CONTINUED

20.	 Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation rate 12.5%33%12.5%25%

TotalFurniture & 
fittings

Computer 
Equipment

Office 
Equipment

Motor 
vehicles

Cost

Net book values

Additions 5,068,310337,2003,490,6101,240,500-

Additions 24,643,0522,743,9606,266,3541,807,73813,825,000

Depreciation 12,540,5162,048,5827,459,358995,9452,036,631

Depreciation 15,278,3742,135,5027,061,7301,097,4194,983,723

Disposals -----

Disposals -----

Impairment -----

Impairment -----

Transfer/adjustment -----

Disposals -----

Transfers/adjustments -----

Transfers/adjustments -----

At 1st July 2017 97,082,50824,575,82539,396,8519,596,12523,513,707

At 30th June 2018 102,150,81824,913,02542,887,46110,836,62523,513,707

Depreciation and impairment

At 1st July 2017 47,267,7688,524,37720,507,1482,869,06015,367,183

At 30th June 2018 59,808,28410,572,95927,966,5063,865,00517,403,814

At 30th June 2019 126,793,87027,656,98549,153,81512,644,36337,338,707

At 30th June 2019 75,086,65812,708,46135,028,2364,962,42422,387,537

At 30th June 2019 51,707,21214,948,52414,125,5797,681,93914,951,170

At 30th June 2018 42,342,53414,340,06614,920,9556,971,6206,109,893
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21.	 Trade and other payables from Exchange transactions

Amounts owed to suppliers for goods and services 46,616,337 37,113,812

Contractors retentions 1,058,833 -

Withholding VAT 995,327 382,567

Deferred Lease liability 3,568,200 509,270

Withholding taxes 309,168 47,088

Unremitted Payroll deductions 4,282,328 3,601,054

Staff Claims 13,740,365 129,940

Total 70,570,557 41,783,732

2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.

23.	 Employee benefits obligations
The Authority contributes to the statutory National Social Security Fund (NSSF). This is a defined 
contribution scheme registered under the National Social Security Act. The entity’s obligation 
under the scheme is limited to specific contributions legislated from time to time and is currently 
at Kshs.200 per employee per month.

22.	 Current Provisions

4,253,910 3,496,833Provision for Staff leave balances

696,000 696,000Provision for Audit fees

Total 4,949,910 4,192,833

2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.

24.	 Non-current Provisions

20,051,624 8,701,503Staff Gratuity

20,051,624 8,701,503Total

2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH 
JUNE, 2019 CONTINUED
25.	 Contributions by owner - The National Treasury and Planning

At inception, the Authority inherited a number of assets comprising mainly of furniture, 
computers, cash balances and payments due to suppliers with a net amount of Kshs. 52,932,150 
from the then department of monopolies and pricing at the National Treasury. In addition, in 
the financial year 2014/2015, the National Treasury contributed three computers with an invoice 
value of Kshs.449, 670 for use by the Authority in the Regional Integration Implementation 
Programme. The Authority was not expected to pay for these assets. The contributions have 
been recognized in the statement of Net assets as a financing reserve.

26.	 Cash generated from operations

Surplus for the year 27,001,120 164,257,377

Finance income

Increase in deferred income - -

Depreciation 35,629,363 13,173,125

Increase in inventory (6,071,208)

Adjusted for :

Working Capital adjustments

Increase in payables 40,136,947 (25,207,969)

Security Deposits - Staff Car & Mortgage Schemes (299,805,127)

Net cash flow from operating activities (204,216,712) 147,155,721

Contribution to provisions 757,077 (54,167)

Increase in receivables (1,864,884) (5,012,645)

2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.
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27.	 Financial Risk Management
The Authority has a policy and framework on risk management. The Strategic risk register is 
reviewed quarterly by management. The Authority’s activities expose it to interest, credit and 
liquidity risks.

Credit risks
Credit Risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligation 
resulting in financial loss to the Authority. Credit Risk arises from bank balances, receivables 
and amounts due from related parties. Although this risk is unlikely to occur in the short term, 
it is mitigated as follows:

i.	 Cash and short-term deposits are placed with well-established financial institutions of high 
quality and credit standing and also approved by the National Treasury;

ii.	 Funds are invested in short-term facilities; and
iii.	 The Authority does not raise receivable in its ordinary course of business.

Credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is limited due to the nature of the Authority’s 
business and its reliance on government grant as the main source of funding.
The Authority’s exposure to credit risk at the end of the financial year is represented by.

All the Authority’s receivables are performing and are expected to be repaid.

Cash at bank 367,184,708 613,874,685

Staff car loan debtors 8,830,310 9,575,884

Total 686,452,726 631,891,094

Staff debtors 167,113 149,386

Prepaid insurance 7,481,715 4,011,261

Staff travel imprest - 1,484,391

Security Deposits 299,805,127

Prepaid rent 2,790,499 2,580,329

Trade debtors 19,667 64,213

Prepaid Internet Services 173,587 150,945

2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH 
JUNE, 2019 CONTINUED

Liquidity
The Authority’s liquidity risk is as a result of funds availability to cover future commitments. 
The Authority manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecasted cash flows and ensuring that 
the necessary funds are available to meet any commitments which may arise. Cash which is 
not utilized is invested immediately in Treasury bills and call accounts. The amounts that best 
describes the Authority’s exposure to liquidity risk at the end of the financial year is made up 
as follows.;

Staff claims 13,740,365 - - 13,740,365

Staff leave Provisions 4,949,910 - - 4,949,910

Total

Kshs.

Less than 1 
month

Kshs.

Between 
1-3 months

Kshs.

Over 5  
months

Kshs.

Trade payables 46,616,337 - - 46,616,337

Payroll deductions 4,282,328 - - 4,282,328

Taxes 1,304,495 - - 1,304,495

Contractors retention 1,058,833 - - 1,058,833

Total 71,952,267 71,952,267

At 30th June, 2019

Staff claims 129,940 - - 129,940

Staff leave Provisions 4,192,833 - - 4,192,833

Total

Kshs.

Less than 1 
month

Kshs.

Between 
1-3 months

Kshs.

Over 5  
months

Kshs.

Trade payables 37,113,812 - - 37,113,812

Payroll deductions 3,601,054 - - 3,601,054

Taxes 429,655 - - 429,655

Total 45,467,294 - - 45,467,294

At 30th June, 2019
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Market risks
Market risk is the risk that the value of an investment will decrease due to changes in market 
factors. The above stated mitigating factors apply to market risk as well.

The Authority has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases of 
services especially fees for international conferences that are done in currencies other than the 
local currency and receivables mainly arising from COMESA revenue.

Invoices denominated in foreign currencies are paid within 7 days from the date of receipt of 
the invoice and conversion at the time of payment is done using the prevailing exchange rate.

The carrying amount of the Authority’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and 
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Cash at Bank- National bank of Kenya

US $ dollar

953,229.16 96,304,437

Kshs.

2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.

a.	 Grants from National Government

15,000 -b.	 Gifts/donations declared by employees

c.	 Key management compensation

387,220,000 381,250,000i.	 Exchequer budgetary support

6,579,725 5,460,000i.	 Directors’ emoluments

9,910,000 9,120,000ii.	 Compensation to the Director General

68,736,080 44,134,852iii.	 Compensation to key management

394,220,000 401,250,000Total

85,225,805 58,714,852Total

ii.	 COMESA-Regional Integration Implementation 
Programme

7,000,000 20,000,000

28.	 Related Party Transactions
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH 
JUNE, 2019 CONTINUED
29.	 Contingent Assets and Contingent liabilities

a.	 Court cases
The Authority has cases pending before the Kenyan courts emanating from ongoing investigations 
that are part of the Authority’s nature of operations. The outcome thereof may result in legal 
costs or damages awarded against or for the Authority. The details of the cases are disclosed 
here below.

b.	Surplus payable to the Exchequer
The Authority has received an assessment from Kenya Revenue Authority demanding payment 
of Kshs.147M as surplus for the year ended 30th June, 2018 under section 219 of the Public 
Finance Management Act Regulation 2015.The Authority has disputed the claim citing an 
approval granted by the National Treasury for appropriation of the entire surplus to the Staff 
Housing Mortgage Scheme. Discussions between KRA, The National Treasury are still ongoing.

2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.

1,631,000 1,500,000Court cases against The Authority

RemarksCase Reference Vs. CAK Details of the case

Likely legal liability in the sum of 
Kshs. 580,000.00

Misc. Civil App. No. 57 / 
2019 Style Industries Limited 
vs Court cases against The 
Authority

Judicial review proceeding 
challenging CAK decision 
and seeking to restraint 
orders against prosecution of 
Company directors.

Likely legal liability in the sum of 
Kshs. 870,000.00

Pet. No. 392/18 Okiya Omtata 
& Another vs Competition 
Authority of Kenya & others

Suit against the Authority 
on alleged failure to curtail 
the Kenya Power & Lighting 
Company monopoly.

Likely legal liability in the sum of 
Kshs. 181,200

Pet No. 215/19 Evans Aseto 
& Another vs National Bank 
of Kenya & Another, and the 
Competition Authority of 
Kenya & Another

The Petition seeks orders 
to stay the acquisition of 
National Bank of Kenya (NBK) 
by Kenya Commercial Bank 
(KCB) and that the stay be 
granted pending hearing and 
determination of the suit.
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2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.

22,737,081 20,000,000Authorized, contracted and ongoing

Authorized but not yet contracted

Total 22,737,081 20,000,000

2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.

Minimum lease payments due

25,596,080 25,918,127•	 Within one year

•	 In second to fifth year 110,438,784 125,270,945

Total 136,034,865 151,189,072

2018/2019
Kshs.

2017/2018
Kshs.

6,071,208 -Consumable stores

30.	 Commitments

The committed expenditure will be financed by allocated operational budget for future 
periods.

Operating leases-as leases (expense)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Authority for leased office space. 
Leases are negotiated for an average term of five years. No contingent rent is payable.

31.	 Pending bills
As at the close of the financial year, the Authority did not have any bills which have not been 
adequately covered by its cash reserves. All the Authority’s recorded liabilities as at the end of 
the year are current and are adequately covered.

32.	 Inventories

33.	 Explanation Of Budget Variances Higher/Lower Than 10%

a.	 Fines & penalties 90%
The Authority had budgeted to receive fines & penalties from the results of various cases it was 
investigating in the last financial year whose outcomes had been determined and the parties 
issued with and accepted demand notes. However, in the course of the financial year, the parties 
decided to seek redress from the courts and thereby delaying the collection of the fines.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH 
JUNE, 2019 CONTINUED

b.	Merger filling fees-local 10%
The revenue from merger filling fees locally 
increased during the financial year due 
to increased awareness of the Authority’s 
regulatory role in Mergers and acquisitions 
leading to more applications being filed at 
the Authority than had been anticipated. 
Conversely, the Authority also witnessed 
reduced cases of mergers consummated 
without approval.

c.	 Merger filling fees-COMESA 51%
During, the financial year 2018/19, the 
Authority intensified its engagement 
with the COMESA region Competition 
Commission in regards to the agreed 
revenue sharing formulae as well as the need 
to share the details of the computation and 
the supporting schedules. The Authority’s 
officers are now working closely with the 
Commission leading to prompt remissions 
and agreement on the amounts receivable.

d.	Interest from deposits 23%
The Authority’s revenue from interest on 
deposits increased beyond the Kshs.17M 
revised budget due to improved cash flow 
management which ensured that no idle 
cash is kept in the bank but immediately 
invested with the approved banks.

e.	 Staff welfare 20%
The actual cost of activities under corporate 
social responsibility and team building were 
lower than budgeted due to the location of 
the activities which could not accurately be 
predicted at the time of budgeting. The actual 
locations lead to savings in transportation 
costs.

f.	 Communication supplies and services 
10%
Communication supplies include provision 
of airtime to senior staff for use in official 
engagements. The Authority had anticipated 
a reporting date earlier in the financial 
year for new management and senior staff 
earmarked for recruitment during the 

financial year.

However, due to a delay in recruitment 
and subsequently the reporting dates, a 
significant proportion of airtime was not 
purchased leading to the savings.

g.	 Printing, advertising and information 
services 20%
The Authority has been going through a 
period of automation aimed at creating 
efficiencies in the way it does business. 
The financial year 2018/19 saw a number 
of Automation system going live leading 
to efficiency savings in printing costs. 
In addition, the Authority prioritized 
information dissemination through its 
websites and social media platform over 
advertisements.

h.	Subscriptions 15%
The Authority had anticipated subscribing 
to international research sites for purposes 
of data mining at the time of budgeting. 
However, during the year the Authority 
realized that there would be cost savings in 
buying the specific data on need basis rather 
than subscribing for the entire year.

i.	 Motor running costs 51%
The Authority had anticipated an increase 
in motor vehicle running expenses 
proportionate to the increase in the number 
of vehicles as evidenced by the budget 
for a new motor vehicle. However, due to 
logistical issues related to procurement 
taking longer than expected, the associated 
incremental costs became minimal.

j.	 Routine maintenance of other assets 
17%
The Authority had budgeted for the cost of 
renovating its reception area to make it more 
user friendly especially to persons leaving 
with disability. However, challenges getting 
a service provider within the budgeted cost 
led to the Authority not undertaking this 
activity.
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k.	Other operating costs 13%
Other operating expenses include finance costs associated with operation of the bank accounts 
held by the Authority in various commercial banks and insurance of other Authority assets. The 
budget was informed by the Authority’s expectation of an increase in the number of assets as 
well as the opening of a staff mortgage scheme account. However, both the new assets and the 
Mortgage bank account were actualized towards the end of the financial year leading to a cost 
saving in the other operating expenses vote.

34.	 Accumulated Surplus
The Authority’ total accumulated surplus as at 30th June,2019 was Kshs.657,096,420.However,a 
total of Kshs,300,000,000 represents an amount placed as security with Kenya Commercial 
Bank and Barclays bank to secure staff Housing Mortgage and Car loans at concessionary rates 
pursuant to the National Treasury approval. In addition, the Authority’s Mortgage and car loan 
policies as well as contracts signed with the banks provide for a portion of the interests (Kshs.4, 
255,181 in FY 2018/19) on unutilized balances to be credited back into the fund for purposes of 
sustainability. This amount is included as part of the surplus not available for distribution.

35.	 Surplus Remission
The Authority has made provisions to remit to the exchequer Ksh. 18,801,916.60 as per the 
provisions of Section 219 (2) of the Public Financial Management Act regulations 2015 being 
ninety per centum (90%) of the surplus Kshs 27,734,920 recorded in the Statement of financial 
Performance for the year.

36.	 Events after the reporting date
There have been no material adjusting and non- adjusting events subsequent to the reporting 
date with a significant impact on the financial statements for the year ended 30th June, 2019.

37.	 Ultimate and holding entity
The Authority is a State Corporation under the Ministry of The National Treasury. Its ultimate 
parent is the Government of Kenya.

Kshs.
27,001,120Surplus for the year

24,643,052i.	 Non-current assets

20,350,988ii.	 Amortization

Adjusted for:

17,830,213ii.	 Intangible assets

4,255,181iii.	 Interest from Secured Car loan Scheme

62,630,483Adjusted surplus

15,278,375i.	 Depreciation

14,311,83390% Surplus due to the Exchequer

15,902,037Net adjusted Surplus for the year

Less capital expenditure:
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The Authority’s stakeholders being sensitized about the Case Management System (CMS). The 
System will enable the Authority to fully automate its key mandate areas such as filing of mergers 
and exemption applications as well as filing consumer and abuse of buyer power complaints.



COMPETITION AUTHORITY OF KENYA  | ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018/19 COMPETITION AUTHORITY OF KENYA  | ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018/19 123



COMPETITION AUTHORITY OF KENYA  | ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018/19 COMPETITION AUTHORITY OF KENYA  | ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018/19124

APPENDIX I: PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP 
OF AUDITOR RECOMMENDATION
The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments 
that were provided to the auditor. We have nominated focal persons to resolve the various issues as 
shown below with the associated time frame within which we expect the issues to be resolved.

Director General

Date:

Reference No. 
on the external 
audit Report

Management 
comments

Issue / 
Observations 
from Auditor

Focal Person 
to resolve 
the issue 
(Name and 
designation)

Status: 
(Resolved/ Not 
Resolved)

Time frame: 
(Put a date 
when you 
expect the issue 
to be resolved)
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APPENDIX II : INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

The above amounts have been communicated to and reconciled with the parent Ministry

Manager, Finance
Competition Authority of Kenya

Sign

a. Recurrent Grants

Bank Statement Date Amount (KShs) FY to which the amounts 
relate

Bank Statement Date Amount (KShs) FY to which the amounts 
relate

17/08/2018 84,750,000 2018/19

07/11/2018 27,500,000 2018/19

26/10/2018 77,970,000 2018/19

20/02/2019 13,750,000 2018/19

05/02/2019 84,750,000 2018/19

27/02/2019 13,750,000 2018/19

15/05/2019 84,750,000 2018/19

Total 332,220,000

Total 55,000,000

 GrandTotal 387,220,000

b. Development Grants

Break down of Transfers from the ministry of the National Treasury FY 2018/2019

ENTITY NAME: COMPETITION AUTHORITY OF KENYA
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APPENDIX III :  RESTRICTIVE TRADE 
PRACTICES CASES
No. Cases/inquiry Sector/Market 

affected
Case Summary Relevant 

Section 
of the Act

Case status/
Decision

1. CAK vs Basco 
Products (K) 
Ltd

Manufacturing The Authority initiated inves-
tigations into the conduct and 
practices of the undertakings 
engaged in the paints manu-
facturing and distribution in 
Kenya on its own motion pur-
suant to the provisions of sec-
tion 31 (1) of the Act. 1.

In December 2018, the Au-
thority carried a search and 
seizure exercise at the prem-
ises of Basco Products (K) Ltd 
and other players and seized 
materials relevant to the in-
vestigation.

Section 
21(3) (a) 
and 22(1) 
(b)

Basco Products 
Kenya Ltd initiated 
settlement proceed-
ings into the mat-
ter pursuant to the 
provisions of sec-
tion 38 of the Act.

Consequently, the 
Authority entered 
into a settlement 
agreement with 
Basco Products 
Kenya Ltd.

2. CAK vs 
Crown Paints 
Kenya PLC

Manufacturing The Authority initiated inves-
tigations into the conduct and 
practices of the undertakings 
engaged in the paints manu-
facturing and distribution in 
Kenya on its own motion pur-
suant to the provisions of sec-
tion 31 (1) of the Act. 2

In December 2018, the Au-
thority carried a search exer-
cise at the premises of Crown 
Paints Products (K) Ltd and 
other players and seized ma-
terials relevant to the investi-
gation.

Investigations 
ongoing



COMPETITION AUTHORITY OF KENYA  | ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018/19 COMPETITION AUTHORITY OF KENYA  | ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018/19 127

No. Cases/inquiry Sector/Market 
affected

Case Summary Case 
status/
Decision

3. CAK vs 
Galaxy Paints 
Limited

Manufacturing The Authority initiated inves-
tigations into the conduct and 
practices of the undertakings 
engaged in the paints manu-
facturing and distribution in 
Kenya on its own motion pur-
suant to the provisions of sec-
tion 31 (1) of the Act. 3.

In December 2018, the Au-
thority carried a search exer-
cise at the premises of Galaxy 
Paints (K) Limited and other 
players and seized materials 
relevant to the investigation.

Investigations ongoing

4. CAK vs 
Kansai 
Plascon 
Kenya 
Limited

Manufacturing The Authority initiated inves-
tigations into the conduct and 
practices of the undertakings 
engaged in the paints manu-
facturing and distribution in 
Kenya on its own motion pur-
suant to the provisions of sec-
tion 31 (1) of the Act. 4. 

In December 2018, the Au-
thority carried a search exer-
cise at the premises of Kansai 
Plascon Kenya Ltd and other 
players and seized materials 
relevant to the investigation.

Investigations ongoing
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No. Cases/inquiry Sector/Market 
affected

Case Summary Relevant 
Section 
of the Act

Case status/
Decision

5. CAK vs 
Shree Cutchi 
Leva Patel 
Samaj School 
and College 
(SCLPS)

Education The Authority received a com-
plaint from a parent alleging 
that the school was compel-
ling parents to buy laptops 
exclusively from the school 
contrary to section 21(3)(a) of 
the Act.

Section 
21 and 
section 
56(4)

The Authority es-
tablished that the 
school is a Trust 
that is also engaged 
in other income 
generating activi-
ties hence qualified 
as an undertaking 
as contemplated 
by the Act. The Au-
thority established 
that the conduct 
did not have com-
mercial or technical 
justifications and 
therefore ordered 
the school to cease 
and desist from the 
conduct and allow 
parents to procure 
laptops from other 
vendors as long as 
they met the spec-
ifications, deline-
ate the costs of the 
laptops from the 
school levies and 
formally commu-
nicate the same to 
parents. The par-
ties complied and 
the matter was con-
cluded.
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No. Cases/inquiry Sector/Market 
affected

Case Summary Relevant 
Section 
of the Act

Case status/
Decision

6. CAK vs Man-
ufacturers of 
Plastic tanks 
and pipes.

Manufacturing The Authority initiated inves-
tigations into the conduct and 
practices of the undertakings 
engaged in the plastics man-
ufacturing and distribution 
in Kenya suo moto pursuant 
to the provisions of section 31 
(1) of the Act. Specifically, the 
investigations were pursuant 
to some allegations of possi-
ble collusion of manufactur-
ers of water tanks and pipes 
relating to margins, discounts 
and rebates on transport costs 
contrary to the provisions of 
section 21 (3)(a) of the Act.

Section 
21(3)(a)

The Authority, 
premised on the in-
formation available 
to it, did not find 
any evidence of col-
lusion.

7. Kiru Tea 
Factory Ltd 
vs Kenya Tea 
Development 
Agency
(KTDA)

Agriculture, 
Forestry and 
Fishing

Kiru Tea Factory Ltd raised 
a complaint with the Author-
ity against KTDA and KTDA 
Management Limited alleg-
ing they were engaging in 
Abuse of Dominance.

Sections 
21 and 24

The Authority car-
ried out investiga-
tions on the matter 
and established 
that it did not fall 
within its mandate. 
Therefore the Au-
thority, pursuant to 
section 9(m) of the 
Act forwarded the 
matter to Agricul-
ture and Food Au-
thority (AFA).
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No. Cases/inquiry Sector/Market 
affected

Case Summary Relevant 
Section 
of the Act

Case status/
Decision

8. Jumia Ltd vs 
Safaricom 
PLC

E-Commerce Ecart Services Kenya Limited 
(t/a Jumia) complained to the 
Authority alleging that Safa-
ricom PLC was engaging in 
practices that amounted to 
Abuse of Dominance by ob-
structing the access of Jumia 
Ltd platform on the Safaricom 
PLC network on 30th October 
2018 for approximately ten 
hours.

Section 24 The Authority’s 
investigations es-
tablished that the 
Safaricom PLC 
network was an es-
sential facility for 
the development 
of downstream 
competition. How-
ever, the Author-
ity did not find 
evidence to estab-
lish that the lack 
of access of Jumia 
Ltd’s platform on 
the material day 
was occasioned 
by Safaricom PLC 
as alleged. On the 
contrary, it was es-
tablished that the 
lack of access was 
occasioned by a 
technical hitch by 
a 3rd party rather 
than a Commission 
or Omission by Sa-
faricom PLC. 

Consequently, the 
matter was closed 
and the same was 
communicated to 
the parties.
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No. Cases/inquiry Sector/Market 
affected

Case Summary Relevant 
Section 
of the Act

Case status/
Decision

9. Investigations 
into Sugar 
sector

Agriculture, 
Forestry and 
Fishing

Allegation of coordination in 
determination of cane prices 
sugar payable to farmers by 
Kenya Sugar Millers Associa-
tion.

Section 
21(1) and 
22(1)(b)

The investigations 
found that the 
practice of creating 
zones to particular 
sugar millers could 
be anticompetitive. 
The findings of 
the investigations 
were shared with 
the Task Force into 
the Sugar Sector 
formed by the Cab-
inet Secretary of 
The Ministry of Ag-
riculture, Livestock 
and Fisheries.

10. CAK vs 
United Grain 
Millers 
Association

Food 
processing

The Authority in its own mo-
tion initiated investigations 
on United Grain Millers Asso-
ciation in regard to its alleged 
intention of raising the prices 
of maize flour (Unga) by sim-
ilar margins as that of the in-
crease in VAT.

Section 21 
and 22

The Authority’s in-
vestigations into the 
sector established it 
was regulated by 
many government 
agencies and has 
several players. 
Further, there were 
no findings that the 
Association had en-
gaged in practices 
that violated the 
Act.

11. Jomo 
Kenyatta 
Foundation 
(JKF) vs 
Oxford 
University 
Press(OUP)

Publishing JKF alleged that Oxford Uni-
versity Press was engaging in 
predatory pricing by offering 
teachers guide learning mate-
rials at very low prices.

Section 24 The investigations 
established that 
JKF was not domi-
nant in the relevant 
market and abuse 
of dominance by 
predation was not 
established. The 
case was therefore 
closed.
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No. Cases/inquiry Sector/Market 
affected

Case Summary Relevant 
Section 
of the Act

Case status/
Decision

12. CAK vs cer-
tain compa-
nies supply-
ing KEMSA 
with phar-
maceutical 
products.

Pharmaceutical The Authority initiated inves-
tigations into the conduct and 
practices of the undertakings, 
firms and persons engaged in 
the supply of pharmaceutical 
products to the Government 
through Kenya Medical Sup-
ply Authority (KEMSA).

Section 
21(3)

Investigations 
ongoing

13. Coffee sector 
investigations

Agriculture, 
Forestry and 
Fishing

The Authority initiated inves-
tigations on own motion into 
the practices and conduct of 
various players in the coffee 
value chain to determine any 
existence of restrictive trade 
practices in violation of the 
Act.

Section 21 
(1)

Investigations 
ongoing

14. CAK vs Oil 
Marketing 
Companies 
(OMCs) 
involved 
in the 
supply and 
distribution of 
jet fuel

Petroleum and 
petroleum 
products

The Departmental Committee 
on Energy (“the Committee”) 
of the National Assembly rec-
ommended the Authority to 
review and investigate busi-
ness practices among OMCs 
involved in Jet A-I fuel busi-
ness with a view of ensuring a 
level playing field among the 
operators.

Sections 
21 and 24

Investigations 
ongoing

15. CAK vs 
Ingenious 
Concepts 
Limited

Advertising 
and Market 
research

The Authority, on its own 
motion, investigated allega-
tions relating to members of 
the Outdoor Advertising As-
sociation of Kenya (OAAK) 
engaging in Restrictive Trade 
Practices by fixing prices to 
be charged by its members 
for advertising services. In-
genious as a member of the 
Association was alleged to be 
involved in price fixing by set-
ting up minimum prices for 
the 12m by 10m billboard.

Sections 
21

The Authority of 
imposed a penalty 
of Ksh. 193,024 
which is 8% of the 
relevant turnover.
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No. Cases/inquiry Sector/Market 
affected

Case Summary Relevant 
Section 
of the Act

Case status/
Decision

16. CAK vs Agro-
chemicals 
Association of 
Kenya

Agrochemicals The Authority pursuant to 
section 31 of the Act initi-
ated investigations into the 
activities of members of the 
Agro-Chemicals Association 
of Kenya (AAK). Specifically, 
the objective of the interroga-
tions is to ensure there exists 
competition among import-
ers of Agrochemical products 
and that competition is not 
impeded by sharing of com-
mercial sensitive information 
including prices, quantities 
among others.

Section 22 Investigations 
ongoing

17. CAK vs 
Akzonobel

Manufacturing Allegation of Akzonobel im-
plementing restrictive agree-
ments with other paints man-
ufacturers in Kenya

Section 21 The matter 
was referred 
to COMESA 
Competition 
Commission.
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CAK staff participated in the 2019 Charity Walk as part of the Authority’s Corporate Social 
Responsibility initiatives. The annual walk it aimed at raising awareness about cerebral palsy as 
well as support the activities of the Cerebral Palsy Society of Kenya.
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Tekla Mwasaru, an analyst in the Mergers & Acquisition Department, and Ronald Okongo, a senior  
investigation officer in the Consumer Protection Department, during a football match organized as 
part of the Authority’s annual team building exercise. 
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APPENDIX IV: EXEMPTION CASES

No. Application Sector Case Summary Relevant 
Section 
of the Act

Status

1. Koko 
Networks Ltd 
(Kenya) and 
Vivo Energy 
Kenya Ltd

Energy Koko Networks Ltd and Vivo 
Energy Ltd applied to the Au-
thority for exemption on:-
i.	 Products exclusivity
ii.	 Price fixing

Section 25 Upon evaluation of 
the agreement be-
tween the two com-
panies pursuant 
to section 25 of the 
Act, the Authority 
granted the exemp-
tion of clauses re-
lating to exclusivity 
in product dealing 
but rejected clauses 
related to price fix-
ing. Agreements on 
resale price main-
tenance is a hard 
core restriction un-
der the Act and the 
applicants did not 
provide overriding 
public interest jus-
tification in its sup-
port.
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3. Kenya Ship 
Contractors 
Association 
(KSCA)

Maritime 
Transport

The Kenya Ships Contractors 
Association (KSCA) submit-
ted an application for exemp-
tion to for a period of five (5) 
years to: - i. set fees for ship 
support services they offer 
at the Port of Mombasa. The 
support services provided in-
clude; watch keeping, tallying 
services, lashing and unlash-
ing cargo and trimming bulk 
cargo.

Section 25 The application 
was approved be-
cause it was antic-
ipated that setting 
minimum rates will 
improve the health 
and safety stand-
ards at the port, 
and also guarantee 
enhanced level of 
performance and 
quality of servic-
es provided by the 
members of the As-
sociation.

2. Cooper 
K-Brands 
Ltd(CKL) and 
its strategic 
business 
Partners

Agro-
Chemicals

CKL sought an exemption 
on:-
i.	 Product Exclusivity
ii.	 Territorial Allocation
iii.	 Restrictive of passive and 

active sales
iv.	 Resale price maintenance

Section 25 The Authority pur-
suant to the provi-
sions of Section 26 
of the Act granted 
Cooper K-Brands 
and their Strategic 
Business Partners 
exemption in rela-
tion to product ex-
clusivity. However, 
the Authority re-
jected the clauses in 
relation to territori-
al allocation, resale 
price maintenance 
and non-compete 
obligation as the 
justifications did 
not meet the thresh-
old for grant of an 
exemption.

No. Application Sector Case Summary Relevant 
Section 
of the Act

Status
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APPENDIX V: ABUSE OF BUYER POWER 
CASES
No. Case Sector/Market 

affected
Case Summary Relevant 

Section 
of the Act

Case status/
Decision

1. Equatorial 
Energies 
Limited vs. 
Anstonfield 
Solesa Kenya 
Limited

Energy Sector The complainant, Equatori-
al Energies Limited, alleged 
that Anstonfield Solesa Kenya 
Limited was abusing its Buyer 
Power by delaying payments 
without a justifiable reason.

Sections 
24(2A) 
(2B)(2D)

The Authority 
established that 
Equatorial Ener-
gies Limited was 
not economically 
dependent on An-
stonfield Solesa 
Kenya Limited and 
therefore the com-
plaint did not fall 
under the purview 
of the Act. The case 
was closed.

2. Pembe Flour 
Mills Limited 
& Kabansora 
vs. Millers 
Limited 
Ukwala 
Supermarkets 
Limited

Retail The Authority received a 
complaint from Pembe and 
Kabansora, both alleging that 
they had supplied Ukwala 
with goods for which they 
had not been paid.

Sections 
24(2A) 
(2B)(2D)

The Authority es-
tablished that Uk-
wala did not have 
buyer power as 
defined in Section 
24(2D) in regards to 
the two suppliers, 
therefore, the com-
plaint did not fall 
under the purview 
of the Act. The case 
was closed.

3. Flashmak 
Kenya 
Limited 
vs. Saltes 
Supermarkets 
Limited

Retail The Authority received a 
complaint from Flashmak 
Limited alleging that they had 
supplied Saltes Limited with 
goods for which they had not 
been paid for, over and above 
the agreed credit period.

Sections 
24(2A) 
(2B)(2D)

Investigations 
ongoing
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No. Case Sector/Market 
affected

Case Summary Relevant 
Section 
of the Act

Case status/
Decision

4. Bhumi 
Distributors 
Ltd vs. Saltes 
Supermarkets 
Limited

Retail The Authority received a 
complaint from Bhumi Dis-
tributors Limited alleging 
that they had supplied Saltes 
Supermarkets Limited with 
goods for which they had not 
been paid over and above the 
agreed credit period.

Sections 
24(2A) 
(2B)(2D)

Investigations 
ongoing

5. Cactus 
Technologies 
vs. East Africa 
Portland 
Cement 
Company 
Limited

Retail The Authority received a com-
plaint of an alleged non-pay-
ment of goods supplied to 
East African Portland Cement 
Company by Cactus Technol-
ogies.

Sections 
24(2A) 
(2B)(2D)

The Authority es-
tablished that the 
matter was a dis-
pute of settlement 
of a debt and not 
one abuse of Buy-
er Power by East 
African Portland 
Cement Company 
Limited. Therefore 
the complaint did 
not fall under the 
purview of the Act. 
The case was closed

6. Hendeta 
Provision 
Store Limited 
vs. Karrymart 
Limited

Retail The Authority received a 
complaint from Hendeta Pro-
vision Store Limited alleg-
ing that Karrymart Limited 
abused its position as a buyer 
by failing to pay for supply of 
candles against the terms of 
a supply agreement without 
justifiable reasons.

Sections 
24(2A) 
(2B)(2D)

The Authority de-
termined that the 
claims made by 
the complainant 
did not meet the 
threshold of Abuse 
of Buyer Power. 
Hendeta Provision 
Store Limited was 
not economically 
dependent on Kar-
rymart Limited and 
had options which 
it utilized. The case 
of debt collection 
rather than abuse 
of buyer power and 
was closed.
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No. Cases/inquiry Sector/Market 
affected

Case Summary Relevant 
Section 
of the Act

Case status/
Decision

7. Orchards 
Limited vs. 
Majid Al 
Futtaim Hy-
permarkets 
Limited

Retail The Authority received a com-
plaint from Orchards Limited 
alleging abuse of buyer power 
by Majid Al Futtaim Hyper-
markets Limited in terms of 
demand for rebates, unilateral 
termination of contract (del-
isting), passing of costs to the 
supplier, passing of risks to 
the supplier and demand to 
deploy permanent staff to the 
premises of Majid Al Futtaim 
Hypermarkets Limited.

Sections 
24(2A) 
(2B)(2D)

Investigations 
ongoing

8. Kenya Motor 
Repairers 
Association 
(KEMRA) vs. 
Various Insur-
ance Compa-
nies

Insurance and 
Automotive 
Repair

The complainant, KEMRA, 
alleged that its members 
were being subjected to Buyer 
power Abuses that included 
delaying payments, delisting 
and threats of delisting, de-
mand for rebates and passing 
of risk to the members of the 
Association.

Sections 
24(2A) 
(2B)(2D)

Investigations 
ongoing

9. Nordics 
Assessors 
Limited vs. 
CIC Insurance 
Company 
Limited; Mon-
arch Insur-
ance Compa-
ny Limited; 
Trident Insur-
ance Compa-
ny Limited 
and Xplico In-
surance Com-
pany Limited)

Insurance and 
Automotive 
Repair

The complainant, Nordics 
Assessors, alleged that the 
various insurance companies 
listed were abusing their Buy-
er Power by refusing to make 
payments after the perfor-
mance of agreed assessment 
on motor vehicles for purpos-
es of post-accident repairs.

Sections 
24(2A) 
(2B)(2D)

Investigations 
ongoing
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APPENDIX VI: MERGER CASES

No. Parties 
involved

Sector/Market
Merger Notifications

Summary Decision

1. Sai Office 
Supplies 
Limited 
and Lino 
Stationers 
Limited.

Wholesale 
distribution

The transaction involved ac-
quisition of the business and 
assets of Lino Stationers Lim-
ited by Sai Office Supplies 
Limited. Analysis revealed 
that it would not negatively 
affect competition but would 
likely raise public interest is-
sues.

Approved with condition that 
the merged entity absorbs not 
less than 57 out of the 74 em-
ployees after the completion of 
the proposed transaction.

2. Abyssinia 
Iron & Steel 
Limited 
and Top 
Steel Kenya 
Limited

Manufacturing The transaction involved ac-
quisition of certain assets of 
Top Steel Kenya Limited by 
Abyssinia Iron and Steel Lim-
ited. Analysis revealed that it 
would not negatively affect 
competition but would likely 
raise public interest issues.

Approved on condition that 
the merged entity retains six-
ty-six (66) of the eighty nine 
(89) employees of the target 
post-merger.

3. Kongoni 
River Farm 
Limited and 
Kreative 
Roses Limited

Agriculture The transaction involved ac-
quisition of certain Assets and 
part of the Business of Krea-
tive Roses Limited by Kongo-
ni River Farm Limited. Analy-
sis revealed that it would not 
negatively affect competition 
but would likely raise public 
interest issues.

Approved on condition that 
the target retains forty three 
(43) of its employees while the 
acquirer absorbs the remaining 
three hundred and sixty two 
(362) employees for at least one 
(1) year after the completion of 
the proposed transaction.
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No. Parties 
involved

Sector/Market
Merger Notifications

Summary Decision

4. UPL 
Corporation 
Limited 
and Arysta 
Lifescience 
INC

Manufacturing The transaction involved ac-
quisition of the entire share 
capital in Arysta Lifescience 
Inc. by UPL Corporation Lim-
ited. Analysis revealed that it 
would not negatively affect 
competition but would likely 
raise public interest issues.

Approved with conditions 
that the merged entity for a 
period of 12 months from the 
date of closing of the proposed 
transaction i) continues pack-
aging the target’s agrochemical 
products in packages ranging 
from 50ml/50g to 1 ltr/1 kg, ii) 
maintain current distribution 
model of the target, which en-
tails; a national agent; distrib-
utors and stockists, and the or-
ganization of farmers trainings 
on agrochemical products; and 
iii) submit a compliance report 
to the Authority after a period 
of 12 months.

5. Brenntag 
(Holding) 
B.V or its 
Nominee 
and Desbro 
(Kenya) 
Limited

Manufacturing The transaction involved ac-
quisition of 100% of the Busi-
ness and Assets of Desbro 
(Kenya) Limited by Brenntag 
(Holding) B.V or its Nomi-
nee. Analysis revealed that it 
would not negatively affect 
competition but would likely 
raise public interest issues.

The transaction was approved 
on condition that the acquir-
er retains the eighty (80) em-
ployees engaged in the target’s 
business post-transaction for a 
period of one year.

6. Commercial 
Bank of Africa 
Limited and 
NIC Group 
PLC

Financial and 
insurance 
services

The transaction involved a 
merger between Commercial 
Bank of Africa Limited and 
NIC Group PLC. Analysis re-
vealed that it would not neg-
atively affect competition but 
would likely raise negative 
public interest issues.

The transaction was approved 
on condition that; none of the 
one thousand, eight hundred 
and seventy-two (1,872) em-
ployees of the merged entity 
are declared redundant within 
a period of 12 months or one 
calendar year from the date 
of closing of the transaction in 
Kenya.
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No. Parties 
involved

Sector/Market
Merger Notifications

Summary Decision

7. Trufoods 
Limited 
and Golden 
Biscuits (1985) 
Limited

Manufacturing The transaction involved ac-
quisition of the Business and 
Assets of Golden Biscuits 
(1985) Limited by Trufoods 
Limited. Analysis revealed 
that it would not negatively 
affect competition but would 
likely raise public interest is-
sues.

The transaction was approved 
on condition that 50% (30) of 
the target’s permanent employ-
ees are absorbed by the acquir-
er.

8. Kuramo 
Africa Oppor-
tunity Kenyan 
Vehicle III 
Limited and 
Genafrica As-
set Managers 
Limited

Fund 
management

The transaction involved ac-
quisition of 90.84% of the 
shares in Genafrica Asset 
Managers Limited by Kuramo 
Africa Opportunity Kenyan 
Vehicle III Limited. Analysis 
revealed that the transaction 
would neither affect compe-
tition negatively nor raise any 
public concerns.

Approved unconditionally

9. Fairfax Afri-
ca Holdings 
Incorporation 
and Consol-
idated In-
frastructure 
Group Lim-
ited

Energy The transaction involved ac-
quisition of control of Con-
solidated Infrastructure 
Group Limited by Fairfax 
Africa Holdings Incorpora-
tion. Analysis revealed that 
the transaction would neither 
affect competition negatively 
nor raise any public concerns.

Approved unconditionally

10. Tunza Health 
Investments 
and Pyramid 
Healthcare 
Limited

Healthcare The transaction involved in-
vestments by Tunza Health 
Investments in Pyramid 
Healthcare Limited. Analysis 
revealed that the transaction 
would neither affect compe-
tition negatively nor raise any 
public concerns

Approved unconditionally
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No. Parties 
involved

Sector/Market
Merger Notifications

Summary Decision

11. Sai Office 
Supplies 
Limited and 
Office Mart 
Limited

Wholesale 
distribution

The transaction involved ac-
quisition of the Business and 
Assets of Office Mart Limited 
by Sai Office Supplies Lim-
ited. Analysis revealed that 
the transaction would neither 
affect competition negatively 
nor raise any public concerns.

Approved unconditionally

12. Africinvest 
Azure SPV 
and Prime 
Bank Limited

Finance and 
insurance 
activities

The transaction involved ac-
quisition of up to 25% share-
holding in Prime Bank Limit-
ed by Africinvest Azure SPV. 
Analysis revealed that the 
transaction would neither af-
fect competition negatively 
nor raise any public concerns.

Approved unconditionally

13. AEP Energy 
Africa 
Limited and 
Iberafrica 
Power (E.A.) 
Limited

Energy The transaction involved ac-
quisition of the entire issued 
share capital in Iberafrica 
Power (E.A) Limited by AEP 
Energy Africa Limited. Anal-
ysis revealed that the transac-
tion would neither affect com-
petition negatively nor raise 
any public concerns.

Approved unconditionally

14. Summit 
Real Estate 
Proprietary 
Limited 
and Nova 
Academics 
Tatu City 
Property 
Limited

Real estate The transaction involved ac-
quisition of Nova Academics 
Tatu City Property Limited 
by Summit Real Estate Pro-
prietary Limited. Analysis 
revealed that the transaction 
would neither affect compe-
tition negatively nor raise any 
public concerns.

Approved unconditionally
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No. Parties 
involved

Sector/Market
Merger Notifications

Summary Decision

15. Sokoni Retail 
Kenya and 
Tumaini 
Self Service 
Limited

Retail 
Distribution

The transaction involved ac-
quisition of control of Tu-
maini Self Service Limited by 
Sokoni Retail Kenya. Analysis 
revealed that the transaction 
would neither affect compe-
tition negatively nor raise any 
public concerns.

Approved unconditionally

16. ISS Global 
Forwarding 
(Kenya) Lim-
ited and Ken-
yan Freight 
Forwarding 
Business and 
Assets of 
Dodwell & 
Co. (East Af-
rica) Limited 
and Inchcape 
Shipping Ser-
vices Kenya 
Limited.

Logistics The transaction involved 
acquisition of the Kenyan 
Freight Forwarding Business 
and Assets of Dodwell & Co. 
(East Africa) Limited and 
those of Inchcape Shipping 
Services Kenya Limited. Anal-
ysis revealed that the transac-
tion would neither affect com-
petition negatively nor raise 
any public concerns.

Approved unconditionally

17. PPG Holdings 
Limited and 
Zelepak Afri-
ca Limited

Manufacturing The transaction involved ac-
quisition of control of Zelepak 
Africa Limited by PPG Hold-
ings Limited. Analysis re-
vealed that the transaction 
would neither affect compe-
tition negatively nor raise any 
negative public concerns.

Approved unconditionally

18. Bic East Africa 
Limited and 
Haco Indus-
tries Kenya 
Limited

Manufacturing The transaction involved ac-
quisition of the stationery 
and shavers manufacturing, 
sales and distribution of sta-
tionery, lighters and shavers 
Business of Haco Industries 
Kenya Limited by BIC East 
Africa Limited. Analysis re-
vealed that the transaction 
would neither affect compe-
tition negatively nor raise any 
public concerns.

Approved unconditionally
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No. Parties 
involved

Sector/Market
Merger Notifications

Summary Decision

19. Artcaffe 
Group and 
Art-Caffe 
Coffee & 
Bakery 
Limited

Confectionery The transaction involved ac-
quisition of 100% of the shares 
of Art-Caffee Coffee & Bakery 
Limited by Artcaffe Group. 
Analysis revealed that the 
transaction would neither af-
fect competition negatively 
nor raise any negative public 
concerns.

Approved unconditionally

20. Wild Ele-
gance Africa 
Limited and 
Wild Elegance 
Fashions Lim-
ited

Manufacturing The transaction involved ac-
quisition of the Assets and 
Business of Wild Elegance 
Fashions Limited by Wild El-
egance Africa Limited. Anal-
ysis revealed that the trans-
action would neither affect 
competition negatively nor 
raise any negative public con-
cerns.

Approved unconditionally

21. ACTIS In-
ternational 
Limited and 
Abraaj In-
vestment 
Management 
Limited

Hospitality The transaction involved ac-
quisition of indirect control of 
Abraaj Investment Manage-
ment Limited by ACTIS In-
ternational Limited. Analysis 
revealed that the transaction 
would neither affect compe-
tition negatively nor raise any 
negative public concerns.

Approved unconditionally

22. Rubis Energie 
SAS and Ke-
nolKobil PLC

Retail 
distribution

The transaction involved ac-
quisition of control of Ke-
nolKobil PLC by Rubis En-
ergie SAS. Analysis revealed 
that the transaction would 
neither affect competition 
negatively nor raise any neg-
ative public concerns.

Approved unconditionally
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No. Parties 
involved

Sector/Market
Merger Notifications

Summary Decision

23. Blue Nile 
Rolling Mills 
Limited and 
Blue Nile 
Wire Products 
Limited

Manufacturing The transaction involved ac-
quisition of the assets and 
business of Blue Nile Wire 
Products Limited by Blue Nile 
Rolling Mills Limited. Analy-
sis revealed that the transac-
tion would neither affect com-
petition negatively nor raise 
any negative public concerns.

Approved unconditionally

24. Ramco Plexus 
Limited 
and Sintel 
Security Print 
Solutions 
Limited

Printing The transaction involved ac-
quisition of 73.6% of the is-
sued share capital of Sintel 
Security Print Solutions Lim-
ited by Ramco Plexus Lim-
ited. Analysis revealed that 
the transaction would neither 
affect competition negatively 
nor raise any negative public 
concerns.

Approved unconditionally

25. Education 
Asia Holdings 
Limited and 
Hillcrest 
Investments 
Limited

Education The transaction involved ac-
quisition of 100% of the issued 
shares of Hillcrest Invest-
ments Limited by Education 
Asia Holdings Limited. Anal-
ysis revealed that the transac-
tion would neither affect com-
petition negatively nor raise 
any negative public concerns.

Approved unconditionally

26. MAU LLP’s 
and Pan 
African In-
frastructure 
Development 
Fund 2 SA & 
Pan African 
Infrastructure 
Development 
Fund 2 LLC

Energy The transaction involved ac-
quisition of investments of 
Pan African Infrastructure De-
velopment Fund 2 SA and Pan 
African Infrastructure Devel-
opment Fund 2 LLC by Mau 
LLP’s. Analysis revealed that 
the transaction would neither 
affect competition negatively 
nor raise any negative public 
concerns.

Approved unconditionally



COMPETITION AUTHORITY OF KENYA  | ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018/19 COMPETITION AUTHORITY OF KENYA  | ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018/19148

No. Parties 
involved

Sector/Market
Merger Notifications
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27. Dynasty 
Acquisition 
Company 
Inc. and 
Standardaero 
Holding Corp

Aviation The transaction involved ac-
quisition of sole control of 
Standardaero Holding Corp 
by Dynasty Acquisition Com-
pany Inc. Analysis revealed 
that the transaction would 
neither affect competition 
negatively nor raise any neg-
ative public concerns.

Approved unconditionally

28. Simba 
Cement 
Limited and 
Cemtech 
Limited

Manufacturing The transaction involved ac-
quisition of the entire business 
and assets of Cemtech Lim-
ited by Simba Cement Lim-
ited. Analysis revealed that 
the transaction would neither 
affect competition negatively 
nor raise any negative public 
concerns.

Approved unconditionally

29. 2667980 
Ontario Inc. 
and AGT 
Food & 
Ingredients 
Inc.

Distribution The transaction involved ac-
quisition of sole control of 
AGT Food & Ingredients Inc. 
by 2667980 Ontario Inc. Anal-
ysis revealed that the transac-
tion would neither affect com-
petition negatively nor raise 
any negative public concerns

Approved unconditionally

30. Beyond En-
ergy Invest-
ment Limited 
and BBOXX 
Capital Kenya 
Limited

Energy The transaction involved ac-
quisition of 40% shares with 
controlling rights of BBOXX 
Capital Kenya Limited by 
Beyond Energy Investments 
Limited. Analysis revealed 
that the transaction would 
neither affect competition 
negatively nor raise any neg-
ative public concerns.

Approved unconditionally
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31. Echotel 
International 
Proprietary 
Limited and 
IwayAfrica 
Kenya 
Limited

ICT The transaction involved ac-
quisition of 80% of the issued 
share capital of IwayAfrica 
Kenya Limited by Echotel In-
ternational Proprietary Lim-
ited. Analysis revealed that 
the transaction would neither 
affect competition negatively 
nor raise any negative public 
concerns.

Approved unconditionally

32. Heritour 
Limited and 
Abercrombie 
& Kent Group 
of Companies

Tourism The transaction involved ac-
quisition of control of Ab-
ercrombie & Kent Group of 
companies by Heritour Lim-
ited. Analysis revealed that 
the transaction would neither 
affect competition negatively 
nor raise any negative public 
concerns.

Approved unconditionally

33. Suresh Naran 
Varsani and 
Speedex 
Logistics 
Limited.

Logistics The transaction involved ac-
quisition of additional 47.5% 
shareholding in Speedex 
Logistics Limited by Suresh 
Naran Varsani from Harji 
Mavji Kerai for an aggregate 
of 97.5% shareholding. Anal-
ysis revealed that the transac-
tion would neither affect com-
petition negatively nor raise 
any negative public concerns.

Approved unconditionally

34. Actus Educa-
tion Holdings 
AB and Riara 
Group

Education The transaction involved ac-
quisition of 22.32% of the is-
sued share capital with con-
trolling rights in the Riara 
Group of Schools Limited by 
Actus Education Holdings 
AB. Analysis revealed that 
the transaction would neither 
affect competition negatively 
nor raise any negative public 
concerns.

Approved unconditionally
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35. Aquapani 
Limited and 
Aquamist 
Limited

Manufacturing The transaction involved ac-
quisition of 100% of the issued 
share capital of Aquamist 
Limited by Aquapani Limit-
ed. Analysis revealed that the 
transaction would neither af-
fect competition negatively 
nor raise any negative public 
concerns.

Approved unconditionally

36. Aquapani 
Limited and 
Aquaplast 
Limited

Manufacturing The transaction involved ac-
quisition of 100% of the issued 
share capital of Aquaplast 
Limited by Aquapani Limit-
ed. Analysis revealed that the 
transaction would neither af-
fect competition negatively 
nor raise any negative public 
concerns.

Approved unconditionally

37. TIM Bidco 1 
Limited and 
Enchanting 
Africa 
Limited

Tourism The transaction involved ac-
quisition of control of En-
chanting Africa Limited by 
TIM Bidco 1 Limited. Analy-
sis revealed that the transac-
tion would neither affect com-
petition negatively nor raise 
any negative public concerns.

Approved unconditionally

38. Boeing Com-
pany and 
Embraer S.A

Manufacturing The transaction involved ac-
quisition of control of the 
commercial aviation Business 
of Embraer S.A by the Boeing 
Company. Analysis revealed 
that the transaction would 
neither affect competition 
negatively nor raise any neg-
ative public concerns.

Approved unconditionally
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39. Compagnie 
Financiere 
Michelin 
SCMA and 
CFAO

Manufacturing The transaction involved cre-
ation of a joint venture be-
tween CFAO and Compagnie 
Financiere Michelin SCMA. 
Analysis revealed that the 
transaction would not affect 
competition negatively nor 
raise any negative public con-
cerns.

Approved unconditionally

40. TPG and 
Abraaj 
Growth 
Markets 
Health Fund 
L.P., Abraaj 
Growth Mar-
kets Health 
Fund (B) L.P.

Healthcare The transaction involved in-
vestment by TPG in Assets 
held by Abraaj Growth Mar-
kets Health Fund L.P., Abraaj 
Growth Markets Health Fund 
(B) L.P. Analysis revealed that 
the transaction would neither 
affect competition negatively 
nor raise any negative public 
concerns.

Approved unconditionally

41. Azura Power 
Limited 
and Thika 
Holding 
Limited

Energy The transaction involved ac-
quisition of 90% of the shares 
in Thika Holding Limited by 
Azura Power Limited. Analy-
sis revealed that the transac-
tion would neither affect com-
petition negatively nor raise 
any negative public concerns.

Approved unconditionally

42. Frontier 
Energy and 
Chania Green 
Generation 
Limited

Energy The transaction involved ac-
quisition of control of Chania 
Green Generation Limited 
by Frontier Energy. Analysis 
revealed that the transaction 
would neither affect compe-
tition negatively nor raise any 
negative public concerns.

Approved unconditionally
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43. Saudi 
Arabian Oil 
Company and 
Saudi Basic 
Industries 
Corporation

Manufacturing The transaction involved ac-
quisition of sole control of 
Saudi Basic Industries Corpo-
ration by Saudi Arabian Oil 
Company. Analysis revealed 
that the transaction would 
neither affect competition 
negatively nor raise any neg-
ative public concerns.

Approved unconditionally

44. Cytonn 
Investment 
Partners 
Twenty LLP 
and Wasini 
Resorts Lim-
ited

Tourism The transaction involved ac-
quisition of control of Wasini 
Resorts Limited by Cytonn 
Investment Partners Twenty 
LLP. Analysis revealed that 
the transaction would neither 
affect competition negatively 
nor raise any negative public 
concerns.

Approved unconditionally

45. Inchcape 
Kenya 
Limited and 
RMA Motors 
(K) Limited

Distribution The transaction involved ac-
quisition of control of RMA 
Motors (K) Limited by Inch-
cape Kenya Limited. Analysis 
revealed that the transaction 
would neither affect compe-
tition negatively nor raise any 
negative public concerns.

Approved unconditionally
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APPENDIX VII: CONSUMER CASES

No. Case Sector/Market Case Summary Relevant 
Section of 
the Act

Case status/
Decision

1. Boniface 
Waweru vs 
Safaricom Plc.

Information 
and communi-
cation

The complainant alleged 
that he had made two trans-
actions but had not been 
awarded the respective 
points under the Maisha 
ni M-Pesa Tu promotion as 
advertised. He raised the 
matter with Safaricom and 
was informed that the issue 
would be resolved within 
24 hours. The issue had not 
been resolved three days 
later neither had Safaricom 
contacted him.

Section 55 
(a)(v) False 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentations 
and 56 (1) 
Unconscion-
able con-
duct.

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
the complainant 
confirmed that 
Safaricom had re-
solved the matter, 
and the case was 
closed.

2. Susan Warui 
vs Naivas 
Supermarket

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant had 
bought 15 packets of long 
life milk from Naivas Su-
permarket and the milk 
went bad before the expiry 
date.

Section 56 
(1) (2) Un-
consciona-
ble conduct.

The Authority en-
gaged Naivas Su-
permarket and 
they replaced the 
milk. The case was 
closed.

3. Ms. Jane Rose 
Omondi vs 
Zuku

Information 
and communi-
cation

The complainant alleged 
that she had been experi-
encing fluctuations in con-
nectivity.

Sections 
55(a) (ii) 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions and 
56(1) Un-
consciona-
ble conduct.

Zuku improved 
her signal upon 
the Authority’s 
intervention. The 
matter was closed.

4. Gillian Neky 
vs Jumia 
Kenya

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant claimed 
that she had purchased 
phones worth Kshs 50,000 
from Jumia and a confir-
mation on the same was 
sent to her e-mail. Howev-
er, she was later informed 
by Jumia that the items she 
had purchased were phone 
cases and not phones.

Section 56 
Unconscion-
able con-
duct.

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
the complainant 
was given a full re-
fund. The case was 
closed.
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the Act

Case status/
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5. Felix Nyang-
wara vs 
Chloride 
Exide-Kisii 
Service Center

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant bought a 
battery from Chloride Ex-
ide in Kisii Town, which 
had a one-year warranty. 
It was however not work-
ing and he returned the 
battery. He was referred to 
Chloride Exide-Kisii Ser-
vice Centre which assessed 
and informed him that the 
battery had a low acid lev-
el, which led to its malfunc-
tioning and thus could not 
be refunded/replaced. The 
complainant therefore left 
the battery behind for re-
pair, but the Service Centre 
never fixed it.

Section 56 
(1), (2)(a)
(e) Uncon-
scionable 
Conduct

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
the complainant 
was issued with a 
new battery and the 
case was closed.

6. Kenyon Lim-
ited vs Tool-
craft Ltd

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant bought a 
Mig welding machine from 
Toolcraft Limited. He al-
leged that the machine was 
substandard since it had 
broken down severally and 
had not been used since the 
time of purchase. He took 
the machine to the accused 
for repairs but it still never 
worked.

Section 55 
(a) (i), (b) 
(ii), (v), 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tion 56 (1), 
(2) (a) Un-
consciona-
ble Conduct

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
the complainant 
was given a full 
credit note and 
they were satisfied 
with the redress. 
The case was then 
closed.

7. Paul Nanjero 
vs Zuku

Information 
and communi-
cation

The complainant alleged 
that he entered into an 
agreement with Zuku to 
provide him with unlim-
ited internet connection of 
up to 30 Mbps at a fee of 
Ksh. 4, 800 monthly. How-
ever, he persistently had 
poor internet connectiv-
ity that hardly reached 5 
Mbps.

Section 56 
(1), (2) (a) 
& (d) of the 
Act, Uncon-
scionable 
conduct

The complainant’s 
issue was resolved 
through his con-
firmation that the 
connectivity had 
improved. The case 
was closed.
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the Act
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8. Antony Mai-
na vs Malibu 
Telkoms

Information 
and communi-
cation

The complainant alleged 
that Malibu Telkoms and 
Tricom Technologies failed 
to notify the Authority of 
their merger.

Sections 
41(1) and 42 
(2) (a) 42(3) 
42(5) and 
42(6).

The matter is being 
investigated.

9. Mr. Rufus 
Waithaka 
vs Property 
Reality Com-
pany (PRC)

Real estate 
activities

The complainant alleged 
that he purchased land 
from PRC but the compa-
ny failed to provide the 
land and his efforts to get 
a refund had failed for two 
years.

N/A The matter did 
not lie within the 
mandate of the Au-
thority and he was 
referred to the Di-
rectorate of Crimi-
nal Investigations.

10. Francis 
Nyakundi vs 
Cute Kitchen 
Ltd

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that he purchased a sug-
arcane machine from Cute 
Kitchen Ltd and after one 
week, it became defective. 
He took it back to the sell-
er who indicated that they 
were not in a position to 
repair it. He was referred 
to a workshop in industrial 
area.

Section 55 
(a)(i) and 55 
(b) (v) False 
or Mislead-
ing Rep-
resentation 
& Section 56 
(1) (2) (a) & 
(b) Uncon-
scionable 
Conduct

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
the complainant 
was refunded an es-
timated cost of Ksh. 
35,000 for repairs. 
He confirmed that 
he was satisfied 
with the redress 
and the case was 
closed.

11. Mr. Barnes 
Kwoba Were 
vs Modern 
Coast Express

Transportation 
and storage

The complainant alleged 
that he sent a parcel con-
taining various personal 
items including electronic 
items from Nairobi to Ki-
sumu via Modern Coast 
Express and the parcel was 
never received by his recip-
ient. Further, the bus com-
pany declined to give an 
explanation nor avail the 
parcel even after writing to 
them.

Section 56 
(1)(2)(a) Un-
consciona-
ble conduct

The Authority en-
gaged Modern 
Coast Express and 
they agreed to am-
icably settle the 
matter. The com-
plainant was com-
pensated with the 
amount of personal 
items that had been 
declared at the time 
of sending the par-
cel. The case was 
closed on 8th Au-
gust 2018.
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12. Nicholas 
Adams vs 
Stranmore 
Holdings Ltd

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that the accused refused to 
notify him of the arrival of 
his motor vehicle from Ja-
pan in April 2017, and in 
the process it accrued stor-
age charges.

N/A The complainant 
failed to provide 
evidence of pur-
chase of the vehicle 
to enable the Au-
thority pursue the 
matter hence the 
case was closed.

13. Kennedy 
Kemboi vs 
Sulman Life 
Insurance Ltd

Financial and 
insurance ac-
tivities

Complainant alleged that 
Sulman Life Insurance Ltd 
failed to pay up for policies 
taken by Christine Chelimo 
Kogo (deceased).

Section 55 
False or 
Misleading 
representa-
tions

The matter was 
forwarded to In-
surance Regulato-
ry Authority (IRA) 
who established 
that policy pay-
ments had never 
been remitted. The 
Authority informed 
the complainant of 
this response from 
IRA and the matter 
was closed.

14. Stephen 
Kiptinness vs 
Kenya Orient 
Insurance Ltd

Financial and 
insurance ac-
tivities

The complainant alleged 
that Kenya Orient Insur-
ance Ltd had failed to fully 
compensate him for repairs 
of his vehicle which had 
been involved in an acci-
dent.

Section 
55(a)(ii), (b)
(i) False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions Sec-
tion 56 (1), 
(2)(a)(b)(c)
(e) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct.

The matter was for-
warded to IRA. The 
complainant con-
firmed that he had 
been compensated 
and the case was 
closed.
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15. Kelvin Kubai 
vs Auto Cats 
International 
Ltd

Transportation 
and storage

The complainant bought a 
Mitsubishi lancer at Auto 
Cats International Limit-
ed. The vehicle developed 
mechanical problems after 
sometime which included 
a faulty gearbox. He also 
confirmed with quality 
service inspectors that the 
mileage had been tam-
pered with.

Section 55 
(a) (i) False 
or Mislead-
ing rep-
resentations 
and Section 
56 (1) (2)
(a) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct

The Authority en-
gaged the Direc-
torate of Criminal 
Investigations to 
assist in the inves-
tigation. However, 
the complainant in-
formed the Author-
ity that he did not 
wish to pursue the 
matter further.

16. Nyaruai 
Gitonga vs 
Artcaffe

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that she purchased gluten 
free cookies from Artcaffe 
which affected her health 
as she was gluten intoler-
ant. Upon contacting Art-
caffe, she was informed 
that there was a disclaimer 
that the cookies had traces 
of gluten.

Section 
55(a) (i) (v) 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions 56(1) 
(2) (a) (d) 
(e) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct 
and 63(1) 
Unsuitable 
goods.

The Authority en-
gaged Artcaffe and 
they agreed to set-
tle the matter pur-
suant to Section 38 
of the Act. The case 
was forwarded the 
Enforcement and 
Compliance De-
partment for com-
pliance check.

17. Robert Motat-
iro vs Pioneer 
Insurance 
Company

Financial and 
insurance ac-
tivities

The complainant had been 
remitting Ksh. 1,000 as pre-
mium to Pioneer Insurance 
Company since July 2016 
from his pension. He in-
structed the accused to stop 
further deductions through 
a letter but they did not 
honour his instructions.

N/A The Authority en-
gaged Pioneer In-
surance Company 
and they respond-
ed that they had not 
been receiving the 
complainant’s pre-
mium remittances. 
The complainant 
sent updated state-
ments which con-
firmed that there 
were no premium 
remittances. The 
matter was closed 
in November 2018.
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18. Joseph 
Mathenge 
vs Safaricom 
PLC

Information 
and communi-
cations

The complainant alleged 
that the 1GB data bundle 
advertised by Safaricom 
was not actually 1GB and 
therefore misleading and 
fraudulent to consumers. 
In addition to this, he had 
sent Ksh.2000 from his Sa-
faricom line to his Voda-
com line but the amount 
did not reflect. He also 
claimed that he was over-
charged while using Safar-
icom’s East Africa roaming 
bundle.

Section 
55(a)(v) 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions.

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
the complainant 
was fully refund-
ed the Ksh. 2,000, 
and the overcharge 
from the East Afri-
ca roaming bundle. 
Safaricom PLC also 
refunded the other 
155 customers af-
fected by the over-
charge on roaming 
bundles. The mat-
ter was closed.

19. Gabriel 
Magumba vs 
TNT World 
Couriers

Transportation 
and storage

The complainant claimed 
that he used TNT World 
Couriers to send a package 
to the UK and they mis-
handled the goods leading 
to a total loss and refusal 
by the recipient to accept 
them. He claimed that the 
loss was approximately 
700 Euros. The courier only 
offered to pay $1 for the 
claim, even after the com-
plainant had presented to 
them a clear evidence on 
how the goods had been 
damaged on transit.

Section 
57(2) (a) (c) 
(d) (f) (g) 
and (k) Un-
consciona-
ble conduct 
in business 
transactions

TNT World Courier 
indicated that the 
complainant had 
declared a value of 
$1 when sending 
the goods. The Au-
thority established 
that the complain-
ant failed to declare 
the true value of the 
shipment. The mat-
ter was closed.
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20. Simon Mbevu 
vs Infinity 
Youth Enter-
prises

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant bought 
two Smartphone Soccer 
T30 and T20 from Infinity 
Youth Enterprises. He al-
leged that the phones were 
not accepting memory 
cards.

Section 55 
(a) (i),(b) 
(v) False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions and 
Section 56 
(1), (2) (a) 
of the Act 
Unconscion-
able behav-
ior.

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
Infinity Youth En-
terprises settled 
the matter amica-
bly by giving the 
complainant new 
phones. The com-
plainant was satis-
fied with the reso-
lution. The matter 
was then closed.

21. Rachel Kar-
iuki vs Text 
Book Centre

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

Complainant alleged that 
she bought a printer from 
Text Book Centre – Galle-
ria Mall Branch that was 
not functional. On making 
a complaint to Text Book 
Centre for a refund, she 
was informed that they do 
not offer refunds. Instead, 
they took the printer for re-
pair and informed her that 
they had found no fault in 
the printer.

55 (a) (i) and 
(v) False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions and 56 
(1) (2) (a) (d) 
& (e) of the 
Act (Uncon-
scionable 
conduct)

The Authority en-
gaged Text Book 
Centre and they 
confirmed that the 
printer was in good 
condition. There 
being no evidence 
supporting the alle-
gations, the matter 
was closed on 5th 
October 2018.
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22. Alice Wambui 
vs Standard 
Chartered 
Bank Alice 
Wambui vs 
Standard 
Chartered 
Bank

Financial and 
insurance ac-
tivities

The complainant alleged 
that she applied for a loan 
at an interest rate of 15.9% 
from Standard Chartered 
Bank repayable for a period 
of 60 months. She further 
informed that the interest 
rate had been fluctuating 
and that she was not sure 
whether the bank effected 
the capping of interest rates 
as directed to commercial 
banks by the Central Bank 
of Kenya. She also added 
that the bank charged her 
for a credit card that she 
had not been using.

Sections 
55(b) (ii) 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions and 
56(1) (2) (a) 
(c) (d) (e), 
56(3) (4) Un-
consciona-
ble conduct.

The Authority en-
gaged Standard 
Chartered Bank 
who indicated that 
the complainant 
had not contacted 
hem for redress. 
The Authority sent 
the details of the 
complainant to 
Standard Chartered 
Bank. The matter 
was resolved ami-
cably by her receiv-
ing a refund total-
ing to Kshs 60,000. 
The case was closed 
in November 2018

23. Nyawira Kari-
mi vs Clothes 
designer

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged to 
have engaged the clothes 
designer in Mombasa to 
have two (2) suits and a 
trouser made. Upon collec-
tion, she realized that the 
trousers were tight, short 
and did not have buttons, 
and that the hemming was 
done in different colors.

Section 56 
(1), (2) (a) 
(d) and (e) 
of the Act 
Unconscion-
able con-
duct.

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
the complainant 
was refunded the 
money and the case 
was closed.

24. Mathew 
Ochieng vs 
Spaceman IT 
Mart Mom-
basa

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that he returned a laptop 
he had purchased from the 
accused for repair but it 
took too long though it was 
still under warranty.

Section 56 
(1) (2) Un-
consciona-
ble conduct

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
Spaceman IT Mart 
replaced the lap-
top with a new one 
and the matter was 
closed.
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25. Martin Situbi 
and Ann Mai-
na vs Maasai 
Mara Univer-
sity

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainants alleged 
that they supplied assort-
ed electronic items to the 
Maasai Mara University 
but they had not been paid 
for over six months.

N/A The matter was out-
side the purview 
of the Authority’s 
mandate and was 
referred to Public 
Procurement and 
Regulatory Author-
ity.

26. Stephen 
Kiptiness vs 
Auto-xpress 
Ltd

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that he had bought tyres 
and was informed that the 
side wall and rim protec-
tor curvature would bulge 
outwards and would have 
a better fit after a few days. 
This never happened and 
when he complained, he 
was informed that nothing 
could be done.

Section 
55(a) False 
or Mis-
leading 
representa-
tions.

The Authority en-
gaged Auto-xpress 
Ltd and the com-
plainant was fully 
refunded. The mat-
ter was closed.

27. Kevin Isika vs 
Carrefour

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant claimed 
that he had bought milk 
from Carrefour Supermar-
ket, Sarit Centre, which 
was spoilt. He then con-
tacted the supermarket and 
was advised to return the 
milk for replacement.

Section 59 
(1) (a) Prod-
uct Safety 
and Unsafe 
goods & 60 
(1) Product 
information.

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
the milk was re-
placed and the mat-
ter was closed.

28. David Maiyo 
vs Railways

Transportation 
and storage

The complainant alleged 
that he paid for a Madara-
ka Express ticket for a Nai-
robi-Mombasa bound train 
but his family was forced 
to pay for another ticket to 
travel because the payment 
had not reflected in the sys-
tem.

Section 
56(1) and 
(2)(a) and 
(e) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct.

Upon the Authori-
ty’s intervention, a 
refund was made 
to the complainant 
and the case was 
closed.
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29. Kwame Nkru-
mah vs Blue 
Water Group 
Ltd

Information 
and communi-
cation

The complainant alleged 
that he had contacted Blue 
Water Group Ltd to pro-
duce a Skiza tune for him 
and made a payment of 
Ksh. 3,000 through Mpesa. 
He was told that the pro-
duction of his Skiza tune 
would be completed with-
in 72 working hours. That 
did not materialize and his 
request for a refund was 
not honored.

Sections 
55(a) (ii) (v) 
False and 
misleading 
representa-
tions and 
56(1) (2) and 
(e) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct.

The complainant 
later confirmed 
that he had been 
refunded. The case 
was closed.

30. Owino David 
Odero vs Is-
mail Hassan

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that he had bought a Yama-
ha MOXF6 Piano on OLX 
posted by Ismail Hassan. 
After paying Ksh.91, 000, 
he was informed that the 
item was at Abu Dhabi and 
was forced to pay insur-
ance fee of Ksh. 39,000. He 
was still being asked to pay 
Ksh. 58,690 for clearance 
which he did not pay. The 
item was never delivered 
to him.

Section 55 
(b)(i)(iii) 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions and 56 
(1), (2)(a)(d)
(e), (4) Un-
consciona-
ble conduct.

The matter was for-
warded to the Di-
rectorate of Crim-
inal Investigations 
on 12th July 2018 as 
it did not lie within 
the mandate of the 
Authority.

31. Felista Kai-
muri vs Urithi 
Housing 
Cooperative 
society

Financial and 
insurance ac-
tivities

The complainant alleged 
that she had purchased a 
fish pond from Urithi and 
as per the agreement, was 
to receive a return of Ksh. 
40,000 every 6 months. She 
was paid Ksh. 34,000 after 9 
months, and was informed 
that the remaining balance 
had been deducted as tax. 
This had not been disclosed 
in the agreement. She de-
cided to withdraw from 
the project due to non-pay-
ment of returns and was 
asked to wait for 3 months.

Section 55 
(a) (v) False 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentations 
and 56(1) 
(2) (a) (d) 
(e) (4) of the 
Act, Uncon-
scionable 
conduct

The Authority en-
gaged Urithi and 
she was fully re-
funded The matter 
was closed.
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32. Gordon 
Moodley vs 
Bergman 
Group

Financial and 
insurance ac-
tivities

The complainant claimed 
that he bought shares from 
Bergman Group. He was 
further required to pay 
an additional amount of 
$2,700 for processing and 
another $1,000 since the 
shares were being sold be-
fore its maturity period of 
2 years. The transaction 
turned out to be a scam.

N/A The matter did 
not lie within the 
mandate of the 
Authority and 
was forwarded to 
the Directorate of 
Criminal Investi-
gations on 4th Sep-
tember 2018.

33. Marieta Wa-
chira vs Tita-
nium Phones 
& Tablets

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that she had bought a 
Samsung S6 from Titani-
um Phones & Tablets but 
the phone was faulty. She 
took it back and repaired 
the screen, but the problem 
recurred. She went back to 
Titanium Phones & Tablets 
and bought an iPhone S6 
which developed the same 
issue. She established that 
the phones were meant for 
Asian networks only.

Section 56 
(1) (2) (a) (d) 
and (e) Un-
consciona-
ble conduct.

The Authority en-
gaged Titanium 
Phones & Tablets 
and it was agreed 
that the complain-
ant contacts the 
accused to resolve 
matter. However, 
she failed to vis-
it the accused and 
the case was closed 
on 14th December 
2018.

34. Ishwarlal 
Bulsara vs 
anonymous

Financial and 
insurance ac-
tivities

The complainant alleged 
that his pension had not 
been remitted to his bank 
account for the last 1 year 
from Kenya Railways Cor-
poration.

N/A The complainant 
was advised to li-
aise with Kenya 
Railways Corpora-
tion, as the matter 
did not lie within 
the mandate of the 
Authority.

35. Walter 
Wamalwah vs 
JazaCart

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that he had paid for a TCL 
Smart TV model 32D2930 
from JazaCart but instead, 
he received a TCL TV mod-
el 32S4900.

Section 55 
(a)(i), (b)
(i) False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions and 
56 (1), (2)
(e) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct.

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
the complainant 
was refunded. The 
matter was closed.
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36. Lincoln Mut-
wiri vs KCB

Financial and 
insurance ac-
tivities

The complainant alleged 
that he had taken a KCB 
M-pesa loan on 25th June 
2018 and had repaid it on 
22nd July 2018 but the bank 
still insisted that he had not 
repaid.

Section 56 
(1) (2) Un-
consciona-
ble conduct.

The case was closed 
on 31st October 
2018 after the com-
plainant was made 
to understand that 
his repayment of 
the loan had been 
unsuccessful and 
he needed to re-do 
it.

37. Newton 
Midamba vs 
Bodytech

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that he had bought a co-
logne perfume from Body-
tech Shop in Bububuru but 
the product was an imita-
tion.

N/A The complaint was 
forwarded to the 
Anti-Counterfeit 
Agency.

38. Amadi Kevo 
vs ZUKU

Information 
and communi-
cation

The complainant alleged 
that Zuku advertised that 
their internet speeds were 
up to 30Mbps but they of-
fered lower speeds.

Section 55 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions.

The complainant 
failed to provide 
the requisite in-
formation and the 
matter was closed.

39. Kevin Isika 
vs Zucchini 
Greengrocers 
Limited

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that he had bought bread 
from Zucchini Greengro-
cers Limited which was 
burnt and was not suitable 
for human consumption. 
He had complained to the 
Company but had received 
no response.

Section 56 
(1) (2) (a) (d) 
Unconscion-
able con-
duct. Sec-
tion 63 & 64 
Unsuitable 
goods and 
defective 
goods.

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
the matter was re-
solved amicably 
and the complain-
ant was refund-
ed. The case was 
closed.
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40. CAK vs 
Naivas Super-
market

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The Authority initiated in-
vestigations into mislead-
ing advertisements by Nai-
vas Supermarket regarding 
their marinated chicken be-
ing sold at their Westlands 
branch. The adverts indi-
cated that the price was for 
the whole chicken, whereas 
it was actually the price per 
kg, which was misleading 
consumers.

Sections 
55(1)(b) 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions.

The Authority is-
sued a warning let-
ter to the supermar-
ket on 6th Sept 2018. 
The supermarket 
complied with the 
Authority’s orders 
by changing the 
advertisements to 
reflect the correct 
information. The 
case was closed.

41. Sheila Dawin 
vs Zuku

Information 
and communi-
cation

The complainant alleged 
that Zuku was falsely ad-
vertising their prices for 
Home Internet and TV. She 
indicated that the prices on 
their website were for new 
customers only. Further, 
the complainant added 
that Zuku had increased 
their prices in October 2018 
without notifying custom-
ers.

Section 55 
(b)(i) False 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentation

The complainant 
failed to provide 
the requisite evi-
dence and later in-
dicated that she did 
not wish to pursue 
the matter. The case 
was closed.

42. Moses K. 
Mwangi vs 
Simba Trac-
tors

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant had pur-
chased a plough from the 
accused and it broke down 
on the first day of use. He 
had complained to Simba 
Tractors but he got no as-
sistance.

N/A The matter did not 
lie within the man-
date of the Author-
ity and was for-
warded to Kenya 
Bureau of Stand-
ards on 26th Febru-
ary 2019.

43. Mobin Habib 
vs Cozy Col-
lection

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant had or-
dered for two drying racks. 
He had not been informed 
of additional charges for 
delivery to Mombasa. The 
racks delivered were not 
what he had ordered.

Section 
55(a)(i) 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions and 
56(1)(2)(a) 
(d) and (4) 
Unconscion-
able con-
duct.

The Authority en-
gaged Cozy Col-
lection and they 
refunded the com-
plainant. The mat-
ter was closed.
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44. Mohamed 
Omar Ali vs 
Telkom Kenya 
Ltd

Information 
and communi-
cation

The complainant alleged 
that he had subscribed 
for a 3GB monthly bun-
dle package with Telkom 
Kenya Ltd. However, his 
subscription had been ex-
hausted after approximate-
ly one and a half hours. He 
wanted the accused to jus-
tify his data usage.

Section 
55(a) (ii) 
and (b) (i) 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions and 
56(2) Un-
consciona-
ble conduct.

The Authority initi-
ated investigations 
on the accused. 
The complainant 
however withdrew 
from the case. The 
matter was closed.

45. Consul Desig-
nate vs Airtel 
Kenya

Information 
and communi-
cation

The complainant alleged 
that Airtel Kenya had 
been involved in mislead-
ing consumers by making 
them inadvertently sub-
scribe to daily alerts that 
consume funds from their 
accounts.

N/A The complainant 
failed to provide 
more information 
relating to the al-
leged daily alerts. 
The matter was 
closed on Novem-
ber 2018.

46. Rombosia 
Nelima Laura 
vs Anisuma 
Traders

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that she had purchased a 
Sony Home Cinema Sys-
tem which was defective 
but the accused was not 
willing to replace the sys-
tem despite it having a 
warranty.

Sections 
55(a) (i) & 
(v) False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions, 56(1) 
(2) (a) (e) 
Unconscion-
able con-
duct and 59 
2(b) Prod-
uct safety 
and unsafe 
goods.

The Authority en-
gaged Anisuma 
Traders and they 
agreed to replace 
the faulty system. 
However the com-
plainant failed to 
visit the accused 
for a replacement 
and the matter was 
closed.

47. Ms. Maria 
Thiege vs 
B-Trendy

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that she had purchased a 
dress from an online insta-
gram store, B Trendy, but 
received a different dress 
from what she had or-
dered. Neither an exchange 
nor refund was forthcom-
ing from the accused.

Sections 
55(a) (i) 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions and 
56(1) (2) (d) 
& (e) Un-
consciona-
ble conduct.

The Authority en-
gaged B Trendy and 
they exchanged the 
complainant’s dress 
.The matter was 
closed.
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48. Zuzana 
Kohutova vs 
Kenya Air-
ways

Transportation 
and storage

The complainant alleged 
that she had purchased 
flight tickets from Kenya 
Airways. The tickets were 
however not accepted due 
to a pricing system error 
and she was asked to pay 
additional fees. Further, 
she was told that if she was 
not willing to pay the addi-
tional fees, she should ap-
ply for cancellation of the 
ticket to receive a refund.

Section 56 
(1) (2) (3) & 
(4) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct.

Kenya Airways re-
solved the matter 
by re-issuing the 
complainant with 
another ticket, and 
the matter was 
closed.

49. Joshua Abaki 
vs anony-
mous

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that he had bought a phone 
with an internal memory 
of 8 GB and was assured 
by the seller that it could 
support an android system 
and particular applications 
like WhatsApp and Face-
book. He later discovered 
that the memory was 256 
MB. The seller refused to 
exchange or refund.

Section 55 
(a) (i), (v) 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions and 
56 (1), (2) 
(a), (d) and 
(e) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct.

The complainant 
failed to provide 
the requisite ev-
idence to enable 
the Authority pur-
sue the matter. The 
case was therefore 
closed.

50. Odhiambo 
Makaduol vs 
Nestle Kenya 
Ltd

Manufacturing Manufacturing The com-
plainant alleged that he 
had been served with an 
illicit Nescafe classic coffee 
product, packed and dis-
tributed by Nestle Kenya 
Ltd.

Section 59 
Product 
safety and 
unsafe 
goods.

The matter did not 
lie within the man-
date of the Author-
ity and was for-
warded to KEBS on 
30th April 2019.
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51. Wahida Jamal 
vs Tuskys 
Supermarket, 
Kilifi

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant claimed 
that she returned a faulty 
microwave to Tuskys Su-
permarket, Kilifi for repair 
under warranty. The super-
market returned the micro-
wave but it had a broken 
glass door and handle. She 
declined to take the ma-
chine from the supermar-
ket.

Section 56 
(1) (2) (a) & 
(d) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct.

The complainant 
failed to provide 
evidence of pur-
chase, thus the Au-
thority could not 
proceed with the 
investigation. The 
matter was closed.

52. Mulika Mpan-
go vs Safari-
com PLC

Information 
and communi-
cation

The complainant claimed 
that Safaricom PLC had 
suspended their company’s 
telephone line without giv-
ing them a notice.

Section 57 
(1) (2) (a) 
(d) (g) & 
(k) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct in 
business 
transactions.

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
Safaricom PLC 
restored the com-
plainant’s line. The 
matter was closed.

53. Phillis Weru 
vs Hotpoint 
Appliances 
Limited

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that she had bought a 
Whirlpool dryer from Hot-
Point Appliances Limited 
which was defective and 
therefore wanted a refund.

Section 56 
(1) (2) (a) 
(e) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct, 63 
Unsuitable 
goods and 
64 Defective 
goods.

The Authority in-
tervened and the 
complainant was 
given a full re-
fund. The case was 
closed.

54. Newton 
Gitonga vs 
Softcare

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that softcare diapers were 
substandard and were 
leaking.

Section 
55 (a) (i) 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions.

The complainant 
failed to provide 
the receipt of pur-
chase and a sample 
of the diaper to en-
able the Authority 
proceed with inves-
tigation. The case 
was closed.
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55. Ms. Agata 
Radomska vs 
Laundromatt 
Dry Cleaners

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that the drycleaners dam-
aged her husband’s wed-
ding tie and refused to take 
responsibility.

Section 
56(1) and 
(2) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct.

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
the matter was 
resolved and the 
complainant was 
compensated. The 
matter was closed.

56. Responsible 
Gaming Soci-
ety of Kenya 
vs Standard 
Media Group

Information 
and communi-
cation

The complainant accused 
Standard Media Group 
of engaging in deceptive 
advertisement on diverse 
dates.

Section 
55 (a) (i) 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions.

The matter did 
not lie within the 
mandate of the 
Authority and was 
forwarded to the 
Betting Control and 
Licensing Board in 
December 2018.

57. Chelangat 
Evaline vs 
Startup Tech-
nology

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant had 
bought a computer from 
Startup Technology. How-
ever, the machine was 
faulty and attempts by the 
dealers at fixing it were un-
successful.

N/A The matter was 
closed in February 
2019 after the com-
plainant confirmed 
that she was fully 
refunded.

58. Emmaculate 
Kemunto vs 
Multichoice 
Ltd (DSTV 
Kenya)

Information 
and communi-
cation

The complainant alleged 
that she bought a HD-
DSTV decoder from Mul-
tichoice Kenya with a 1 
month DSTV Compact 
subscription + Wifi rout-
er with 10GB of data for 
over three months. Howev-
er, she did not receive the 
third month’s Wifi data.

Section 
55 (a) (v) 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions.

The Authority in-
tervened and the 
complainant had 
data credited in her 
account. The matter 
was closed on 6th 
February 2019.

59. David Maiyo 
vs Eldoret 
Water and 
Sanitation 
(Eldowas)

Water supply; 
sewerage, 
waste man-
agement and 
remediation 
activities

The complainant alleged 
that Eldowas delayed to 
connect his account.

Section 56 
(1) (2) (a) (c) 
(d) (e), Un-
consciona-
ble conduct

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
the complainant’s 
water account was 
reconnected and 
his meter adjusted. 
The case was closed 
in August 2018.



COMPETITION AUTHORITY OF KENYA  | ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018/19 COMPETITION AUTHORITY OF KENYA  | ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018/19170

No. Case Sector/Market Case Summary Relevant 
Section of 
the Act

Case status/
Decision

60. Edwin Karuri 
vs Jamii Tel-
com

Information 
and communi-
cation

The complainant alleged 
that he had bought a 25 GB 
internet bundle from Jamii 
Telcom but was advised 
by the accused that he had 
purchased airtime and not 
bundles.

Section 56 
(1), (2) (a) 
and (e) Un-
consciona-
ble conduct.

The Authority en-
gaged Jamii Telcom 
and established 
the complainant 
had used up all his 
bundles. The com-
plainant failed to 
provide more infor-
mation to support 
his claims and the 
case was closed in 
October 2018.

61. David Her-
bling vs Bata 
Kenya

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant claimed 
that he had bought a Stand-
ard Newspaper from Bata’s 
store. Despite the newspa-
per cover indicating a dis-
counted price of Kshs 50, 
he was charged Kshs 60. 
Upon further enquiry from 
the retailer, he was told 
that the Bata receipt system 
could not process Kshs 50 
hence the charge of Kshs 60 
was applied.

N/A The Authority in-
tervened and the 
complainant was 
refunded. The mat-
ter was closed on 
30th January 2019.

62. Nicholas Awi-
ti vs Mshwari

Information 
and communi-
cation

The complainant alleged 
that he requested for an 
Mshwari loan that took too 
long to be disbursed. When 
he requested to cancel the 
request, he was informed 
that an Mshwari loan can-
not be cancelled once re-
quested.

Section 
56(1) Un-
consciona-
ble conduct.

The Authority es-
tablished that there 
was no violation 
of the Act and the 
matter was closed 
on 13th January 
2019.
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63. Francis Gwer 
vs Jumia 
Kenya

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant bought a 
phone from Jumia Kenya 
which was faulty. He was 
given a replacement which 
was also faulty.

Section 55 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions.

The Authority en-
gaged the accused 
and they fully re-
funded the com-
plainant. The mat-
ter was closed on 
10th February 2019.

64. Walter 
Amoko vs 
Jumia Travel

Accommoda-
tion and food 
service activ-
ities

The complainant had made 
a booking with Jumia Trav-
el for a hotel and made a 
prepayment. He was later 
informed that the hotel was 
not available and hence re-
quested for a refund.

Section 56 
Unconscion-
able con-
duct.

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
the complainant 
was refunded. Ad-
ditionally, the Au-
thority issued a 
warning to Jumia 
Travel. The matter 
was closed on 10th 
January 2019.

65. Muthee Kag-
wa vs Royal 
Mabati Ltd 
(RML)

Wholesale and 
retail trade; 
repair of motor 
vehicle and 
motorcycles

The complainant had or-
dered for iron sheets from 
RML worth Ksh.241, 000 in 
September and the same 
had never been delivered.

Section 
55(a) (v) 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions and 
56(1) (2) (a) 
and (e) Un-
consciona-
ble conduct.

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
the complainant 
confirmed that the 
order was deliv-
ered and the matter 
was closed on 22nd 
January 2019.

66. John Baptist 
Gathambu 
Nyamu vs 
Platinum 
Credit Lim-
ited

Financial and 
Insurance ac-
tivities

The complainant had bor-
rowed a an amount of 
Kshs 52,000 from Platinum 
Credit. He alleged that the 
interest rate had not been 
brought to his attention 
at the time of application. 
Further, he alleged that he 
had paid a total of Ksh. 
65,531 and after inquiring 
he was told he had a bal-
ance of Kshs 117, 029.

Section 
56(1), (2) (a) 
(c) (d) (e) (3) 
and (4) Un-
consciona-
ble conduct.

The Authority en-
gaged Platinum 
Credit Limited and 
they indicated that 
they had waived 
the total loan ar-
rears. The matter 
was closed in April 
2019.
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67. Hilda Chep-
too vs Kenya 
Institute of 
Management 
(KIM)

Education The complainant alleged 
that she had enrolled for a 
professional course at the 
Kenya Institute of Man-
agement. She was given a 
proforma invoice of Kshs 
56,000 which she paid but 
was later informed that it 
was erroneous. She was in-
formed she would not sit 
for exams unless she paid 
an additional amount of 
Kshs 16,000.

Section 
55(b)(i) 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tions and 
56(1)(2)(a)
(e) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct.

The Authority en-
gaged KIM and 
they scrapped 
off the additional 
amount. The matter 
was closed in Feb-
ruary 2019.

68. Davis Okoti 
vs Granary 
Capital Ltd

Financial and 
insurance ac-
tivities

Complainant alleged that 
he had obtained a loan and 
after paying his last instal-
ment, he was informed of 
a fine of Ksh.5, 000, which 
had not been indicated ear-
lier. He provided the loan 
application form which 
clearly outlined the terms 
and conditions of the loan, 
including the Ksh.5000 
fine, to which he had 
signed against.

Section 
56(4) Un-
consciona-
ble conduct.

The Authority es-
tablished that there 
was no violation of 
the Act and the case 
was closed on 10th 
January 2019.

69. Mark Muku-
ha vs Taxify

Transportation 
and Storage

The complainant alleged 
he had been charged a fee 
of Ksh 1,250 which was 
equivalent to travelling 
42.9 Kilometers but the ac-
tual distance travelled was 
12 Kilometers. He reported 
the matter of overcharg-
ing to Taxify Kenya but no 
remedy was given.

Sections 
55 (b) (i) 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tion and 56 
(1) (2) (a) (d) 
(e) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct.

The Authority en-
gaged Taxify and 
the complainant 
was fully refund-
ed. The matter was 
closed in December 
2018.
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70. Daisy Nipher 
vs Kitsch 
Innovations 
Limited

Information 
and communi-
cation

The complainant alleged 
that she had purchased 
an iPhone 6s 64GB from 
the accused which was 
defective. She had made 
a formal complaint to the 
accused party but she was 
never assisted.

Sections 
56(1) (2) (a) 
(d) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct.

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
the complainant 
was fully refunded 
and the matter was 
closed on 21st Janu-
ary, 2019.

71. Zuhura Mu-
hiki vs Hot 
Point Appli-
ances

Wholesale and 
retail trade; 
repair of motor 
vehicle and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that she had bought a fridge 
from Hot Point Appliances, 
which broke down three 
time.

Section 55 
(b) (v) of the 
Act. False or 
misleading 
representa-
tion Section 
56 (1) (2) (a) 
(e) of the 
Act Uncon-
scionable 
conduct.

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
the complainant 
was issued with 
a credit note. The 
case was closed on 
19th February, 2019.

72. Kefa Nyakun-
di vs Equity 
Bank

Financial and 
Insurance ac-
tivities

The complainant alleged 
that he took a loan from Eq-
uity Bank Nakuru Branch. 
Other than the monthly 
payment, the bank with-
out any reference to him 
forcefully took Kshs. 40,000 
from his account and ad-
justed the loan.

Section 56 
(1) (2) (a) 
and (d) of 
the Act on 
unconscion-
able con-
duct

The case was closed 
on 18th March, 
2019, due to failure 
by the complainant 
to provide support-
ing evidence.

73. CAK vs Toyo-
ta Kenya Ltd 
(TKEN)

Transportation 
and storage

The Authority received 
several complaints regard-
ing the quality of HINO 
buses and interviewed 12 
SACCOS and Companies 
confirming the same.

Section 55, 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tion Section 
56 Uncon-
scionable 
conduct 
& Section 
59 Unsafe 
products

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
TKEN undertook 
to compensate the 
affected individu-
als. The Authority 
is conducting com-
pliance checks.
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74. Apollo & Co 
Advocates 
and Other vs 
Kenya Pow-
er & Light-
ing Co. Ltd 
(KPLC)

Electricity, gas, 
steam and air 
conditioning 
supply

The complainant alleged 
that in the month of No-
vember/December 2017, 
several consumers re-
ceived inflated power bills 
from KPLC. He added that 
KPLC was recovering Ksh. 
8.1 Billion backdated bills 
from electricity consumers 
allegedly incurred on die-
sel generation in the year 
2017.

Section 55 
(b)(i) false 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentation 
Section 
56(2) and 
57(2) uncon-
scionable 
conduct

There was a court 
injunction instruct-
ing KPLC to stop 
and cease the bill-
ing of electricity 
consumers with 
inflated backdated 
electricity bills, and 
hence the case was 
closed in February 
2019.

75. Obed Onsari-
go Vs KPLC

Electricity, gas, 
steam and air 
conditioning 
supply

The complainant alleged 
that KPLC had over-
charged him. According to 
him, his bill per month was 
usually around Ksh 250 but 
in February, the KPLC sent 
him a bill of Ksh 21,877. On 
complaining to KPLC, the 
complainant they reviewed 
the bill to Ksh 7,000 which 
was still so high consider-
ing his usual bill.

N/A The case was for-
warded to Energy 
and Petroleum Reg-
ulatory Authority 
and the matter was 
closed in April 2018

76. Agnes 
Muinde vs 
KPLC

Electricity, gas, 
steam and air 
conditioning 
supply

The complainant alleged 
that the bill presented to 
her by Kenya power was 
overstated for the month 
of February, 2018. She was 
given a bill of Ksh 23,253 
which was erroneous since 
she has been paying a bill 
of between Ksh 4,000 to 
Ksh 8,000. The complain-
ant provided the bills for 
the months of November, 
December, 2017 and Janu-
ary, February 2018.

N/A Case forwarded to 
Energy and Petro-
leum Regulatory 
Authority in April 
2018, and the mat-
ter was closed.
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77. Caroline Wan-
jiru Njoroge 
vs Madison 
General In-
surance

Financial and 
insurance ac-
tivities

The complainant alleged 
that Madison General In-
surance declined a claim 
for her car, which was in-
volved in an accident, de-
spite having a comprehen-
sive insurance policy from 
the company.

Section 
56(1) and 
(2)(a)(b)(c)
(e) uncon-
scionable 
conduct

The complaint 
was forwarded to 
IRAon 30th Janu-
ary, 2019.

78. Tom Attaro vs 
M/S Oguttu & 
Company

Professional, 
scientific and 
technical ser-
vices

The complainant alleged 
that he had sourced for le-
gal services from Oguttu 
Mboya & Company Ad-
vocates, but he had never 
received any information 
regarding the case.

N/A The matter did 
not lie within the 
mandate of the Au-
thority and it was 
forwarded to the 
Advocates Com-
plaints Commis-
sion in December 
2018.

79. Evans Juma 
Otieno vs Ta-
bana Wireless

Information 
and communi-
cation

The complainant alleged 
that he engaged Tabana 
Wireless for wireless con-
nection in Siaya County 
and was referred to a tech-
nician to do installation. 
He paid the required Ksh. 
10,000 to the technician as 
instructed by Tabana, but 
he was neither connected 
nor refunded his money.

Section 56 
(1), (2)(a)(b)
(d)(e) un-
consciona-
ble conduct

The matter was for-
warded to Commu-
nications Authority 
on 30th January 
2019

80. Bosco Ken-
yatta vs Coca 
Cola a 500ml 
Coca Cola 
soda

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that approached the Au-
thority on 15/4/2019 and 
registered a complaint 
claiming that he had pur-
chased only to discover a 
chewed tooth stick inside 
the bottle.

Section 59 
Product 
safety and 
unsafe 
products

The Authority was 
not able to proceed 
with the case since 
the complainant 
failed to provide 
supporting infor-
mation. The matter 
was closed in April 
2019.
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81. Patriciah 
Wanyoike vs 
Kenya Power

Electricity, gas, 
steam and air 
conditioning 
supply

The complainant alleged 
she was billed by KPLC on 
estimates resulting in erro-
neous billing.

N/A The complaint has 
been forwarded to 
Energy and Petro-
leum Regulatory 
Authority, and the 
matter was closed 
in March 2019.

82. Vincent 
Okoko vs 
Kenya Wom-
ens Finance 
Trust (KWFT)

Financial and 
Insurance ac-
tivities

The complainant alleged 
that he took a loan from 
KWFT which was dis-
bursed to him in September, 
2017. On 17th November, 
2017 his business premise 
burned down and he wrote 
a letter to KWFT asking 
for 3 months grace period. 
On 16th March, 2018, the 
insurance sent a voucher 
under his name however, 
KWFT signed it without his 
consent and went ahead to 
deduct Kshs.113,333 from 
the voucher amount to off-
set the accumulated loan of 
3 months.

Section 56 
(1) (2) (a) 
Unconscion-
able con-
duct

The Authority es-
tablished that the 
matter had been 
raised with Insur-
ance Regulatory 
Authority and the 
complainant had 
been fully refund-
ed. The matter was 
closed in February 
2019

83. Abraham 
Nyambane 
vs Bata Shoe 
Company

Wholesale and 
retail trade; 
repair of motor 
vehicle and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that he had bought shoes 
from Bata and after three 
days of usage, the shoes 
started wearing out. He 
returned the shoes to the 
vendor and was given a 
replacement. However, 
the exchanged shoes had 
a similar defect. When he 
returned the second pair of 
shoes, they declined to ex-
change them.

Section 
56(1), (2) 
(a) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct 
and 59(2) 
(b) Prod-
uct safety 
and unsafe 
products

The Authority en-
gaged Bata and 
they replaced the 
shoes. The matter 
was closed in June 
2019.
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84. Agnes Nyam-
bura Kamau 
vs Urithi 
Housing 
Co-operative 
Society Ltd

Financial and 
insurance ac-
tivities

The complainant alleged 
that she had registered for 
a fish pond project with 
the accused and paid Ksh. 
200000 in October 2016. 
She was however never in-
formed that the fish pond 
had been allocated to some-
one else. She then wrote a 
letter of withdrawal and 
was promised a refund in 
three months which was 
never done.

Section 
56(1), (2)
(a)(b)(c)(d)
(e) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct

The Authority en-
gaged Urithi and 
the complainant 
was fully refund-
ed. The matter was 
closed in April 
2019.

85. Samson Kieli 
vs UK Stech-
forf Birming-
ham

Wholesale and 
retail trade; 
repair of motor 
vehicle and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that he purchased a tractor 
from the accused via an ad-
vert on the internet, and af-
ter remitting payment, the 
seller went silent.

N/A The Authority con-
tacted Competition 
& Markets Author-
ity in the UK to 
assist in tracking 
the seller but they 
established the 
details of the sell-
er were false. The 
complainant was 
informed to seek 
assistance from the 
police and the mat-
ter was closed on 
18th April 2019

86. Hezekia 
Kiplagat vs 
Free Predicts 
Futbol

Information 
and communi-
cation

The complainant alleged 
that www.freepredicts.fut-
bol site was a scam aimed 
at defrauding Kenyans by 
predicting game outcomes.

N/A The matter did not 
lie within the Au-
thority’s mandate 
and was forwarded 
to the Betting Con-
trol and Licensing 
Board. The matter 
was then closed on 
25th April 2019
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87. Joshua Aba-
ki vs Phone 
Dealer

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that he had purchased a 
phone under the pretense 
that it had certain features. 
He later found out that the 
said features were nonex-
istent

Section 55 
(b)(i) false 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentation

The complainant 
failed to provide in-
formation support-
ing his allegations 
and the matter was 
closed in April 
2019.

88. Moses Adun-
do vs Kilimall

Wholesale and 
retail trade; 
repair of motor 
vehicle and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that he had ordered goods 
through Kilimall which 
had not been delivered.

Section 
56(1)(2)(a) 
and (e) un-
consciona-
ble conduct

The complainant 
failed to provide 
more informa-
tion supporting 
his claims and the 
case was closed in 
March 2019

89. Ngethe Ka-
riuki vs Tala 
Kenya Ltd

Financial and 
insurance ac-
tivities

The complainant alleged 
that he was harassed by 
Tala Kenya Ltd for delay-
ing to pay his loan.

N/A The matter did not 
lie within the man-
date of the Author-
ity and was closed 
on 25th May 2019.

90. John Njoroge 
vs Hot Point 
Appliances

Wholesale and 
retail trade; 
repair of motor 
vehicle and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that he had purchased a 
fridge which was defective. 
He was given a replace-
ment by the accused but it 
was also faulty.

Section 55 
(a) (i) False 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentation 
and 56(1)
(2)(a) and 
(e) uncon-
scionable 
conduct

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
the fridge was re-
placed with a differ-
ent brand, and the 
matter was closed 
on 30th April 2019.

91. Albine Ogot 
vs Benadir 
Electonics

Wholesale and 
retail trade; 
repair of motor 
vehicle and 
motorcycles

The complainant claimed 
that he had bought a His-
ence smart television from 
Benadir Electonics. After 3 
months, the screen could 
not display the images and 
he returned it to the seller 
who was yet to repair or re-
place the TV.

Section 55 
(a) (v) & b 
(v) False or 
misleading 
representa-
tion & 56 (2) 
(a uncon-
scionable 
conduct) (d)

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
Benadir Electron-
ics repaired the TV 
and the matter was 
closed on 23rd May 
2019.
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92. Ruth Naliaka 
Bushuru vs 
Jumia

Wholesale and 
retail trade; 
repair of motor 
vehicle and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that she had purchased a 
Smart TV from Jumia, and 
paid for the same. Her or-
der was later cancelled 
without her knowledge 
and her refund was not 
forthcoming.

Section 55 
(b) (v) False 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentation 
and 56 (1), 
(2) (a), (d) 
and (e) un-
consciona-
ble conduct

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
the complainant 
was refunded the 
full amount and the 
matter was closed 
on 27th February 
2019.

93. Emmanuel 
Kiprono vs 
Neochicks 
Poultry Ltd

Agriculture, 
forestry and 
fishing 

The complainant alleged 
that he had bought an egg 
incubator from Neochicks 
Poultry Ltd but it was not 
serving the intended pur-
pose properly due to its 
size and design. He added 
that the accused was not 
willing to assist despite the 
incubator being under war-
ranty.

55(a) (i), (b)
(i)(v) False 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentation 
56(1)(2) (a)
(d) (e) un-
consciona-
ble conduct

The Authority es-
tablished from 
KEBS that there 
was no set stand-
ard for incubators 
and the complain-
ant was advised ac-
cordingly. The case 
was closed on 31st 
January 2019.

94. CAK vs Excel 
Chemicals 
Limited

Manufacturing The Authority initiated 
investigations into claims 
that Excel Chemicals Lim-
ited has made regarding 
its product namely- Fruit 
Full, Orange Carrot Nec-
tar Juice, that it contains no 
preservatives.

55 (a) (i) 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tion and 
59 (1) (a) 
and (2) (a) 
of the Act 
on prod-
uct safety 
and unsafe 
products

The Authority en-
gaged Bureau Ver-
itas for testing and 
it was established 
that there was no 
violation of the Act. 
The case was closed 
in October 2018.
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95. Charles Titim 
vs Bata Shoe 
Company

Manufacturing The complainant alleged 
that Bata Shoe Company 
had been producing shoes 
of questionable quality. In 
addition to this, consum-
ers’ feet developed irrita-
tion from wearing Ngo-
ma shoes and Gumboots. 
He further alleged that 
Bata Shoe Company was 
importing tons of unpro-
cessed suspicious materials 
to manufacture their shoes, 
which made their staff to 
cough, choke and vomit.

N/A The matter did not 
lie within the man-
date of the Author-
ity and was for-
warded to KEBS on 
6th May, 2019.

96. Durex Con-
doms Recall

Wholesale and 
retail trade; 
repair of motor 
vehicle and 
motorcycles

The Authority through me-
dia screening learnt that on 
30th July, 2018, Durex initi-
ated a product recall in the 
UK and Ireland of specific 
batches of non-latex Durex 
Real Feel and Durex Latex 
Free condoms.

Section 59 
Product 
safety and 
unsafe 
products

The Authority en-
gaged the distribu-
tor of the condoms 
in the country and 
established that the 
said brand was not 
sold in the Kenyan 
market and thus 
the case was closed 
in January 2019.

97. Anonymous 
complain-
ant vs Gold 
Crown Bever-
ages (K) Ltd

Manufacturing The complainant alleged 
that Kericho Gold Crown 
Beverages Ltd was mis-
leading the public and 
international market that 
their product originat-
ed from Kenya, yet it was 
made in Malawi.

Section 
55(a)(i), b(i-
ii) False or 
misleading 
representa-
tion

The complainant 
failed to provide 
sufficient evidence 
to enable the Au-
thority pursue the 
matter and the case 
was closed in April 
2019.
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98. Diana Tari-
chia vs David 
Mureithi/ Pro-
ject Homes 
Ltd

Real estate 
activities

Complainant alleged that 
she had purchased a house 
unit from the accused. She 
was promised the house 
would be built as per the 
approved plan. However, 
the house built was differ-
ent from the plan. When 
she complained, she was 
informed that it could not 
be changed.

N/A The matter did not 
lie within the man-
date of the Authori-
ty. The complainant 
later informed the 
Authority that the 
matter had been 
amicably resolved 
and the case was 
closed on 30th May 
2019.

99. CAK v HP 
Laptops

Information 
and communi-
cation

The Authority through 
its own intelligence noted 
that HP recalled more than 
100,000 laptop batteries, 
worldwide due to over-
heating. CAK required HP 
to publish a public recall 
notice to consumers in two 
widely circulated local dai-
lies. HP published the re-
call notice on 29th August 
2018 in Nation and Stand-
ard Newspapers.

Section 
59 Prod-
uct safety 
standards 
and unsafe 
goods

Investigations are 
ongoing

100. Anonymous 
complainant v 
Eco Gas Saver 
manufacturer

Electricity, gas, 
steam and air 
conditioning 
supply

The complainant alleged 
that the accused was mis-
leading consumers regard-
ing the eco gas saver, and 
alluded that there could be 
no chemical reaction be-
tween the gas cylinder and 
the plastic containing the 
gas saver liquid as alleged 
by the accused.

Section 55 
(i) and (ii) 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tion

Investigations are 
ongoing
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101. Stella Nd-
ung’u v Faulu 
Microfinance 
Bank

Financial and 
insurance ac-
tivities

The complainant claimed 
that her parents took a loan 
from Faulu Micro-finance 
in June, 2013 at an interest 
rate of 12% p.a but the bank 
adjusted it in 2016 to 16% 
p.a. Further, upon their cal-
culation, the actual interest 
rate was found to be 30% 
and not 16% or 12% as pur-
ported by Faulu.

Section 56 
(2) (a), (c), 
(e) and (3) 
Unconscion-
able con-
duct

Investigations are 
ongoing

102. Patience 
Kwekwe v 
Harambee 
SACCO

Financial and 
insurance ac-
tivities

The complainant alleged 
that she took a loan of 
Ksh.360, 000 at an interest 
rate of 12% p.a. and she 
was to repay in 34 months. 
She cleared the loan in June 
2015. In December, 2017, 
she applied for a new loan 
from the same SACCO 
but was informed that she 
still owed the SACCO an 
amount of about Ksh.200, 
000 which was recovered 
from her SACCO shares 
without her knowledge.

Section 56 
(3) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct

Harambee Sacco in-
voked section 38 of 
the Act to enter into 
a settlement agree-
ment with the Au-
thority. The settle-
ment proceedings 
were ongoing at the 
time of reporting.

103. Vincent Kisua 
v Kenya Ori-
ent Insurance

Financial and 
insurance ac-
tivities

The complainant alleged 
that Orient Insurance de-
layed in honoring his in-
surance claim after his ve-
hicle was involved in an 
accident. He alluded that 
the insurer kept changing 
garages seeking different 
opinions forcing the com-
plainant to incur related 
costs of the vehicle.

Section 56 
(1) (2) (a)(b)
(d) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct 

Investigations are 
ongoing
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104. Edwin Wafula 
Makokha vs 
Equity Bank 
Kenya Lim-
ited

Financial and 
insurance ac-
tivities

The client alleged that in 
October 2016 he finished 
paying for an Equiloan of 
Ksh. 740, 657.50 taken in 
2011. However, the bank 
indicated that there was 
an outstanding balance of 
Ksh. 122, 996.27 as at 30th 
January, 2018.

Section 
56(1)(3)(4) 
on uncon-
scionable 
conduct

Investigations are 
ongoing

105. Geoffrey 
Wainaina v 
Get Bucks 
Kenya Lim-
ited

Financial and 
insurance ac-
tivities

The complainant alleged 
that he obtained a loan at 
Get Bucks Kenya Limited 
and he has been paying 
but the loan was increasing 
rather than reducing.

Section 
56(2)(c)(d)
(e) (3) and 
(4) of the 
Act on un-
consciona-
ble conduct

Investigations are 
ongoing

106. Daniel Kari-
uki Mwangi v 
Royal Ma-
bati Limited 
(RML)

Wholesale and 
retail trade; 
repair of motor 
vehicle and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that he procured Mabati 
from RML at a cost of Kshs. 
133,425 with the compa-
ny assuring him delivery 
of the materials within 4 
working days. However, 
this was not complied and 
forced him to hire a private 
vehicle at a cost of Kshs 
7,000. Nevertheless, RML 
declined to release the or-
der.

Section 56 
(1), (2) (a) 
and (e) of 
the Act on 
unconscion-
able con-
duct

Investigations are 
ongoing

107. CAK v Bread 
manufactur-
ers

Manufacturing The Authority initiated in-
vestigations against bread 
manufacturers. The aim of 
investigations was to de-
termine whether there was 
false or misleading rep-
resentation in relation to 
ingredients.

Section 55, 
(a) (i) False 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentation

Investigations are 
ongoing
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108. CAK v IFFCO Manufacturing The Authority initiated 
investigations into the ed-
ible oil sector to establish 
claims by manufacturers 
regarding the products 
composition.

Section 55, 
(a) (i) False 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentation

Investigations are 
ongoing

109. CAK v BID-
CO Africa 
Limited

Manufacturing The Authority initiated 
investigations into the ed-
ible oil sector to establish 
claims by manufacturers 
regarding the products 
composition.

Section 55, 
(a) (i) False 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentation

Investigations are 
ongoing

110. CAK v 
PWANI Oil 
products Lim-
ited.

Manufacturing The Authority initiated 
investigations into the ed-
ible oil sector to establish 
claims by manufacturers 
regarding the products 
composition.

Section 55, 
(a) (i) False 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentation

Investigations are 
ongoing

111. CAK v 
GOLDEN 
AFRICA

Manufacturing The Authority initiated 
investigations into the ed-
ible oil sector to establish 
claims by manufacturers 
regarding the products 
composition.

Section 55, 
(a) (i) False 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentation

Investigations are 
ongoing

112. CAK v KAPA Manufacturing The Authority initiated 
investigations into the ed-
ible oil sector to establish 
claims by manufacturers 
regarding the products 
composition.

Section 55, 
(a) (i) False 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentation

Investigations are 
ongoing

113. CAK v UNI-
LEVER

Manufacturing The Authority initiated 
investigations into the ed-
ible oil sector to establish 
claims by manufacturers 
regarding the products 
composition.

Section 55, 
(a) (i) False 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentation

Investigations are 
ongoing
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114. CAK v Fluor 
manufactur-
ers

Manufacturing The Authority initiated 
investigations into the ed-
ible oil sector to establish 
claims by manufacturers 
regarding the products 
composition.

Section 55, 
(a) (i) False 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentation

Investigations are 
ongoing

115. Lilian v Toyo-
ta Kenya Lim-
ited (TKEN)

Transportation 
and storage

The complainant alleged 
that she bought a 33 seater 
bus in 2015 which experi-
enced multiple problems. 
Upon lodging a complaint 
with TKEN an engine 
overhaul was done reduc-
ing vehicle capacity to a 
29 seater. Despite the re-
pairs, the vehicle still ex-
perienced problems. The 
complainant claimed for a 
refund but TKEN refused 
citing that the vehicle had 
already been used.

Section 55 
(a) (i) (v), 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tion 56 (1) 
(2) (a) (c) (d) 
(e), Uncon-
scionable 
conduct 63 
(1) (d) (e) 
and 64 (1) of 
the Act on 
unsafe and 
defective 
products

Investigations are 
ongoing

116. Chris God-
man v Kenya 
Airways

Transportation 
and storage

The complainant alleged 
that Kenya Airways over-
sold his flight from Kigali to 
Nairobi despite him arriv-
ing at the airport on time. 
He was forced to board an-
other Kenya Airways flight 
from Kigali to Nairobi but 
he missed on connecting 
British Airways flight from 
Nairobi to London. He 
was advised to pay for the 
Kenya Airways flight from 
Nairobi to London then lat-
er seek for refund. He paid 
£3,211.20 to Kenya Airways 
for a ticket and continued 
with his journey. He was 
never refunded despite 
several follow ups.

Section 55 
(b) (v) False 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentation 
and 56(1) (2) 
(a) and (d) 
of the Act 
on Uncon-
scionable 
conduct

Investigations are 
ongoing
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117. Gerald Mbu-
gua v Yang 
Guang Prop-
erty Design 
and Manufac-
turing Ltd

Wholesale and 
retail trade, 
repair of motor 
vehicles and 
motorcycles

The complainant ordered 
doors and frames from 
Yang Guang Property De-
sign and paid Ksh. 179, 370 
as down payment. How-
ever, the doors and frames 
delivered differed in meas-
urements despite the fact 
that the contractor had 
visited the site and taken 
measurements. Upon rais-
ing the complaint with the 
company he was advised 
that the delivered goods 
were as per the ordered 
products and they could 
not be replaced.

Section 
56(1) (2) (a) 
(d) and (e) 
of the Act 
on Uncon-
scionable 
conduct

Investigations are 
ongoing

118. Francis Gitahi 
v Nairobi 
Bottlers Ltd

Manufacturing The complainant alleged 
that he bought a Fanta Soda 
which was contaminated

Section 
59(1)(a) (2)
(b), Prod-
uct safety 
and unsafe 
goods 63 
and 64 
Unsuitable 
goods

Investigations are 
ongoing

119. Ms. Irene 
Wangui 
Kinyanju v 
National of 
Kenya

Financial and 
insurance ac-
tivities

The complainant alleged 
that on 17th March, 2018, 
she received two text noti-
fications on her phone in-
dicating that her Visa card 
had completed two online 
transactions from www.
boohoo.com and deduc-
tions were made without 
her consent. She alleged 
that she had not received 
any communication from 
the Bank despite reporting 
to them.

Sections 56 
Unconscion-
able con-
duct

Investigations are 
ongoing
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120. Rogers On-
yancha Advo-
cates v Almasi 
Bottlers

Manufacturing On behalf of his clients, 
the complainant alleged to 
have found foreign mat-
ter inside soda purchased 
from Almasi Bottlers.

Section 
59(1)(a) (2)
(b), Prod-
uct safety 
and unsafe 
goods 63 
and 64 
Unsuitable 
goods

Investigations are 
ongoing

121. Gilbert Owino 
v Royal Ma-
bati Limited 
(RML)

Wholesale and 
retail trade; 
repair of motor 
vehicle and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that he purchased corru-
gated charcoal grey mabati 
from RML after seeing an 
advert in the newspaper 
that RML delivers within 
48 hours to any destination 
in Kenya. However RML 
failed to deliver thereby 
causing the complainants 
roof that was partially 
done with timber to rot. He 
further alleged that RML 
later undertook to supply 
him with blue corrugated 
instead of grey which he 
accepted, but this was also 
never delivered.

55 (a) (ii), 
(v) and (b) 
(v) False or 
misleading 
representa-
tion 56 (1), 
(2) (a) and 
(e) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct

Investigations are 
ongoing

122. Gideon Tarus 
v Safaricom 
Ltd.

Information 
and communi-
cation

The complainant alleged 
that Safaricom deactivated 
his Mpesa accounts and 
blocked him from register-
ing any new Safaricom line 
using his ID.

Section 56 
Unconscion-
able con-
duct

Investigations are 
ongoing
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123. Marvin Elly v 
Jumia

Wholesale and 
retail trade; 
repair of motor 
vehicle and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged he 
had made an online order 
to purchase LG TV set from 
Jumia Kenya, and was giv-
en a two year warranty. Af-
ter a week of using the TV,it 
became defective prompt-
ing him to take it to the LG 
Service Center where he 
was informed that the war-
ranty does not apply to the 
Kenyan market.

Sections 55 
(a) (i) (b) 
(v) False or 
misleading 
representa-
tion and 
56(1), (2) 
(a) (d) (e) 
on Uncon-
scionable 
conduct

Investigations are 
ongoing

124. Joseph Ag-
wata Okari v 
Royal Mabati 
Ltd (RML)

Wholesale and 
retail trade; 
repair of motor 
vehicle and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that his client ordered for 
20 pieces of roll tops and 
24 pieces of iron sheets on 
5th June 2018 from RML, 
which were not delivered 
as promised.

Section 
55(a)(i)(ii) 
on False or 
misleading 
representa-
tion Section 
56(1), (2)(a)
(b)(c)(d)(e) 
of the Act 
on Uncon-
scionable 
conduct

Investigations are 
ongoing

125. Dipak Shah 
v Chloride 
Exide

Wholesale and 
retail trade; 
repair of motor 
vehicle and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that he had bought a car 
battery from Chloride Ex-
ide on 16th October, 2018 
and later discovered that it 
was faulty.

Sections 55 
(a) (i), (b) 
(ii) (v), False 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentation 
and 56 (1) 
(2) (a) and 
(e) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct

Investigations are 
ongoing
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126. Laura Lime v 
Slumberland 
Kenya Lim-
ited

Wholesale and 
retail trade; 
repair of motor 
vehicle and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that she purchased a bed 
that comprised of a divan, 
mattress and a head board 
from Slumberland, all 
worth Ksh. 76, 000 but lat-
er discovered that the mat-
tress was not well aligned 
with the bed.

Section 
55(a)(i), 
False or 
misleading 
representa-
tion 56(1)(2)
(a) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
the complainant 
was offered a re-
placement mat-
tress.

127. Njihia John 
v Kamisafe 
Lightings

Wholesale and 
retail trade; 
repair of motor 
vehicle and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that he bought a Kamisafe 
Lamp but was not given a 
charging cord. He further 
alleged that the lamp dis-
charges power after fifteen 
minutes upon being fully 
charged.

Sections 
56 (1) (2) 
(a) and (e) 
Uncon-
scionable 
conduct and 
section 63 
on unsuita-
ble goods

Investigations are 
ongoing

129. Leonard Rono 
v Royal Ma-
bati Limited 
(RML)

Wholesale and 
retail trade; 
repair of motor 
vehicle and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that he made an order for 
roofing materials with the 
assurance of receiving the 
order within 7 to 14 days. 
Later, he was told to change 
the order to the readi-
ly available materials as 
what he had ordered was 
not available. He agreed 
and was forced to pay ex-
tra cash for the new order. 
When he did not receive 
the order or communica-
tion regarding the order, he 
decided to pay for the de-
livery and picked the order 
on 28th December 2018.

55 (a) (ii), 
(v) and (b) 
(v) False or 
misleading 
representa-
tion 56 (1), 
(2) (a) and 
(e) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct

Investigations are 
ongoing

128. William Mun-
gai v KCB

Financial and 
insurance ac-
tivities

The complainant claimed 
that he completed repay-
ing a loan he took in 2011 in 
October 2017 but the Bank 
claimed that the loan was 
outstanding.

Sections 
56(1)-(4) 
Unconscion-
able con-
duct

Investigations are 
ongoing
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130. Patrick 
Ondieki v 
Royal Ma-
bati Limited 
(RML)

Wholesale and 
retail trade; 
repair of motor 
vehicle and 
motorcycles

The complainant alleged 
that RML do not deliver 
iron sheets as they adver-
tise on their page that de-
livery is within 48 hours. 
His order took almost one 
month and they didn’t re-
spond when he called. He 
had made his order on 4th 
December, 2018 and it was 
delivered on 19th January, 
2019.

55 (a) (ii), 
(v) and (b) 
(v) False or 
misleading 
representa-
tion 56 (1), 
(2) (a) and 
(e) Uncon-
scionable 
conduct

Investigations are 
ongoing

132. CAK v Ceres 
(PTY) Fruit 
Juices

Manufacturing The Authority initiated 
investigations into claims 
that Ceres product name-
ly Ceres Hanepoot white 
grape juice is 100% nat-
ural, source of vitamin C 
and contains no preserva-
tives as indicated on their 
packaging materials.

Section 55 
(a) (i) False 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentation 
and section 
59 (1) (a) 
and (2) (a) 
of the Act 
on Prod-
uct safety 
standards 
and unsafe 
products

Investigations are 
ongoing

131. CAK v Ke-
vian Kenya 
Limited

Manufacturing The Authority initiated 
investigations into claims 
that Kevian Kenya Limited 
products namely Pick N 
Peel orange juice is 100% 
natural as indicated on 
their packaging material.

Section 55 
(a) (i) False 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentation 
and section 
59 (1) (a) 
and (2) (a) 
of the Act 
on Prod-
uct safety 
standards 
and unsafe 
products

Investigations are 
ongoing
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133. CAK v Del 
Monte Kenya

Manufacturing The Authority initiated 
investigations into claims 
that Del Monte Kenya 
Limited products namely 
Del Monte Apple juice and 
Del Monte pineapple is 
100% natural as indicated 
on their packaging mate-
rial.

Section 55 
(a) (i) False 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentation 
and section 
59 (1) (a) 
and (2) (a) 
of the Act 
on Prod-
uct safety 
standards 
and unsafe 
products

Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
the complainant 
was offered a 
replacement mat-
tress.

134. CAK v 
Bakhresa

Manufacturing The Authority initiated 
investigations into claims 
that Bakhresa namely 
Azam Pineapples juice is 
rich in vitamin C and con-
tains no preservatives as 
indicated on their packag-
ing materials.

Section 55 
(a) (i) False 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentation 
and section 
59 (1) (a) 
and (2) (a) 
of the Act 
on Prod-
uct safety 
standards 
and unsafe 
products

Investigations are 
ongoing

135. CAK and U 
FRESH Enter-
prises Ltd

Manufacturing The Authority initiated the 
case to verify the manu-
facturer’s claims regarding 
the composition of the 
product.

Section 55 
(a) (i) False 
or mislead-
ing rep-
resentation 
and section 
59 (1) (a) 
and (2) (a) 
of the Act 
on Prod-
uct safety 
standards 
and unsafe 
products

Investigations are 
ongoing
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136. Samuel Kum-
bu Vs Select 
Management

Financial and 
insurance ac-
tivities

The complainant alleged 
that he obtained a loan 
from the accused, and 
claimed they misled him 
that the loan would be dis-
bursed in 24 hours but this 
was done after 2 weeks. He 
also claimed they were still 
deducting his salary even 
after completing the loan 
amount.

Section 56 Upon the Author-
ity’s intervention, 
the complainant 
was offered a re-
placement mat-
tress.
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